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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that 26™ Annual General Meeting (“AGM™) of the Members of Hero Motors
Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Thursday, September 25, 2025 at 03:00 P.M. (IST) through
Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) deemed to be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Hero Nagar G.T. road, Ludhiana, Punjab, India, 141003 to transact
the following as businesses: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To adopt Financial Statements & Reports
To receive, consider and adopt:

(a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2025, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

(b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March
31, 2025 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Mr. Amit Gupta and Mr. Abhishek Munjal as a Directors liable to retire by rotation

To appoint Directors in place of Mr. Amit Gupta (DIN: 02990732j, Managing Director & CEQO and Mr.
Abhishek Munjal (DIN: 05355274), Whole Time Director who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Ratification of Remuneration to be paid to M/s. Ramanath Iyer & Co., Cost Accountants, Cost
Auditors of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, with or without modification, as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rules made thereunder, and recommendation of Audit Committee, the remuneration payable
to M/s Ramanath Iyer & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No. 000019) as the Cost Auditors to
conduct audit of cost records for Financial Year 2025-26 at mutually agreed remuneration of Rs.
1,80,000/- (Rupees Oné Lakh Eighty Thousand Only) plus GST and re-imbursement of out-of-pocket
expenses, as approved by Board of Directors be and is hereby ratified.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director(s) and/or Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
of the Company be and is hereby severally authorized to submit the necessary intimation in Form CRA-
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2 to the Central Government for appointment of Cost Auditors by the Company and to do all such other
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary from time to time to make the resolution effective.

Dated: August 12, 2025
Place: Noida

Hero Motors Limited
Registered Office: Hero Nagar, G.T. Road, Ludhiana-141003

b

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Hero Motors Limited

.

- Esh 1|pta

Company Secretary
Mem. No. A23608
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NOTES:

1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”), vide its General Circular No, 09/2024 dated 19th
September 2024 read with other previous MCA General Circulars No. 09/2023 dated 25th
September 2023, 10/2022 dated 28th December 2022, 02/2022 dated 5th May 2022, No. 20/2020
dated 5th May 2020, No. 17/2021 dated 13th April 2021 and No. 14/2021 dated 8th April 2021
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”™), has permitted Companies to hold their Annual
General Meetings through Video Conference (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM). Since
this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM facility, physical
attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of
proxies by the members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

2, Members are requested to notify changes if any, in their address, email ID nominations etc. to -
the Company. '

3.  Notice of the AGM is being sent electronically to the Members whose email IDs are registered
with the Company/ Depository Participant unless any member has requested for a physical copy
of the same. Members whose email ID is not registered with the Company / Depository
Participant can do so by sending a request addressed to Company Secretary at C3-C, 7th Floor,
Max Square Building, Sector 129, Noida-201304 or by sending a duly signed request letter to

. investorrelations@heromotors.com (the signature should match with the specimen signature as
per Company records) or update their e-mail ID with their Depository Participant.

4, The deemed venue for AGM shall be the Corporate Office of the Company at C3-C, 7th Floor,
Max Square Building, Sector 129, Noida-201304. Members may note that Notice has been
uploaded on the website of the Company at www.heromotors.com.

5. Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, the route map is not annexed
to this Notice.

6.  In case of joint holders, a member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM.

7.  In terms of the provisions of Section 113 of the Act read with the MCA Circulars, Corporate
Members/ Institutional (i.e. other than individuals / HUF,) are entitled to appoint their authorized
répresentatives via resolution to attend the AGM through VC on their behalf and participate there,
including cast votes by electronic means. The said resolution is mandatorily required to be sent
to the Company by email through its registered  email address
to investorrelations@heromotors.com.

8.  The proceedings of the Meeting will be recorded as required under Companies Act, 2013 read
with rules made and circulars issued thereunder. The Company shall maintain a recorded

, transcript of the meeting in safe custody.

9. The following statutory registers shall be made available at corporate office at C3-C, 7th Floor,
Max Square Building, Sector 129, Noida-201304:

i) Register of contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested under section 189
of the Act. '

ii)  Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under section
170 of the Act.

10. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, the said registers including other documents as referred
to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement of AGM will be made accessible for inspection
through electronic mode and shall remain open and be accessible to any member upto and during
the continuance of the meeting and the same can be accessed by sending a request to the Company
at investorrelations@heromotors.com. -

11. Members who need technical assistance any query and/or grievance, in respect of AGM before
or during the AGM can contact at investorrelations(@heromotors.com.
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12.  The Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companics Act, 2013 is annexed hereto. The Board

of Directors have considered and resolved that Special Business items are unavoidable in nature.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING/JOINING THE AGM:

 Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM by following procedure:

L.

o

The link for AGM will be made available on the Bmail IDs of the members as registered with the

company/ Depository Participant. Enter the login credentials i.e. User ID and password mentioned
in your email. After entering the details appropriately, click on LOGIN.

Members are advised that facility of joining the AGM through VC shall be kept open 15 minutes
before the time scheduled for the AGM and shall not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after
scheduled time. The video-conference shall allow for two-way teleconferencing for the ease of
participation of the members and the participants.

Members are requested to cast their vote by a show of hands in the meeting unless demand for poll
is made by any Member or Chairman.

Members are encouraged to join the meeting through Laptops/Desktops for better experience.
Further, members will be required to allow camera, if any, and hence use internet with a good speed
to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

While alj efforts will be made to make the VC/OAVM meeting smooth, participants connecting
through mobile devices, tablets, laptops, etc. may, at times, experience audio/video loss due to
fluctuation in their respective networks. Use of a stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection can mitigate some

of the technical glitches.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES

ACT 2013

Resolution No. 3

" The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 25th June, 2025, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s
Ramanath Tyer & Co., Cost Accountants (Registration No., 000019) to conduct the audit of the cost
records of the Company for the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2026. In terms of the provisions of
Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be ratified by the
members of the Company. Accordingly, consent of the members is sought to ratify the remuneration
payable to the Cost Auditors. '

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel(s) of the Company or their relatives are in any way,
concerned or interested either financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the resolution as Ordinary Resolution as set out in
the accompanying notice.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Hero Motors Limited

N

Esha Gﬁpta
Company Secretary
Mem. No. A23608

Dated: August 12, 2025
Place: Noida
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and Six hundred) divided into 37,93,07,960 (Thirty Seven Crore Ninety Three Lakh Seven Thousand
Nine hundred and Sixty) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each. :

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN

Our Company, pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board on December 1, 2022 and the
Shareholders® on December 2, 2022 has adopted the “Hero Motors Employees Stock Option Plan 20227
{“ESOP 2022”). The ESOP 2022 was last amended pursuant to the resolutions passed by the Board on
July 16, 2024 and the Shareholders’ on August 12, 2024.

The objective of ESOP 2022 is (i) to reward the eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiary
company(ies) in India and abroad for their performance and motivate them to contribute to the growth
and profitability of the Company; (ii) to attract and retain talents in the organization; and (iii) to enable
employees to get a share in the value they create for the Company in the future. The ESOP 2022 is in
compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 .

As on the date of June 30, 2025, under ESOP 2022, an aggregate of 21,230,763 options have been
granted, of which 534,509 options have either lapsed, been forfeited or cancelled, 15,938,615 options
are outstanding, 4,903,855 options have been vested and 4,757,639 options have been exercised.

Options granted 19,567,794 734,775 806,358 121,836

.| Options vested
(excluding "options that NIL 3,568,179 1,036,991 298,685
have been exercised)
Options exercised NIL NIL 3,806,111 951,528
Exercise price of options NIL NIL 10 T10
Options
forfeited/lapsed/cancelled NIL 232,045 137,847 164,617
Total number of Equity
Shares that would arise as
a result of full exercise of 19,567,794 200,70,524 1,69,32,924 | 1,5938,615
options granted (nei of
cancelled options)
Variation of te_rms None None None None

of options
Money realized by
exercise of  options NIL NIL 38,061,110 95,15,280
during the

year/period
Total number of options 19,567,794 | 200705524 | 1,69,32,024 |  1,59,38,615
in force

e ]
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details of options granteditc

Any other | Nil Nil | Nil - Name | Total
employee of | mo.of ||| Name | Total
who - employ | option {|| of ' | no. of
received a ee R emplo - | optio
grant in ' | grante ||| yee" ns
any one . . - d _ grant
year of Anuj 50,000 ' ed
options Kumar Anuj 16,12
amounting Singh Thakur | 0
to 5% or Mark 50,000 ||| Prem | 25,18
more of | Ingraha Naraya | 3
the options m n
granted Chauh
during the an
year

Identified | Nil Nil Nil Nil
employees
who were
granted
options Amit |14,458,78
during any Gupta 8
one year Kesha | 3,954,809
equal to or v
exceeding Misra
1% of the
issued
capital
(excluding
outstandin
g warrants
and
conversion
s) of our
Company
at the time
of grant

Other Particulars Details
Difference between employee cownpensation cost| Not applicable, since the fair value using
calculated using the intrinsic value of stock options and | Black Scholes inodel has been used for
the employce compensation cost that shall have been| calculating employee compensation cost.
recognized if our Company had used fair value of
options and impact of this difference on profits and EPS
of our Company for the last three fiscals

S
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Description of the pricing formula and the method and
significant assumptions used during the year to estimate
the fair values of options, including weighted-average

The fair value of option granted is
estimated using the Black Scholes Option
Pricing model.

information, namely, risk-free interest rate, expected
life, expected volatility, expected dividends and the
price of the underlying share in market at the time of
| grant of the option

Impact on profits and EPS of the last three years if our
Company had followed the accounting policies
specified in Regulation 15 of the ESOP Regulations in

Company has complied with the
accounting standard issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India which is

respect of options granted in the last three years in line with the SEBI SBEB & SE
Regulations.
Intention of key managerial personnel, semior| None

management and whole-time directors who are holders
of Equity Shares allotted on exercise of options to sell
their shares within three months after the listing of
Equity Shares pursuant to the Offer

Intention to sell Equity Shares arising out of the ESOP
scheme or allotted under an ESOP scheme within three
months after the listing of Equity Shares by directors,
key managerial personnel, senior management and
employees having Equity Shares arising out of the
ESOP scheme, amounting to more than 1% of the
issued capital {excluding outstanding warrants and
CONVersions)

None

CONVERSION OF COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

During the year under review, your Company has not converted compulsorily-convertible preference
share into equity shares.

Also, during the period under review, your Company has not bought back any of its securities / has not
issued any sweat equity shares / has not issued any bonus shares, except as stated above has not provided
any Stock Option Scheme to its employees, and has not issued any equity shares with differential rights.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the year under review, your Company was not required to transfer any funds to Investor
Education and Protection Funds (IEPF).

DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted any deposits from the public under
Section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and rules made thereunder and no amount of
principal or interest was outstanding as at the end of Financial Year 2024-25. There were no unclaimed
or unpaid deposits lying with your Company. Hence, reporting of any non- compliance with the
Tequirement of Chapter-V of Act “Acceptance of Deposits by Companies™ is not applicable on your
Company.

e —— e ———— e}
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10. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

11.

12,

There has been no change in the nature of business carried on by your Company or its subsidiaries
during the year under review.

CONSOLIDATION OF FINANCIALS

In compliance with provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
Accounts) Rules, 2014, your Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements as per the
Accounting Standards on Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Further, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of the
subsidiary Company is disclosed separately and forms part of this Board Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
As on date of this report, your Company has following Subsidiaries:
a) HEL
Hewland Engineering Ltd. (“HEL”) is a 51% Subsidiary of your Company.

HEL is engaged in the business of designing and manufacturing of high-performance transmission
and drivetrain components for performance automotive, motorsport, EV and aerospace industries.
It also provides custom engineering solutions and mvests in research and development to enhance
its product offerings.

HEL reported a net Profit of 1,264,790 GBP in F.Y. 2024-25 (previous year net Profit: 7,71,136
GBP).

b) HMTL
Hero Motors Thai Ltd, (“IIMTL”) is a 100% Subsidiary of your Company.

Hero Thai is engaged in the business of manufacturing, trading, and exporting vehicle parts, engine
system parts, gearbox, transmission parts including parts or spare parts related to such products for
motorcycles and vehicles.

HMT reported a net profit of 27.11 THB in F.Y. 2024-25 (previous year net profit- 91.50 THB).
¢} Hero EDU
Hero Edu Systems Private Limited (“Hero EDU”) is a 100% Subsidiary of your Company.

Hero EDU is engaged in the business of procuring, manufacturing, assembling, integrating,
producing, buying, selling, distributing, trading, importing, exporting, repairing, refurbishing,
dealing in all types of electric and allied components, sub- components, including electronic drive
systems, e-bikes, other similar e-vehicles, and related products such as motors, batteries,
controllers, sensors, displays, chargers, throttles, wire hamess, diagnostic / EOL tools, software
applications, components and spare parts thereof, PCBs, cell, etc, whether made from ferrous
and/or non-ferrous materials or any other materials used in the industry, including substitutes and
replacements for such products. Furthermore, to design, develop, prototype, test, integrate, validate
e-components and e-systems for, electric vehicles (e- bikes, E 2 wheelers, E 3 wheelers etc), and
simijlar vehicles; to provide comprehensive after-sales services including customer support,

M
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maintenance, repair, and refurbishment services; and to offer technical assistance, troubleshooting,
and upgrades for such products and systems.

Hero EDU reported a net loss of Rs. 83.12 lakhs in F.Y. 2024-25 (previous year net loss: Rs. 5.77
lakhs).

d) STPL
Spur Technologies Private Limited (“STPL™} is a 100% Subsidiary of your Company.

STPL is engaged in the business of manufacturing, assembly, buying, selling distributing,
importing and exporting of cycles, tricycles and carriages of all kinds and of all articles and things
used for the manufacture, maintenance and working thereof, to buy, repair, alter and deal in
apparatus, machinery materials and articles of all kinds which shall be capable of being used for
the purpose of any business herein mentioned or likely to be required by customers of any such
business, as authorized under the objects clause of its memorandum of association. Further, it is
also engaged in carrying on the business of manufacturing, assembling, producing, buying, selling,
distributing, importing, exporting, research and development of auto components whether made
from ferrous and/or non-ferrous materials or any other materials as may be used in the industry for
the purpose of business of STPL.

STPL reported a loss of Rs. 124.23 lakhs in F.Y. 2024-25 (previous year net loss: of Rs. 536.42
lakhs).

e) HYM Drive
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited (“HYM”) is a 90% Subsidiary of your Company.
HYM is engaged in the business of manufacturing, procuring and selling high-quality hub motors
for e-bikes (where e-bikes mean two or three-wheeled vehicles having a rear drive wheel solely

human-powered or a two or three-wheeled vehicle with fully operable pedals, seat and electric
motor) targeting the Indian and global e-bike market. :

HYM entered into a joint venture agreement dated October 27, 2021 with Yamaha Motor Co. Ltd.,
to establish our Subsidiary, HYM.

HYM Drive reported a loss of Rs. 649.42 lakhs in F.Y. 2024-25 (previous year net Joss: Rs. 314.07
lakhs).

After the date of this report i.e. March 31, 2025, the Company has made the following investment.

f) MSIPL
Munjal 8TP Industries Private Limited (“MSIPL”) is a 51% subsidiary of your Company
Pursuant to the Joint Venture Agreement dated March 07, 2025, entered into between
Vermédgensverwaltung Pletienberg GmbH & Co. KG (“STP Group™) and Hero Motors Limited
(“HML”), STP Group and HML agreed to jointly set up a joint venture company, MSIPL, to
develop, manufacture, and sell forging components for the automotive sector and such other

components and materials.

Pursuant to said agreement, your Company acquired 51.00% of the total paid-up equity share
capital of MSIPL, thereby making MSIPL its subsidiary.

- — e — e}
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13.

14.

15.

MSIPL was incorporated by way of certificate of Incorporation issued by Registrar of Company-
Central Registration Centre dated July 22, 2025.

MSIPL is yet to commence its operations.

There were no other Companies which became or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies during the year.

A statement containing the salient features of the Financial Statement of the Subsidiary in the prescribed
format AOC-1 forms part of the Consolidated Financial Statements of your Company.

None of the above named Subsidiary company declared any Dividend during the Financial Year 2024-
25.

The Company’s Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries is available ‘on the website of the
Company and can be accessed at www.heromotors.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION
186

Particulars of loans, guaranices given and investments made during the year in accordance with
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of the notes to the financial statements. All the
loans, guarantees & securities are given, and investments are made for the Business purpose.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS & ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
(RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION)

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee. Prior omnibus approval of the
Audit Committee is obtained which are foreseen and are repetitive in nature. Further, any related party
transactions which are in ordinary course and at arm’s length are also placed before the Board for
approval.

All the related party transactions were in the ordinary course of business and are on arm’s length basis
except as disclosed in Form AQC-2 forms part of this Board Report.

For details on Related Party Transactions, you may refer Notes to financial statements forming part of
the Financial Statements.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Except as disclosed in the Board Report, in the opinion of the Board, there have been no material
changes and commitments, affecting the fmancial position of your Company which have occurred
between the end of the financial year of your Company to which the financial statements relate and the
date of the report.

Your Company is planning to go for the initial public offer and in this regard, your Company has filed
its Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated June 30, 2025 with Securities and Exchange Board of India, the
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

ﬂ
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18.

19,

APPOINTMENT AND DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY UNDER SECTION 149(6)

During the Financial Year under review, Mr. Gaurav Dalmia (ceased to be director during FY 2024-
25), Dr. Andrew Charles Palmer, Mr. Ashok Kumar Taneja & Ms. Jyoti Arora had been appointed as
Independent Directors on the Board.

As on date of this report, the Board of your Company comprises of 10 (Ten) Directors, out of which 8
(eight) Directors are Non-Executive Directors and 5 (Five) out of 8 (eight) Non-Executive Directors are
Independent Directors. All the Independent Directors are appointed on the Board of your Company in
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company has received
declarations from all the Independent Directors of your Company confirming that they meet the criteria
of Independence under sub-section (6) of section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(b) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
and their continued registration in the databank as maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs (“IICA”) in line with Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)
Rules, 2014. '

" Also, the Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in

Schedule IV of the Act and have confirmed that they are in compliance with the Code of Conduct for
Directors and Senior Management personnel formulated by the Company.

In the opinion of the Board, there has been no change in the circumstances, which may affect their status
as Independent Director of the Company and the Board is satisfied with the integrity, expertise,
experience including proficiency of all the Independent Directors on the Board.

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors
Pursuant to Schedule IV to the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations 1 {one) meeting of Independent

Directors dated February 17, 2025 was held during the year, without the attendance of non- independent
Directors and members of Management.

Directors Liable to Retire by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, not less than 2/3rd (Two-third) of the total number of
Directors (other than Independent Directors) shall be Directors liable to retire by rotation except
Independent Directors. Accordingly, pursuant to the Act read with Articles of Association of your
Company.

Further, Mr. Amit Gupta and Mr. Abhishek Munjal, Directors of the Company have been longest in
office.

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Amit Gupta & Mr. Abhishek Munjal will
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and have offered themselves for re-
appointment.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

a) AUDIT COMMITTEE

Your Company has a duly constituted Audit Committee in line with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015. During the
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23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

NOMINATTION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board of Directors has a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration to
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management of the Company. The policy lays down
the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Board members, Key
Managerial Personnel and employees. The objective of this policy is to attract and retain talent and to
strike the right balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate to the goals of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy is
available on Company’s website at www.heromotors.com.

BOARD AND DIRECTOR’S ANNUAL EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, Annual evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual
directors has been carried out. To facilitate the evaluation process, Board and its Committee’s self-
evaluation questionnaires were circulated to the Board members and respective Committee members
and an online link was also provided to the Board members and respective Committee members wherein
an option was provided to the Board and committee members to fill in the said questionnaires online.
The results of the Board Evaluation for the Financial year 2024-25 was discussed by the Independent
Directors and the Board at their respective meetings.

RISK MANAGEMENT

While the business risk associated with operating environment, ownership structure, Management,
System & Policy, the financial risk lies in Asset Quality, Liquidity, Profitability and Capital Adequacy.
Your company recognizes these risks and makes best effort to mitigate them in time and ensure that the
Company accepts risks based on the risk appetite of the organisation. Risk Management is also an
integral part of your Company’s business strategy.

Your Company’s management monitors and manages key financial risk relating to operations by
analysing exposures by degree and magnitude of risk. The risks imclude credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and inflation risk. Your Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of our risk management framework.

CREDIT RATING

Your Company has received a long-term rating of CRISIL A+/ Stable and the short-term ratmg of
CRISIL Al from CRISIL Limited.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

Your Company has an adequate system of internal controls commensurate with the nature of its business
and the size and complexity of its operations. These controls have been designed to provide a reasonable
assurance over effectiveness and efficiency of operations, prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
safeguarding assets from unauthorised use or losses, compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation of reliable financial
information. Your Company has an independent internal audit function supported by dedicated
outsourced teams. In order to supplement the Internal Control process, your Company has engaged the
services of M/s Grant Thormnton Bharat LLP, Chartered Accountants, to function as Internal Auditors.

“
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32.

33.

The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and cutgo
as per Section 134(3)}(m) forms part of this Board Report .

HUMAN RESOURCES

People remain the most valuable asset of your Company. Your Company follows a policy of building
strong teams of talented professionals. Your Company continues to build on its capabilities in getting
the right talent to support different products and geographies and is taking effective steps to retain the
talent. It has built an open, transparent culture to nurture this asset.

Your Company recognizes people as its most valuable asset and your Company has kept a sharp focus
on Employee Engagement. Your Company’s Human Resources is commensurate with the size, nature
and operations of your Company. As on March 31, 2025, your Company had 1105 permanent
employees on its payroll and engaged 410 contract 1ab0urers

Your Company’s human resource practices are aimed at recruiting talented individuals, ensuring
continuous development and addressing their gricvances, if any, in a timely manner. Your Company
schedule learning and development programs for its employees. Your Company has also recruited
engineering tramees through campus and direct recruitment. Your Company train employees in its
manufacturing operations, including machine utilization, operations flow, quality management and
work safety. Your Company also focus on employee engagement. In addition to compensation that
includes salary and allowances, our employees receive statutory benefits (including employees
provident fund, employees state msurance, pension, retirement and gratuity benefits, workman’s
compensation, maternity and other benefits, as applicable) and are covered by employee benefit policies
like group personal accident and group health (floater) msurance policies for employees and their
families.

Company’s Industrial Relations continued to be harmonious during the period under review.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITTION & REDRESSAL) ACT 2013 READ WITH RULES

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every women
employee working with Your Company. Your Company aiways endeavours to create and provide an
environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

Your Company has in place a policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace. The policy aims
at prevention of harassment of women employees as well as contractors and lays down the guidelines
for identification, reporting and prevention of sexual harassment. The Company has complied with
provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (the “ICC”) under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and ICC is
responsible for redressal of comnplaints related to sexual harassment and follows the guidelines provided
in the policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received by the Committee and disposed
of during the year under review:

Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year: Nil
Number of complaints disposed off during the year: NA
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38,
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40.

COMPLIANCE OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARD

During the financial year under review, your Company has duly complied with all the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY
AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

The Company is not required to make any-disclosure or reporting as there were no application made or
proceeding pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOAN FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the financial year 2024-25, no event has taken place that give rise to reporting of details w.r.t.
difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation
done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In terms of Section 134(5) of the Act, your directors hereby confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures; :

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

(c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets

of the Cotnpany and preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, on
a going concern basis;

(e) the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
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ANNEXURE-I
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

1. Objective
The Dividend Distribution Policy (“the Policy”) establishes the principles to ascertain amounts that
can be distributed to shareholders as dividend by the Company as well as enable the Company strike
balance between pay-out and retained earnings, in order to address future needs of the Company in
accordance with the provisions contained in Companies Act, 2013 (* Act”) read with the applicable
rules, regulation 43 A of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015
as applicable from time to time. However, this document does not solicit investments in the
Company’s equity shares.
The policy has been adopted by the Board of directors of Hero Motors Limited (“the Company™)
in its meeting held on August 12, 2024 and shall come into force for accounting periods beginning
from April 1, 2024.
Implementation
Definitions

1.1, Unless repugnant to the context:

“Act” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 including the Rules made thereunder, as amended from
time to time.

“Applicable Laws” shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015; as amended from time to time and such other act, rules or regulations which provides for the
distribution of Dividend.

“Company” shall mean Hero Motors Limited.

“Chairman” shall mean the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.

“Compliance Officer” shall mean the Compliance Officer of the Company appointed by the Board
of Directors pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. '

“Board” or “Board of Directors” shall mean Board of Directors of the Company.

“Dividend” shall mean Dividend as defined under Companies Act, 2013.

“MD & CEO” means Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

“Policy” shall mmean the Policy on Distribution of Dividend.

“SEBI Regulations™ shall mean the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 together with the circulars issued thereunder,

including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force.

1.2. Interpretation
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In this Policy, unless the contrary intention appears:

o the clause headings are for ease of reference only and shall not be relevant to interpretation;

s a reference to a clause number includes a reference to its sub-clauses;

s words in singular number include the plural and vice versa;

s words and expressions used and not defined in this Policy but defined in Companies Act, 2013
or rules made thereunder or Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or regulations
made thereunder or Depositories Act, 1996 shall have the meanings respectively assigned to
them in those Acts, Rules and Regulations.

2. Declaration of Dividend

Dividends may generally be recommended by the board of directors of the Company (“Board”)
once a year, after the announcement of the full year results and before the Annual General Meeting
(“AGM?) of the sharcholders, as may be permitted by the Act. The Board may also declare interim
dividends as may be permitted by the Act. Subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the
Company’s dividend payout will be determined based on available financial resources, investment
requirements and taking into account optimal sharcholder return.

The Company shall ensure compliance of provisions of Applicable Laws and this Policy in relation
to Dividend declared by the Company.

3. Category of Dividends

The Act provides for two forms of Dividend - Final & Interim. The Board shall have the power to
recommend final dividend to the shareholders for their approval in the Annual General meeting of
the Company. The Board shall have the absolute power to declare interim dividend during the
financial year, as and when they consider it fit.

Final Dividend - The final dividend is paid once for the financial year after the annual accounts are
prepared. The Board of the Company has the power to recommend the payment of final dividend
to the shareholders in a Annual General meeting. The declaration of final dividend shall be included
in the ordinary business items that are required to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting.

Interim Dividend - This form of dividend can be declared by the Board one or more times in a
financial year as may be deemed fit by it. The Board of the Company would declare an interim
dividend, as and when considered appropriate, in line with this Policy. Normally, the Board could
consider declaring an interim dividend after finalization of quarterly (or half yearly) financial
accounts. )

4. Parameters for declaration of Dividend

In line with the philosophy stated above in Clause 2, the Board of Directors of the Company shall
consider the following parameters for declaration of Dividend:
Financial Parameters / Internal Factors:

The Board of Directors of the Company would consider the following financial parameters before
declaring or recommending dividend to shareholders:

» Standalone net operating profit after tax;
Working capital requirements;
e Capital expenditure requirements;
Resources required to fund acquisitions and / or new businesses;

T o — e ———____]
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Cash flow required to meet contingencies;

Outstanding borrowings;

Accumulated Reserves including Retained Earnings;

Earnings outlook for next three to five years;

Long term investment proposed, capital restructuring, debt reduction;
Cost of raising funds from alternate sources;

o Crystallization of contingent liabilities of the Company;

s Any other relevant factors and material events; and

e Past Dividend Trends

External Factors

The Board of Directors of the Company would consider the following external factors before

declaring or recommending dividend to shareholders:

s Prevailing legal requirements, regulatory conditions or restrictions laid down under the
Applicable Laws including tax laws;

s Dividend pay-out ratios of companies in the same industry; and
Significant changes in macro-economic environment materially affecting the business in
which the Company is engaged in the geographies in which the Company operates.

5. Circumstances under which the shareholders may or may not expect Dividend

The decision regarding dividend payout is an important decision as it determines the amount of
profit to be distributed among shareholders and amount of profit to be retained in business. Hence,
the shareholders of the Company may expect dividend only if the Company is having adequate
profits after complying with all other statutory requirements under the Applicable Laws.

The shareholders of the Company may not expect Dividend under the following circumstances:

e Whenever it undertakes or proposes to undertake a significant expansion requiring higher
allocation of capital;

e Significantly higher working capital requirements adversely impacting free cash flow;

e Whenever it undertakes any acquisitions or joint ventures requiring significant allocation
of capital,;

s  Whenever it proposes to utilise surpius cash for buy-back of securities; or
In the event of inadequacy of profits or whenever the Company has incurred losses.

The Board of Directors of the Company may not declare or recommend dividend for a particular
period if it is-of the view that it would be prudent to conserve capital for the then ongoing or planned
business expansion or other factors which may be considered by the Board. The statement of the
Policy does not in any way restrict the right of the Board to use its discretion in the recommendation
of the Dividend to be distributed in the financial year and the Board reserves the right to depart
from the Policy as and when circumstances so warrant. Given the aforementioned uncertainties,
prospective or present investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any of the forward-
looking statements in the Policy, if any.

6. Entitlement and Timelines for Dividend Payments

o Entitlement: The dividend shall be paid to the sharcholders entitled to receive dividend on
the record date / book closure date as per applicable laws.

e Timelines: The payment of dividend shall be made within the time prescribed under the
Act or the rules made there under. Presently, dividend is to be paid within 30 days from the
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date of declaration by the Board in case of interim dividend and within 30 days from the
declaration by the shareholders in the AGM in case of final dividend.

7. Classes of Shares

The above parameters shall apply to all the classes of shares as prescribed under the Act subject to
the terms of issue of such class of shares.

8. TUtilization of retained earnings

The Company may utilize the retained earnings for:

i. Issue of fully paid bonus shares,

ii. Buy back of shares, restructuring events including mergers and acquisitions,

iii. General corporate purposes, including contingencies,

iv. Other general factors specified m this policy and for such other purposes as may be statutorily
permissible.

The Company may declare dividend out of the profits of the Company for the year or out of the
profits for any previous year or years or out of the free reserves, after having due regard to the
parameters laid down in this Policy.

9. Disclosure
The Company shall make appropriate disclosures as required under the SEBI Regulations.
10. General

This Policy would be subject to revision/amendment i accordance with the guidelines as may be
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Securities Exchange Board of India or such other
regulatory authority as may be authorized, from time to time, on the subject matter.

The Company reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend any of the provisions of this
Policy. In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued by the relevant
authorities, not being consistent with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this
Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under such
amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc.

o s ok e ofe s s o ofe ok o e e e e
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ANNEXURE-IV

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Your Company has taken various steps to implement an environmental and social management system to adopt a
systematic approach towards identifying, managing, monitoring, and reporting on environmental and social issues.

In alignment with your Company’s ESG ethos, your Company also endeavour to ensure that (i) your Company do
not employ or make use of forced labour or child labour, (ii) your Company pay wages which meet industry and
legal minimum wage requirements, (iii) your Company do not discriminate in terms of compensation, training,
opportunities and employee benefits, on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements,
including caste, creed, religion, language, ethnicity, disability, age, gender, sexual orientation, race, colour, marital
status or union organization or any other status protected by appropriate laws, and (iv) your Company provide
reasonable working conditions including a safe and healthy work environment, and clearly documented terms of
employment as defined / required under applicable labour laws and guidelines. Your Company has implemented
a grievance mechanism that is available to all its stakeholders. Your Company also have a zero tolerance policy
towards malpractices such as bribery, corruption, and fraud in our business.

One of the several commitments that continued to remain in force throughout the financial year was developing
business along with improvement in environmental performance to maintain a reliable and sustainable future.
During the course of the year, the manufacturing units of the Company have continued their efforts to reduce
energy consumption in all areas of its operations. These manufacturing units are constantly encouraged to improve
operational activities and maximizing production volumes and minimizing adverse impact on environment.
Systems and processes have been put in place for utilization of alternate sources of energy and monitoring of
energy consumption for all the units. Disclosure of information regarding Conservation of Energy, Research &
Development and Technology Absorption under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given below:

A. Energy Conservations:
Al. Company:

1. Herg Motors Limited - Ghagiabad Plant:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

s Continuous efforts are made to conserve energy, which are monitored from time to time.

e Optimal utilization of energy resources like power, fuel, and oil is ensured.

¢ Steps are taken to improve the power factor to the ideal situation i.e. 1.0 approx and overall energy
consumption,

s Auto switch-off exhaust fans installed in the Air Compressor Room using ambient temperature
controllers and ducts to exhaust hot air (savings: 6240 kWh/year).

e Installation of Variable Frequency Drives (“VFDs”) on weld shop exhaust blower motors (savings:
134400 kWh/year).

e Fuel optimizafion in DG set during power failures by laying a 33kV direct feeder cable from UPPCL
Dadri Substation to the Ghaziabad Plant (expected High Speed Diesel (“HSD”) fuel saving):

e —
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DG set run time, Pipe Natural Gas (PNG) and HSD
consumption Data

FY 23-24 | FY 24-25

DG Run Hrs. 488 97

HSD Consumption In Ltr 273002 37125

PNQ consumption In Standard 63549 10481
cubic meter

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy:
» Solar Power Generation:

* 8.2 MWp solar power plant set up at Mishrikh, Sitapur area.
= Receiving approximately 77.86143 lakh kWh per year from Amp Urja Pvt. Ltd.

Power Consumption in KWH

Particular FY23-24 FY 24-25
UPPCL Power(KWH) 1,49,39,775 | 1,83,69,150
Roof Top solar(KWH) 8,34,679 3,04,507
Total power Consumption in 1.57.74.454 | 1.91.73.657
plant(K WH) T e
Open access Solar power (KWH) 47.88,118 77,86,143

2. Hero Motors Limited - Mangli Plant:

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

s  Air leakage rectification and arresting, Trans air line mnstallation carried out to prevent energy losses,
resulting in power savings of 98541 kWh in FY 2024-25.

¢ Implementation of AC Variable frequency drives on various blower application such as Chrome, Dust
Collectors, Submersible pumps, resulting in savings of 142500 Kwh in FY 2024-25.

e  Optimizing steam distribution, trap recovery and HRU Unit modification results in saving of 127.5 Ton
Biomass at Boiler in FY2024-25.

(1i) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy:
Use of solar renewable source of energy, generating 1,31,567 units in FY 2024-25.

3. The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Rs. 1082 Lakhs.
A2. Energy Conservation- Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures:
Following measures taken:

1. Hewland — Maidenhead Facility

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-
a. Energy monitoring in place on manufacturing assets. The objective is to optimise machine utilisation and reduce
downtime. Since January 2025, we have reached 15% energy usage reduction, £56,000 in cost avoidance (INR
6,625,000 INR) and 11.6tCO2e¢ reduction. Qur carbon emissions have reduced by 18% compared to the same
period last year. :

- ]
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b. We are aiming to reach 380tCO2e at the end of the year on Scope 2 emissions, which will be 2.3% below SBTi
target requirement.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy:

a. Currently the energy is 100% sourced from the grid. Fuel mix is 86% nuclear and 14% renewable

b. We have the project to install solar panels on the facility’s roof, which will provide 12% of our annual electricity
usage.

2. Hewland — Southanmt Facility

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-

a. We are deploying energy monitoring process similar to Hewland Maidenhead site. The objective is to analyse
the energy usage of our testing equipment and highlight any opportunity to save energy on the various testing
assets. _

b. Motion sensors are in place in the following areas:-

- Kitchen, Washroom, Stores room, Testing monitoring room

¢. Use of bio diesel for electricity generators that feed testing assets.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy:
a. Currently the energy is 100% sourced from the grid.

3. HYM Drive Systems Private Limited

(i} The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-
a. Motion sensors installed in 80% of the facility area
b. The facility is 100% LED equipped

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilising alternate sources of energy:
Promoting usage of sunlight among the employees: applied anti-glare window film that diffuses light while still
allowing natural light to pass through, thus reducing the need for artificial light.

3. Hero Motors Thai Limited

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-
a. Continuous efforts are made to conserve energy, which are monitored from time to time.
b. Steps are taken to improve to overall energy consumption.
* Machine Wise Electricity Light Connection made in Hard Section to avoid excess use Electricity
(savings: 10560 kWh/year in FY -2024-25).
s Installed Auto Switch in Air Compressor to Auto Switch off the Compressor During Lunch Time
(savings: 11543 kWh/year in FY 2024 -25).

4. Spur Technologies Private Limited

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-

a. CO2 Gas consumption optimisation by installing Gas Optimisers with lesser orifice diameter on Various
welding stations results in 49500 kgs CO2 Gas reduction during FY2024-25

b. Implementation of AC Variable frequency drives on various blower application such as Dust Collector, Fume
Extractors resulting in savings of (32400) Kwh in FY 2024-25,
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B. Technology absorption:
B1- Company:

1. Hero Motors Limited — Gears and Transmission:

(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption:

a. 100% Dry Hobbing implemented, eliminating oil usage and spillage.

b. Introduction of new gear manufacturing technology — Spline Rolling for splines with DIN Class 7 Accuracy.
c. Implementation of OD Superfinishing technology to achieve stringent surface roughness requirements.

d. Adoption of Optical Measuring technology (Italian or1g1n) for advanced inspection of linear and diametrical
parameters.

e. Development of a Business Management Portal (BMP) for project documentation control, covering APQP,
PPAP, shopfloor documents, drawings, ECNs/ECRs, and RF(Qs.

(ii} The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

a. Monthly cutting oil consumption reduced by 2,500 litres, leading to cost savings and environmental benefits.
b. In-house capability to manufacture complex shaft splines with enhanced quality control.

¢. Improved surface roughness quality, enabling production of components with stringent specifications
internally,

d. Enhanced accuracy and efficiency in inspection through optical measuring technology.

¢. Streamlined project documentation, deviation control, and better monitoring through BMP.

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year): NA

2. Hero Motors Limited- Bike Power Train

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption:-

a. Developed Auto Noise testing machine by finalization of Noise specification jointly with customer and 3rd Party
Noise testing Machine Supplier- Ono sokki

b. Developed leak testing machine to detects hub shell leakage from adaptor side from Japan based leak testing
machine supplier-Cosmo

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

a. Buro-1 Packaging implemented along with deletion of VCI bags from hub Packaging

b. Received 90% Recycle content certifications in Aluminium Hub & Cover ingots froin Intertek

c. Developed 5 planet assembly Cityv3 Hubs in which carbon footprint is reduced compared to its predecessor
d. Develop TRv3 Hubs in which we are Transitioning portfolio of hubs over to 40T towards a value-optimized
portfolio of products, a simple & robust extended supply chain

e. Improved HD model End of line straight pass by reduction in tolerances of part critical parameters

f. Traction ring development carried out at local supplier

g. CTv2 hub & cover developed at alternate supplier-Oswal for BOM cost reduction

h. Semni-automatic coating line set up at our Supplier-KD because of which coating defects reduced by 10%

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year): NA

3. Hero Motors Linmited — Alloys and Metallics:

(i} the efforts made towards technology absorption:-
a. Introduction of CMT welding technology in alloy fabricated parts
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b. Development and implementation of Link Assembly for Mono Shock Absorber in the 160cc—400cc 2-wheeler
premium cominuter segment.

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

a. Product Improvement: Enhanced welding quality, reduced thermal distortion, and improved mechanical
properties in alloy frames and tubular asseinblies.

b. Product Development: Successfully developed and commercialized link assemblies for mono shock absorbers,
improving stability and cornering in preinium commuter motorcycles.

(lii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year): Yes

(2) the details of technology imported: Swaging Machine for Handlebar parts.

(b) the year of import: Financial Year 2023-24

(¢) whether the technology been fully absorbed: Yes, successfully absorbed and implemented in SOP production.
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not Applicable

4. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Rs 1,414 Lakhs

B2: Technology Absorption- Subsidiary and Joint Venture:
Following measures taken:
1. Hewland Engineering Limited

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption- the Company has contributed significantly to
development of*

— New variants of Transmission systems for performance automotive & defence vehicles

— Design solutions for electrification in commercial and aerospace seginents

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, prodnct development or import
substitution;
— Improved transmission products used in motorsport market segments and Light commercial vehicle
segments (L3/L5)
— Mass market transmission designs cater to OEMs, focusing on cost-effective, innovative technology for
mid-niche volume applications.
— Developed customized transmissions and successfully validated for E-VTOL applications

(iii} in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year):

(a) the details of technology imported: During the year, the Company imported an advanced grinding asset
equipped with the CORE control system (for efficiency, remote support, and customizable access), E Type wheel
head (for better component accessibility), C-axis profile grinding (for complex geoinetries), and advanced thread
grinding capabilities (for high precision and strength). The asset also facilitates reduction in work centres,
optimization of manpower requirements due to increased departmental efficiency, and improvement in energy
efficiency.

(b) the year of import: Financial Year 202425

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: Yes, the technology has been fully absorbed and integrated into
operations,

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof; - Not applicable
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2. HYM Drive Systems Private Limited

(i) the efforts made towards technology ahsorption:-

a. New PCB Design with Inbuilt temperature sensor placed on coils of Hub Motor, Patent filed

b. Cassette Interface designed for Hub Motor and New Z Cassette motor launched

‘c. Value addition and Value Engineering (VA-VE) Program executed for running Hub motor Model X+ to
lower down BOM price without compromise on quality

d. Design and Development of first 3 wheeler Motor for India L3 Market

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

a. Product Improvement, Real time temperature measurement of Motor windings to avoid overtemperature and
burn out of the Motor

b. Product Development, New SKU added in the portfolio to cater European customer requirements of 8-10
Speed cassette eBikes

c. Cost reduction, New Hub Motor SKU Model X-Value launched at lower price point with reduction of INR
540 for Indian eBike Market

d. Product Development, New Platform added for product diversification in company’s portfolio to cater L3
Market

3. Spur Technologies Private Limited

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption:-
Adoption of Tube Swaging technology for ferrous & non-ferrous tubular handlebars.

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution: :
Cost Reduction & Import Substitution: Tube swaging provided an efficient alternative to hydroforming, resulting
in cost optimization and improved quality & aesthetics, reducing dependency on imported technologies.

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the heginning of
the finaucial year):

(a) the details of technology imported: Swaging Machine for Handlebar parts.

(b) the year of import: Financial Year 2023-24

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: Yes, successfully absorbed and implemented in SOP production.
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: Not Applicable

4. Hero EDU Systems Private Limited

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption:-
a. Development of Cell Balancing BMS for European market along with Supplier , this helps in Prolonging
battery Life and Prevents warranty issues.
b. Motor Temperature sensing and Derating logic for Prolonging the life of motor
c. Diagnostic and Error codes and it’s integration with Service tool for quick e-bike check
d. Over the Air software update of E-bike Components which prevents user to visit Dealer for software update
. Development of ICAT certified E-Powertrain for L3 System
f. Development of L3 controller with Motor protection logic based on internal motor temperature.
g. Deployment of Project management tool ASANA which helps in Project Tracking and Manhour Logging to
improve working efficiency
h. Installation of E-bike Vehicle Dyno for Validation as per EN Norms.

(ii) the henefits derived like product improvemeut, cost reductlou, product development or import
substitution:

0 ___ o0 _ @ e
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. of the committee and the other members of the committee shall recuse themselves on the
discussions related to related party transactions;

Explanation: The term "related party transactions” shall have the same meaning as provided in Clause

2(zc) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and/or the applicable Accounting Standards and/or the Comnpanies

Act, 2013. '

Reviewing, at least on a quarterly basis, the details of related party transactions entered into by the

Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approvals given;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate Ioans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

Appointment of Registered Valuer under Seetion 247 of the Companies Act, 2013;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal

control systems; )

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and

frequency of intemal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting

the matter to the Board,

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well

as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

Approval of appointment of chief financial officer (i.e., the whole-titne finance director or any other person

heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience

and background, etc. of the candidate;

ensuring that an information system audit of the internal systems and process 1s conducted at least once in

two years to assess operational risks faced by the Company;

Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the

subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower

including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into force of this
provision.

Formulating, reviewing and making recommendations to the Board to amend the Terins of Reference of

Audit Comnmittee from time to time;

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns.or grievances;

Reviewing compliance with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as inay be amended from time to time, at least once in a financial year

and verifying that the systems for internal control under the said regulations are adequate and are operating

effectively,

Investigating any activity within its terms of reference, seeking information from any employee, obtaining

outside legal or other professional advice and securing attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if

it considers necessary;

To consider the rationale, cost, benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgaination

etc. on the Company and its shareholders and provide comments;

Reviewing:

i, Any show cause, demand, prosecution and penalty notices against the Company or its Directors
which are materially important including any correspondence with regulators or government
agencies and any published reports which raise material issues regarding the Coinpany’s financial
stateinents or accounting policies;

ii. Any material default in financial obligations by the Company;

. Any significant or important matters affecting the business of the Company; and

Carrying out any other functions as inay be required / 1nandated and/or delegated by the Board as per the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Listing Regulations, uniform listing agreements and/or any
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benchmarks; and

(iii)  remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate
to the working of the Company and its goals.

Formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on diversity of Board,;

ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment

and removal and specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its committees

and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee or by an independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance. The

Company shall disclose the remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria in its annual report;

Extending or continuing the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of

performance evaluation of independent directors;

Recommending to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management;

Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters, including the

compensation strategy; .

Determining the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including

pension rights and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such directors;

Recommending the remuneration, in whatever form, payable to non-executive directors and the senior

management personnel and other staff (as deemed necessary);

Reviewing and approving compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current Indian

market in accordance with applicable laws;

Administering, monitoring and formulating detailed terms and conditions of the Employees Stock Option

Scheme(s) of the Company;

Framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no violation, as amended from time to time,

of any securities laws or any other applicable laws in India or overseas, including:

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2013,
as amended; and

(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices
relating to the Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, as amended;

Performing such other functions as may be delegated by the Board and/or prescribed under the SEBI

Listing Regulations, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and

Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, the Companies Act, each as amended or other applicable law or by any

regulatory authority and performing such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the

performance of its duties;

Performing such functions as are required to be performed by the Compensation Committee under the

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,

2021;

Administering the employee stock option scheme/plan approved by the Board and shareholders of the

Company in accordance with the terms of such scheme/plan (“ESOP 2022”) including the following:

(i) Determining the eligibility of employees to participate under the ESOP Scheme;

(ii) Determining the quantum of option to be granted under the ESOP Scheme per employee and in
aggregate; :

(i)  Date of grant;

(iv) Determining the exercise price of the option under the ESOP Scheme;

) The conditions under which option may vest in employee and may lapse in case of termination of
employment for misconduct;

(vi)  The exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option and that option would
lapse on failure to exercise the option within the exercise period;

(vii)  The specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested option in the event
of termination or resignation of an employee;

(viii)) The right of an employee to exercise all the options vested in him at one time or at various points
of time within the exercise period;

(ix)  Re-pricing of the options which are not exercised, whether or not they have been vested if stock
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No meeting of Risk Management Committee was held during the financial year 2024-25.

Terms of Reference for the Risk Management Committee

The role of the Risk Management Committee shall, inter alia, include the following

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
63]
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To formulate a detailed risk management policy covering risk across functions and plan integration

through training and awareness programimes which shall include:

@) A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced by the Tisted
entities, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, sustainability (particularly
environmental, social and governance related risks), information, cyber security risks or any other
risk as may be determined by the Risk Management Commmittee;

(i1) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal control of identified
risks; and

(iti)  Business continuity plan.

To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks

associated with the business of the Company;

To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including evaluating the adequacy

of risk management systems;

To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including by considering

the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

To set out risk assessment and minimization procedures and the procedures to inform the Board of the

same;

To frame, implement, review and monitor the risk management policy for the Company and such other

functions, including cyber security;

To review the status of the compliance, regulatory reviews and business practice reviews;

To approve the process for risk identification and mitigation;

To decide on risk tolerance and appetite levels, recognizing contingent risks, inherent and residual risks

including for cyber security;

To monitor the Company’s compliance with the risk structure. Assess whether curtent exposure to the

risks it faces is acceptable and that there is an effective remedlatlon of non-compliance on an on-going

basis; '

To approve major decisions affecting the risk profile or exposure and give appropriate directions;

To consider the effectiveness of decision making process in crisis and emergency situations;

To balance risks and opportunities;

To generally, assist the Board in the execution of its responsibility for the governance of risk;

To keep the Board informed about the nature and content of its d1scu551ons recommendations and actions

to be taken;

The appointment, removal and tenus of remuneration of the chief risk officer (if any) shall be subject to

review by the Risk Management Committee;

To review and assess the risk management system and policy of the Company from time to time and

recommend for amendment or modification thereof;

To implement and monitor policies and/or processes for ensuring cyber security;

To review and recommend potential risk involved in any new business plans and processes;

To review the Company’s risk-reward performance to align with the Company’s overall policy objectives;

To menitor and review regular updates on business continuity;

The Risk Management Committee shall have powers to seek information from any employee, obtain

outside legal or other professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it

considers necessary; '

The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees, in instances where

there is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the framework laid down by the board of

directors;

To advise the Board with regard to risk management decisions in relation to strategic and operational

matters such as corporate strategy; and
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) Performing such other activities as may be delegated by the Board or specified/ provided under the
Companies Act, 2013 or by the SEBI Listing Regulations or statutorily prescribed under any other law or
by any other regulatory authority and performing such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate
for the performance of its duties.”

B. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The forthcoming Annual General Meeting is scheduled to be held on Thursday, September 25, 2025, at 03.00 P.M
through video conferencing deemed to be held at Registered office of the Company. The details in respect of last
three Annual General Meetings are given in table below.

Financial ~ Venue Date & Time Special Resolution passed
Year
2021-22 Video December 30, 2022 -
Conferencing | at 12.00 p.m. , _
2022-23 Video September 30, 2023 Appointment of Mr. Kulbir Singh (DIN:
Conferencing | at 01.00 p.m. 00204829) as an Independent Director
2023-24  Video July 26, 2024 at a. Approval of the revision in the
Conferencing | 03.00 p.m. remuneration of Mr. Amit Gupta,
Managing Director & CEO of the
Company

b. Approval of the continuation of Mr.
Kulbir Singh (DIN: 00204829) as an

Independent Director of  the
Company

c. Approval of the Investment in
Subsidiaries

d. Approval of the increase in Borrowing
Limits of the Company under Section
180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013

e. Approval of the increase in Charge
Creation Limits of the Company under
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2013

f.  Appointment of Mr. Andrew Charles
Palmer, as an Independent Director of
the Company.

g. Approval of the Initial Public Offering
of Equity Shares of the Company

C. RESOLUTIONS PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT
No resolutions have been passed by the Company through Postal Ballot during the last three financial years.
D. VIGIL MECHANISM
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy which provides a vigil mechanism for dealing with instances of fraud

and mismanagement. The Whistle Blower Policy has also been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.heromotors.com.

E. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details with regard to Related Party Transactions are provided in the Boards’ report under the section “Related
Party Transaction”.
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. DESIGNATED & EXCLUSIVE EMAIL-IDS

The Company has designated the following email ids exclusively for investor servicing. All investors or other

stakeholders may lodge their queries with the Company at investorrelations@heromotors.com.

. ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

i. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Day & Date: Thursday, September 25, 2025
Time: 03.00 P.M.
Venue: Through Video Conferencing

ii. FINANCIAL YEAR: I* April to 31% March

iii.  FINAL DIVIDEND: The Board of Directors have not recommended any Dividend for the financial year
2024-25

iv. ~ UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND: No amount of unclaimed dividend is lying in the accounts of the Company
as on date of this report

v.  MANUFACTURING FACILITIES:
The Company manufacturing locations are situated at:

G.B. Nagar & Hero EDU Facility — Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh
Mangli Facility - Ludhiana, Punjab

HYM & Spur Facility -, Ludhiana, Punjab

Thai Facility - Samut Prakan, Thailand

Maidenhead, United Kingdom

W -

vi.  ADDRESS FOR INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
KFIN Technologies Limited

301, The Centrium

3rd Floor, Lal Bahadur Shastri Road,
Nav Pada Kurla (West)

Mumbai 400070

Or

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Esha Gupta

Corporate Office: 7th Floor, Max Square, Jaypee Wishtown, Sector 129, Noida, -
Uttar Pradesh, India - 201304

vii. REGISTERED OFFICE:

Hero Motors Limited
Hero Nagar G. T. Road, Ludhiana, Ludhiana, Punjab, India, 141003

. . ___ . ___._ . ___.____ .. _ __ __ _______________________________ ___________ __ _ _ ____]
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Form AOC-1

ANNEXURE- VI

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associatecompanies
or joint ventures

Part “A”; Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in lakhs)

Sl. |Particulars Details
No.
1. |[CIN/any other registration 010556410764|U34100UP2022PTC 584792 U35990DL2014P | U35999PB2022
" [number of subsidiary company 0 175717 TC074086 PTCO055274
2. |Name of the subsidiary Hero Motors Hero EDU Hewland Spur HYM Drive
Thai Limited | Systems Private | Eugineering Techuologies |Systems Private
. Limited Limited Private Limited Limijted
3. [The date since when subsidiary | 07.07.2021 27.12.2022 20.02,2023 29.11.2023 18.02.2022
was acquired ' '
4. [Provisions pursuant to which Section Section 2(87)(ii) |Section 2(87)(ii)| Section 2(87)(ii) |Section 2(87)(ii)
the company has become a 2(87)(i)
subsidiary (Section 2(87)(i)/
Section 2(87)(ii))
5. Reporting period for the N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
subsidiary  concemned,  if
different from the holding
company’s reporting period
6. [Reporting currency  and | THB 2.515 N.A. GBP 110.70 N.A. N.A.
[Exchange rate as on the last date
of the relevant financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries
7. |Share capital 590.00 1,750.00 20,613 3,841.00 3200.00
8. Reserves & surplus -59.50 -108.86 -244,038 -832.59 -1,087.62
9. [Total assets 4,096.24 4,623.70 11,182,062 4.440.71 4,278.34
10. Total Liabilities 3,565.76 2,982.56 11,405,487 1,432.29 2,163.95
11.Investments - - Nil 5.00 -
12.[Tymover 863.86 374.69 148,27,453 2,544.32 309.29
13. [Profit/ (I.oss) before taxation 27.11 -96.18 1,406,861 -306.44 -536.10
14. [Provision for taxation - -13.06 142,071 -182.21 113.32
15. Profit (Loss) after taxation 27.11 -83.12 1,264,790 -124.23 -649.42
16. [Proposed Dividend - - Nil - -
17. [Extent of shareholding (in 100% 100% 51% 100% 90%
percentage)

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: Munjal STP Industries Private Limited

2. Names of subsidiaries whicli liave been liquidated or sold during the year: NA

- __________._. ... . .. ...
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QAY/

- Chartarad Accountants
7th Floor Building 10
Tower B
DLF Cyber City Complex
DLF City Phase Il
Gurugram-122 002
Haryana, India

Tel: +91 124 679 2000
Fax: +91 124 679 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Hero Motors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financlal Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accomnpanying standalone financial statements of Hero Motors Limited (the “Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended
on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a surnmary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS”) and other accounting princlples generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and Its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes In equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SA:’s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibillties under those Standards are further
described In the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethlcai requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence obtalned by us in sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standaione financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

+ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the board report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
standalone financial statements and our auditor’'s report thereon

+  Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

+ In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materaily misstated.

+ If. based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilitles of Management and Board of Directors for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financtal performance induding other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accopted in Indla, including Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responslbility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financlal Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that Includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a materlal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basls of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaterment
resulting from fraud is higher than for cne resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omisslons, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

« Obtain an understanding of internat financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financlal controls with reference to
standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disciosures made by the management.

gkina
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+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, Including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achleves falr presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financlal statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes It probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financlal statements may be infiuenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identlfied
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal financial controls
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for not complying with the requirement of audit trail
as stated in (1)(vi) below.

t) The Standslone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account,

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) ©On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modification/s relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, isfare
as stated in paragraph {b) above.

76



Deloitte
askins

9)

h)

B

Sells

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standazlone financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A", Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditoi’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

in our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending ltigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements - Refer Note 41 (a) to the standalone finandal statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses-Refer Note 63 to the standalone financial statement.

iii.  There no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company-Refer Note 52 to the standalone financlal statement. .

iv. (8) The Managernent has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share prernium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectiy lend or invest in other
persons or entitles identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries. {(Refer note 44 of the Standalone Financial Statermnents)

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. {Refer note
44 of the Standalone Financial Statements)

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe

that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and
{b} above, contain any rmaterial misstaternent.
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v.  The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the
year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, the Company, has used an accounting software for maintaining its
books of account and in absence of management's evaluation of the audit trail feature in the
accounting software, we are unable to comment on the audit trail feature of the said software and
whether there were any instances of the audit trail feature been tampered with (refer Note 68 of
the standalone financial statements),

As audit trail feature was not enabled for the year ended March 31, 2025, reporting under Rule
11 (g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention Is not applicable.

2. As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified In
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

For Deloitte Haskins 8 Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

{Firm’s Registration No. 117366 - 100018)

Rajesh Kimar Agarwal
{Partner)
{Membership No. 105546)

UDIN:25105546BMLAKM6991

Place: Gurugram
Date: August 12, 2025
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1(9) under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 ef Section 143 ef the Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Hero Motors
Limited (the "Company”} as at March 31, 2025 In conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
staternents of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to ‘standalone financial statements based on “the internal control with reference
to standalone financial staternents criteria established by the Company considering the essential cornponents of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemnal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internai financlal controls that were operating effectively for ensurlhg the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financlal information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10} of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether adequate internal financiai controls
with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial staternents included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference o standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internat control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internat financial controls with reference to standalone financlal statements,

Meaning ef Internal Financlal Controls with reference to standalone financlal statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generaliy accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial controi with reference to standaione financial staternents inciudes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairiy refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactlons are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of managerment and directors of the company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internai Financial Controls with reference to standalone financiai statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
contro! with reference to standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate Internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and
such intemat financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, based on “the criteria for internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India”.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 11736 100018}
e“"“""’\‘k’ N
.'f :-? / cmd\‘”\
giwai‘Mccmﬂ~ i5 ; Rajesh Kurffar Aggrwal
W S {Partner)
\\9 (Membership No. 105546}
DIN: 25105546BMLAKME991

Place: Gurugram
Date: August 12, 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF HERC MOTORS LIMITED

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of
even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

®

In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment, and Intangible Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant, and Equipment, capital work in progress and refevant details of right-of-use-

assets,
{b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particuiars of intangible assets

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and
right-of-use assets so as to cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, no such assets were due for physical verification during the year. Since no physical
verification of property, plant and equipment were due during the year, the question of reporting on material
discrepancles noted on verification does not arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on
the examination of the sale deed and an agreermnent to sell provided to us, we report that, the title deed,
comprising all the immovable property of land which is freehold, (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disdosed
in the financlal statements is held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date, except for the
following:

Amount in ¥ lacs

Description Gross = Carrying Heldin Whether Period held Reason for not
of Carrying Value Name promoter, indicate Being held in
immovable Value of director or range, name of
thelr relative where Company
orem lo ee a ro riate
Land
measuring
0.67 acres Agreement to Seil
along with has been entered
Build up between the
area Held in the parties and
(5938.17 ge;lc;s name of Hero tAopmMgr 203214 possession with the
Sq.Ft.) 228.00 228.00 U¥nited Cycdles Limited 2025 ' company. The
located  at {Shareholder) company is in the
Focal Point, process of getting
Village 8, it registered in its
Mangli, own name.
Ludhlana,
Punjab

D. The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets) and

intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at 315 March
2025 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended
in 2016) and rules made thereunder.
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(ii} In respect of Inventory:

{(a) The inventories except for goods in transit and inventory lying with third parties, were physically verified
during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and based on information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. For stocks held with third parties
at the year end, written confirmation have been obtained and in respect of goods in transit, the goods have
been received subsequent to the year end. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories, when compared with the books
of account.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the guarterly retums or statements comprising stock statements, book debt statements, creditors
statements, filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the unaudited books of account
of the Company of the respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been observed.

(i) The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted foans, unsecured, to its
subsidiaries and other parties, durlng the year, in respect of which

a) The Company has provided loans and stood guarantee during the year and details of which are given below:

Amount In ¥ lacs

Particulars Loans Guarantee
A. A re ate amount ranted / rovided durin the ear
~ Wholly owned Subsidiary 625.73 4 599.75
- Subsidiar 1,959.80 2 744,61
- Others 125,55
B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in res ect of above cases*
- Whollv owned Subsidiar 4 460.72 6 189.75
- Subsidia . 2 330,90 2 744.61
- Others 247.67

* The amounts reported are at gross amounts, without considering provisions made.

b} In our opinion, the investments made, guarantees provided and the terms and conditions of the above
mentioned loans granted and guarantees provided by the Company during the year, are in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

c} Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayments or receipt of principal amounts and interest have been regular as
per stipulation.

d} According to infermation and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, In
respect of loans provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the
halance sheet date.

e) No iocan granted by the Company which has fallerr due during the year, has been renewed or extended or
frash loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties,

f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, the
Company has not granted any loans without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year,
Hence, reporting under clause {lii}{f} is not applicable.

{iv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of
section 185 or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.
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(V)

{vi)

(vii)

(viii)

()

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit or
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companles Act, 2013 and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2025 and
therefore the provisions of clause 3{v) of the Order Is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148{1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant
to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit} Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government
for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion
that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have,
however, not made a detalled examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are

accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance,

Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutery dues applicable to the Company have
generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities In alf cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Income-
tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of
more than six months from the date they become payable.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us, other than the amount reported below, there are

no dues of Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, Excise Duty and Customs Duty which have not been
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authoritles on account of any dispute except in the following
matter where decision has been given In favour of the Company but the department has preferred appeal

at higher level:
{Amount in ¥ lacs)

Name of the | Nature of | Forum where dispute | Perlod te which | Amount
Statute Dues is pending the amount relates
Central Excise Act, . Special appeal has been _

1944 ' Excise Duty filed in Supreme Court 2020-21 . _4_74'82

were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us, In respect of borrowings:

2) In our opinion, the Company has not defauited in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the

payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year,

b} The Company has not been declared wiilful defauiter by any bank or financial institution or government or

any government authority.

¢) To the best of our knowledge and belief, In our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applled

by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis

have, prima facle, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any

funds from any entity or persen on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries during the year.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries
companies.
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(x}

In respect of issue of Securities:

a) The Company has not issued any of its securities {including debt instruments} during the year and hence

reporting under clause {x}{a) of the order is not applicable.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

{xi)

(xIN)

(x1i1)

{xiv)

(xv)

{xvi)

{xvil}

(xviii)

{xix)

convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause {x){b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

In respect of Fraud:

a)

b}

)

a)

b)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the year,

To the best of cur knowledge, no report under sub-section {12} of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed In Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the vear and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistie blower complaints received by the Company
during the year {and upto the date of this report).

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to Information and explanations given to us, the Company is in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements etc, as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

In respect of Internal Audit:

In our opinlon, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

We have considered the .internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and draft of the
Internal audit reports Issued after the balance sheet date, for the period under audit.

In ¢ur opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors during the year and hence, provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Hence, reporting under ciause {xvi}(a), (b) and {c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of
the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabllities
existing.at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
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any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities faliing due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that, the Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provisions of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not
applicable for the vear.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartereg Accountants

' ,- {Partner)
00\-/5\/ (Membership No. 105546)

Place: Gurugram
Date: August 12, 2025
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Hero Motors Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN : U29299PB1998PLC039602

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, uniess otherwise stetad)

Particulars

A. Assets
1. Non-current assets
- {a} Property, plant and equipment
{B) Right of use assets
(¢) Capital work in progress
{d} Intangible assets
{e) Intangible assets under development (IAUD)
{f) Financial assets
{i) Investments
(ii} Loans
(iii) Other financial assets
{g) Non current tax asset (Net)
(h) Other-non current assets

Total Non-current assets

2. Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial assets
(i} Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
{iif} Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii} above
(v} Loans
{vi} Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

Total current assets
Total assets

B. Equity and liabilitles
1. Equity
(a} Equity share capital
{b} Other equity

Total Equity
2. Liabilitles
Non- current liabllities
{a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Others financial liabilities
{b) Provisions
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Total Non- current labliities

86

Note
No.

~ v wh

10

13
14
15

16

11
17
18
19
12
13
15

20
21

22

24
26
28

As at
March 31, 2025

33,080.38
688.17
2,756.96
180.27
95.53

10,154.45
3,402.01
613.58
1,251.39
614.51

52,837.25

14,033.41

216.02
18,003.38
746.08
3,800.00
3,637.28
3,007.24
2,525.23

45,968.64
98 805.89

35,738.45
8,058.62

43,797.07

8,905.82
731.50
1.15
2,027.31
1,319.90

12,985.68

As at
March 31, 2022

23,603.05
776.02
4,947.01
225.91
1.34

7,480.45
7,995,99
1,268.16

903.50
1,595.20

48,796.63

13,895.37

667.56
17,731.38
2,915.31
4,600.00
1,917.80
2,058.24
3,232.61

47,018.27
95 814.90

35,357.84
5,180.,76

40,538.60

7,439.52
769.31
2.14
1,719.28
1,002.82

10,933.07

o'oRs
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Hero Motors Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN : U29299PB1998PLC039602

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Current iiabiiities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings
(ii} Lease liabilities
{iii} Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro
and small enterprises

- Total cutstanding dues of creditors
other than micro and small
enterprises

{iv) Other financial [fabilities
{b} Other current liabilities
{c) Provisions

Total current liabilities
Total equity and ilabilities

Summary of material accounting policies

Note
No.

23
27

24
25
26

2

As at
March 31, 2025

23,787.51
48.00

2,168.51

9,206.04

5,981.11
616.13
215,84

42,023.14
98 805.89

As at
March 31, 2024

21,856.45
33.25

1,662.59

10,128.42

9,865.20
597.98
199.34

44,343.23
95,814.90

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standalone financial statements 1-63

As per our report of even date attached
For Del "tte Haskins & Selis LLP

Charte ed nccountants

(Fir ' Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

e

Rajesh umar Agarwal
{Partner)
(Membership No. 105546)

Piace: Gurugram
Date: August 12, 2025

For and on behaif of Board of Directors of

Hero Motors Limited

Abhishek Munjal
Whole Time Director
(DIN: 05355274}

Place: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025

¥

Utkarsh Sanghi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025
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pta
nacing Director and
Chig' Exectutive Officer
(DIN: 02997032)
Place: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025

W

Esha Gupta
Company Secretary
M. No. A23608
Place: Noida

Date: August 12, 2025



Hero Motors Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN : U25299PB1998SPLC039602

(Amount In ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
I Revenue from operations 30 89,787.05 89,119.88
II Other income 31 1,913.15 2,056.16
III Total income (I+1I) 91 700.20 91 176.04
IV Expenses
{a) Cost of materials consumed 32 57,631.56 58,894.53
{b) Changes in inventeries of finished goods, wark in progress
and stock in trade 33 744.88 295.03
{c) Empioyee benefits expense 34 9,566.80 10,909.04
(d) Finance costs 35 2,897.68 2,566.62
(e} Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 1,893.59 1,489.40
(f) Other expenses 38 15,658.45 14,605.31
Total expenses 88 392.96 88 759.93
V  Profit before tax (III-IV} 3 307.29 2 416.11
VI Tax expense: 29
{a) Current tax 621.46 {64.16)
(b} Deferred tax 324.74 583.28
Total tax expense 946.20 519.12
VII Profit for the year {(V-V1} 2 361.04 1 896.99
VIII Other comprehensive income
(A} (i) Items that wili not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a} Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans {30.44) 93.85
(i) Income tax on ftems that will not be reclassified to profit ot loss 7.66 (23.62)
Other comprehensive income for the vear, net of tax 22.78 70,23
IX Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2 338.26 1967.22
X Earnings per share: {face value ¥ 10 per share) 40
1) Basic (amount In ¥) 0.63 0.51
2) Diluted (amount in F) 0.62 0.50
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these standafone financial statements 1-68
As per our report of even date attached
For Deloltte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Charte ed ccountants Hero Moters Limited
(Firm’ Regi tration No. 117366W/W-100018)
Rajesh Icuﬁr\gamal Abhishek Munjal Gupta
e fo oo s bre ond
O .
(Membership No. 105546) 01 8( > (DIN: 05355274) (DIN: 02997032)
Place: Gurugram o - Place: Noida Place: Noida
Pate: August 12, 2025 ﬁ - Date: August 12, 2025 Date: August 12, 2025
S g

et 4

Utkarsh Sanghi Esha Gupta

Chief Financial Officer g"’;”g"% _fggs"‘“a v
xin s Place: Noida Place: Nolda
oo & Date: August 12, 2025 Date: August 12, 2025
N S
2 Chartersd
= Accountsnis ¢
- [
® A
Q * .3
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Haro Motors Limited

Standalone statemaent of changes In equity for the year March 31, 2025

CIN : U29299PB1998PLCO39602
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Shara Capital

As at April 1, 2023

Chanqges during the year

As at March 31, 2024

Changes during the year (Refer note 20}
As at March 31, 2025

B. Other Equity

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2023
Profit for the ear
Remeasurement of the benefit plan, net of tax
effect
Payr<:: of Dividend
Credit te equity for equity-settled share-
based payments
(Refer Note 37
Bafance as at March 31, 2024
Profit for the year
Remeasurement of the benefit plan, net of tax
effect
Payment of Dividend
Credit to equity for equity-settied share-
based payments
{Refer Note 37
Share based payment reserve on shares
excercised
Balance as at March 31, 2025

Semmary of materal accounting policies

Security
premium

55,439.61

55,439.61

2,319.06
57,758.67

35,357.84

35,357.84
380.61
3573845

Equity Share based Damaerger Retained
component payment adjustment earnings
of CCPS raserve deficit account
2,097.19 1,334.98 (75,279.98) 16,611.27
- - - 1 896.99
- - - 70.23
- - - (935.70
- 3,948.17 - -
2,097.19 5,281.15 (75,279.98) 17,642.79
2,361.04
{22.78)
{942.05)
1,481.65
{2,315.06)
2,097.19 4,443.74 {75,279.98) 19,039.00
2

The accompanying notes form an integrat part of these standalone financial statements 1-68

As per o r raport of even date attached
ForD oi Haskins & Sells LLP
Charte ed A ountants

{Firm is ation No. 117366W/W-100018)
Rajesh . ar garwal
(Partner) N

Membership No. 105546)
Place : Gurugram
Date: August 12, 2025

Total other equity

203.07
1 896.99

70.23
935.70

3,946.17

5,180.76
2,361.04

(22.78)
(942.05)

1,481.65

8,058.62

For and on bahalf of Board of Direc s
Hero Motors Limited

Abhighek Munjal
Whole Time Director

(DIN: 05355274)

5

Place: Noida
T Date: August 12, 2025

R

Utkarsh Sanghi
Chief Financial Qfficer
Ptace: Noida

Date: August 12, 2025
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Esha Gupta
Company Secretary
M. No. AZ23608
Place: Noida

Date: August 12, 2025



Hero Motors Limited

Standalotie Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended March 31. 2025
CIN : U29299PE1998PLLCOS9602

{Amount in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particuiars

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adfustments for:

Depreciation and amortization

Interest cost

QOther borrowing cost

Nen-cash emplovee share based payments

Provision / sundry balances written back

Unrealized foreign exchange loss gain

Loss / (profit) on sale of property plant and equipment

Rental income

Cther ngn operating income

Profit on sale / fair valyation

Gain on derecognition of right of use asset and lease liability
. Interest income:

Operating nrofit bafore working capital changes

Working Capitai adjustments:

Increase / (decrease) in trade receivahles

Increase / (decrease) in inventories

Increase / (decrease) in other financial assets

Increase / {decrease) in other assets

(decrease) in trade payables

Decrease in Other financial liahilities

Decraase in provisions

{Increase) / decrease in other llabilitles

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid {net of refunds}
Net cash inflow from operating activities {A)

B. Cagh flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment {Including Capital Work-in-progress, intangible asset,

capital advances net of capital creditors)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment

Investents {n Suigeliomes

Sale of mutual funds

Inter corporate loan granted

Inter corporate loan received back

Interest recelved

Rent received

Other income

{ Increase ) / decrease bank balance not considered as cash and cash equivalent

Net cash used in investing activities {B)
€. Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from long term borrowings
Repaymant of long term bormowings
Proceeds from / repayment of short terrn borrowings {net}

Praceeds from issue of equity share capital
Payment of final dividend

Other borrowing cost

Payment of principal portion of tease llabilities

Payment of interest partion of lease liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash inflow from/(used In) financing activitles (C)

king @m
S NP
i)
@ ~,
o &

90

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

3,307.24

1,893.59
2,248.76
648.92
1,461.65
0.04
199.58
{11.50)
{23.09)
(9.01)
(49.24)
{1,235.45)
£,451.49

{449.02)
(138.04)
(470.32)

707.38
{(412.21)

{3,799.39)

294.09
18.15

4,202.13
{969.35)
3232.78

{(8,295.66)

50.56
(2,674.00)
500.78
{1,413.51)
4,288.41
1,316.46
- 23.09
9.01
894,89

(5,300.37)

5,128.65
(3,406.37)
1,648.21
380.61
{942.05)
(648.92)
{23.06)
(70.96)
(2,167.75)
101 .64

{ORs
o\}o
3 &

For the yvear ended
March 31, 2024

2,416.11

1,489.40
1,944.97
621.65
3,946.17
300.00
(37.80)
{1.01)
{16.69}

(82.29)
(105.12)
(1,241.19)
9,229.20

4,931.50
1,599.37
930.03
(1,747.82)
{673.06)
(2,107.00)
191.35
{16.16}

12,337.41
(747.05)
11 590.36

{3,268.11)
3341
(2,958.65)
1,001.22
(3,150.65)
250.00
445.36

. 16.69

3,453.00
(10,178.03)

4,825.00
(1,885.25)
2,090.40

{935.70)
{621.65)
(112.82)

(56.25)

{2,186.40}
1117 2%
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Hero Motors Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statemant for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN : U29199PB1Y9BPLCO39602

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particutars For the year ended For the year endad
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024

Net Increase {decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (2,169.23) 2,529.66
{A+B+C) .

Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 2,915.31 385.65
Total cash and cash equivalent {Note no.18) 746.08 2,915.31
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash, Cheque/drafts on hand 0.30 0.25
With banks - Current account* 745.78 2,915.06
Totel cash and cash equivalent {Note no.18) 746.08 2,915.31

*Includes Nil as at March 31, 2025 {as at March 31, 2024 ¥ 0.68) as unpaid dividend account and is restrictive in nature,

Notes @

a) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared In accordance with 'indirect method® as set out in Ind AS - 7 - “Statement of Cash Flows', as notified under section 133 of

Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules issued thereunder,

ReconcHation of liabliities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of finracing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows :

Noit Cash Changes

Balance sheet caption Sattement of cash flows As at Aprli 1, Cash Fl As at March 31,
line ttem 2024 Forex Interest Expenses  Other 2025

Borrowings Proceeds / repayments of 29,295,96 3,370,459 26,87 - - 32,693.32
borrowings

Lease liability Payment / proceed frem 802,56 {94.02) - 70.95 779,50
lease labitity

Interest paid Interest paid 42,97 {2,167.75} 2,177.80 - 53.02

Non Cash Changes
Balance sheet caption mnt of cash flows As aztokzparli 1, Cash FI AS at;;azl;ch 31,
Interest Expenses Other

Nan current borrowings mﬁﬁg’s repayments of 24,222.21 5,030.15 43.60 29,295.96

Lease liability Paymaent /. proceed from 1,229.76 (169.07) - (258.13) B02.56
fease liability

Interest paid Interest paid 118.06 (2,186.40) 2,111.31 - 42,97

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of these standalene financial statements 1-68

AS per o aport of even date attached
For De Iltte asking & Sells LLP

Chart  d Acc  nianks

(Firm' tstr jon Ne. 117366W/W-100018)

.

Rajesh u .. Apgarwal
Fartner \
(Membership No. 105546)

Place: Gurugram
Date: August 12, 2025
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For and on hehalf of Board of Dire  rs f
Harc Motors Limited

Abhishek Munjal
Whole Time Director

(DIN: 05355274}

Place: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025

Y

Utkarsh Sanght
Chief Financial Officer

Ptace: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025
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ang ing Dirsctor and
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Date; August 12, 2025

W

Esha Gupita
Company Secretary

M. No. A23608

Place: Noida

Date: August 12, 2025



Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the standaione financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
U29299PB1998PLC039602

(Al

1.

2.

2.1

2.2

4

oitte

A
14

amounts in ¥ lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

Corporate Information

"Hero Motors Limited, ‘the Company’ was incorporated on April 30, 1998 as a unlisted Limited Company under
the Companies Act, 1956, vide Current Registration Number U29299PB1998PLC039602 . The Registered Office
of the Company is at Hero Nagar G. T. Road Ludhiana Ludhiana PB 141003.

The main objective of the Company’s business is manufacturing, buying, seliing, importing, exporting, improving,
assembiing, repairing and dealing of aii kinds of component parts, replacement parts, gears , power train
solutions, spare accessories, tools, implements and fittings for engines scooters, motorcycles, three Wheelers,
e-bikes or otherwise.

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November 09,
2022 for which the certified copy of the order dated November 09, 2022 was received on November 16, 2022,
the Demerged Undertaking (Primarily related to Auto Business consisting, inter-aiia, of all assets including
movable and immovable properties and iiabiiities related thereto) was demerged from the Demerged Company
and transferred to the resulting Company, with effect from April 01, 2021, the appointed date.(refer note-48).

The standalone Ind AS financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board
of directors on August 12, 2025,

Material Accounting Policies:
Basis of Preparation and presentation

The standalone Ind AS financial staterments of the Company as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
(Ind AS compiiant Schedule III).

Accounting policies have been consistently appiied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting poiicy
hitherto in use.

The standaione Ind AS financial statements are presented in ¥ and all vaiues are rounded to the nearest
lakhs {2 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The standalone Ind AS financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous year.

Basis of measurement

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the

following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

- Certain financial assets and iiabiiities is (including derivative instrument and contingent consideration)
measured at fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments in Note 2.2 n.)

- Defined benefit plans- pian assets are measured at fair value

- Share based payments

Summary of Material accounting policies
a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be reaiised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 01QR6'

Held for primarily for the purpose of trading

King & xpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

L
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
U29299PB1998PLC0O39602

(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

ltle&

o

b.

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held for primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settfement of liabiiity for at least twelve after the reporting
period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acqulsition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment ('PPE’)
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost of -acquisition or construction which includes capitalised
finance costs less accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment foss, if any.

Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use. The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equlpment
comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item
to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located, if the recognition criteria is met. If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
{major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Recognition criteria
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if and only if,

a) Itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, and
b} The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of flxed assets that are not ready for their intended use at the
reporting date. Advances paid towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance sheet date, are shown
under other non-current assets.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment Is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expendlture

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of
the replaced part getting derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of Items of PPE less their estimated residual values over their estimated
usefui lives using the straight-line method and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Depreclation on items of PPE is provided as per rates corresponding to the useful life specified in Schedule
I to the Companies Act, 2013 read with related amendments. The estimated useful lives of ite operty,

kingtg- and equipment for the current and comparative perlods are as follows:
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ing  rred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above, Wher,
© oL, ally generated intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditure Is recognized in( he 2

Depreciation is provided on a pre-rata basis on the straight-line basis on the estimated useful life prescribed
under Schedule II to Companies Act , 2013 with the foilowing exception :

- Leasehold land & Leasehold improvement has been amortised over the lease term.

- Freehold Land is not depreciated.

Useful life considered for calculation for various assets class are as foliows:

Asset Class Useful Life
Building 30-60 years
Plant & Machinery * 0 to 30 years
Furnitura & Fixture 3to 10 years
Office Equipment's 3to 5years
Vehicles 8to 10 years
Computer 3toByears

* The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates tools included in plant and equipment over estimated usefui lives of 0 and 30 years which are
different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes
that these estimated useful lives are reaiistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are ilkely to be used.

The depreciation method, useful fives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate.

Depreciation on additions {disposal)} is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date on which asset
is reacly for use {disposed of).

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment Is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recoghised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets
Acquired Intangible

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initlally at cost. Cost of an item of
Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directiy attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost iess any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

internally generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internaily generated intangible asset arising from deveiopment (or from the development phase of an internal
project} is recognized if, and only if, ail of the following have been demonstrated:

+ the technical feasibiiity of completing the Intangible asset so that it will be avallable for use or sale

» the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or seli it.

» the ability to use or seli the intangible asset.

» how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits,

» the avaitability of adequate technicai, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

+ the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development,

The amount initlaliy recognized for internaily generated intangible assets is the sum of the expend
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Statement of profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internatly
generated intangibie assets are reported at cost less accumutated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, on the same basis as intangibie assets that are acquired separately. An intangible asset is
derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the Statement of profit and

loss when the asset is derecognized.
Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the usefui life and these are assessed for tmpairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite iives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part
of carrying value of another asset. The amortisation method, residual value and the useful iives of intangible
assets are reviewed annualiy and adjusted as necessary.

Specialized software are amortized over a period of 3 years or license period whichever is later.

Derecognition

Intangibie assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use and disposal.

d. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Iterns of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsoiescence,
wherever considered necessary. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and
other costs including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective present location
and condition, The cost of various components of inventory is determined as follows; -

Raw Material Cost includes purchase cost, duties, taxes and all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventory to their present location. Cest is determined on Weighted Average
Cost Method,

Work in Progress Cost includes appropriate proportion of overfieads wherever applicable, Geods in

transit are valusd at cost exoluding import duties wherever applicable

Finished Goods Costincludes purchase cost, duties, taxes and all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventory t¢ their present lecation, Cost is determined on Weighted Average
Cost Method.
Scrap Net realisable value.
Stores and spares Cost includes purchase cost, duties, taxes and all other costs incurred in bringing
the inventory to their present location. Cost is determined on Weighted Average
Cost Method.
/ in 1ORg
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the
selling prices of related finished products.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written down
below cost except in cases where material prices have declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the
finished products will exceed their net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.
e. Retirement and other employee benefits
{i} Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obiigations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., salaries and
wages and bonus etc., if the Company has a present legal or constructive obiigation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obiigation can be estimated reliably.

{if) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined contribution pians

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment bhenefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and will have no jegal or constructive obfigation to pay further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme (‘ESI’) to Government administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

b) Defined benefit ptans

A defined benefit plan is a post-empioyment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Gratuity is
a defined benefit plan. The administration of the gratuity scheme has been entrusted to the Life Insurance
Corporation of India ('LIC’). The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calcuiated separately by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that ameunt and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liabiiity i.e. Gratuity, which comprise actuariai gains and josses
are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income {OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense
(income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then- net defined benefit liability,
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtaiied, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or ioss on curtailment is

recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.
010R.s-
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¢) Short term and other long term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short-term empioyee benefits expected to be paid in exchange of services
rendered by employees are recognised during the period when the employee renders the services. These
benefits inciude salaries, wages, performance incentives and compensated absences.

The liability in respect of accumuiated compensated absences is provided for on the basis of actuarial
vaiuation carried out at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which they occur.

d) Share - based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby empioyees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settied
transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made
using an appropriate vaiuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in empioyee benefits
expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transactions at each reporting date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that wiii ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is-recognised in empicyee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company best
astimate of the number of equity instruments that wili ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
refiected within the grant date fair vaiue. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award uniess there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that ail other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settied award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment fransaction
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelied by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining eiement of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or ioss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is refiected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

f. Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a resuit of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settie the obligation. If the time of money [s material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash fiows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required the
°® lng)e ent obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 3§ g/
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the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost. Expected future losses are not provided for.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settie the present obiigation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
materiat).

Constructive obligation is an obiigation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

. by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement,
the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and
. as a result, the entity has created a vaiid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will

discharge those responsibiilties.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reiiabiy.

g. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent iiabilities do not warrant provisions but are disclosed unless the possibility of
outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets usually arise from unpianned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility
of an inflow of economlc benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognised when the realisation of
income is virtually certain, then the related asset Is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate,

A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

h. Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting
date,

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generaily concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangement because it typically controis goods or services before transferring them
to the customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obiigations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added tax, Transaction price is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts, Also, in determining the

nsaction price for the sale of products, the Company considers the effects of variable considerat’ he

King  nce of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration pay & @Rth ¢

C.-suifs er {if any).
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As per Ind AS 115, the Company determines whether there is a significant financing component in its
contracts. However, the Company has decided to use practical expedient provided in Ind AS 115 and not to
adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing components in the
contracts, where the Company expects, at contract inception that the period of compietion of contract terms
are one year or less. Therefore, for short-term advances, the company does not account for a financing
componhent. No [ong-term advances from customers are generally received by the Company.,

Sales-related warranties associated with goods cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an
assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Company accounts
for warranties 1n accordance with Ind AS 37,

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography.

Sale of services

The Company recognises revenue from these contracts on satisfaction of performance obligation towards
rendering of such services over time, as and when the services are rendered in accordance with the specific

terms of contracts with customers. The Company’s performance obligation is limited to providing resources
required for these services

Export benefits

Export incentive entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms of
the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no significant uncertainty
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Disaggregated revenue information

The Company presents disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended March
31, 2025 by type of goods and services and timing of revenue recognition. The Company believes that this
disaggregation best depicts how the hature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash ﬂows are
affected by industry, market and other economic factors,

Contract balances

Trade Receivable

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (l.e., only the passage of time

is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in
section of financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract Habilities
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received, or a payment is due {whichever is earlier) from a
customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract iiabilities are recognised as

revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

j. Recognition of interest income or exponse
Interest income or expense is accrued on a time basis and recognised using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to

OQJ_N‘{\
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In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount
of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the [iability. However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initiai recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is
no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Claims receivables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is reasonably certain

of their uitimate collection.
k. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as a part of cost of the asset.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

I. Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to
the extent that it reiates to a business combination or an item recognised directly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Current income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if
any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or ioss
(either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method oredicts better resolution
of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability

arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or llability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

loss and In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
d interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences canbe ¢

I"% . " is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that It is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions
used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabllities if and only if it has a Iegally enforceable
right to set off current tax liabillties and assets and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorities.

Goods and Service Tax paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST paid, except:

- When the tax Incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables ot payables in the balance sheet,

m. Leases

The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS
116:

Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at Inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (If} the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

in he date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a

-’_/Q@ ponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases wit a term

vc months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low val
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the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease. "
Lease arrangements may include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities may include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will
he exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initiafly recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment [osses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on 3 straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlylng asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that thelr carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis uniess the asset does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability s initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rates pertaining to the company. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset If the Company changes its assessment if whether
it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classifled as financing cash flow activities.

n. Financial instruments

A Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair vaiue plus, in the case of financial assets

not recorded at fair value through proflt or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention tn the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classifled in four categories:

Financial instruments at amortised cost

Financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI}

Financial instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or ioss (FVPL}
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Financial instruments at amortised cost

A ‘financial instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if the asset Is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the asset give rise
on specifled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest {SPPI} on the principal
amount outstanding.

fter initlal measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost qg'_)lﬂs-

N king ive interest rate (EIR} method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discount ae (/z
. . cash payments or recelpts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gr #5) 3 ing —.:‘
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amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financiai liability. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financlal instrument at FVYOCI

A ‘financial instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business mode! is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash fiows and seiling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractuai cash flows
represent SPPIL.

Financial instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initialiy as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified to the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as Interest
income using the EIR method.

Financial instrument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL. In additlon, at initial recognition,
the Company may irrevecably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised cost
or FVOCI criteria, as at FVPL. However, such adoption is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recegnition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch”).

Debt instruments inciuded within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held
for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind
AS 103 appiies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable adoption to present In other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The
Company makes such adoption on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is Irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss to retained earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
In the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortised
cost. At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit- impaired. A financial asset Is *credit-impaired” when one or more events that have detrimental Impact
on the estimated future cash fiows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the flnancial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for S0 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

- It is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or 010R5~

¢ the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties. Q‘
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit iosses:

- Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition,

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from alf possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected
credit losses is the maxtmum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantiy since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash fiow due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash fiow that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of ailowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet Loss allowance for financial assets
measured at the amortised cost is deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
debtors do not have assets or sources of Income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amount subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedure for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financlal assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)

is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fiows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-
through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
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Financial liabifities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financlal liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, oans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories.
» Financlal liabilities at fair vafue through profit or loss (FVPL)
) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

A financial liability is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value and net gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other financial liabllities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabllity. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derlvative financial instruments

The Company uses various types of derivative financial instruments to hedge its currency and interest risk
etc. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial lfabllities when the fair value Is negative.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet when,

and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
elther to settle them on a net basls or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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o. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any such Indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent
cash flows are grouped together into cash generating units {CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest
Company of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets
or CGUs,

The recoverable amount of as CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and fair value less
cost to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current assessments of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific
to the CGU {or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

p- Operating Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Company’s other ¢components, and for which discrete financial infermation is available. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker
{CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.

q. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients comprises cash in hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highiy
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or iess, that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insigniflcant risk of changes in value.

r. Cash flow statement

Cash fiows are reported using the indirect method, whereby proflt after tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash fiows. Statement of
cash flows is prepared segregating the cash fiows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow
from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:

a) changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
b) neon-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses; and

c) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash fiows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items
which are not avaitable for general use as on the date of Baiance Sheet.

s. Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and

all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as

income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended ensate,

e N¥ xpensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal 93& the
2 ed useful life of the related asset.
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Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the Company when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by.the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

u. Earnings per share

Baslc earmings per share ('EPS"} is computed by dividing the net profit or ioss (excluding OCI) for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the welghted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
sharehoiders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the
dilutive potentiai equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period as
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be
dilutive only If their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing
ordinary operations. Potentiai dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independentiy for each period presented.

v. Foreign Currency Transaction and translations

The functional currency and presentation currency of the company is Indian Rupee. Functional currency of
the Company and foreign operations has been determined based on the primary economic environment in
which the Company and its foreign operations operate considering the currency in which funds are generated,
spent and retained.
Initial recognition

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date
of the transaction. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
restated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end are restated at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the Balance Sheet. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
carried at historical cost.

Treatment of exchange differences

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or ioss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for
future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings.

w. Fair value measurement

e‘ki

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financlal and non-financial assets and iiabilities. The Company has an estabiished control framework with
respect to measurement of fair values. This includes the top management division which is responsibie for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, The top management
division regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, is used to measure fair vaiues, then the top management division assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conciuslon that these valuations meet the requirement of Ind
AS, Including the ievel in the fair vaiue hierarchy in which the valuations shouid be dassified.

8 aiues are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs u iQR@

n techniques as follows: < <
. vei 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicai assets and ilabllities. 8( ﬁ/ )%
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? King assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjust
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- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (I.e. derived frem prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the Cempany uses cbservable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hlerarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entlrely in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that Is significant to the entlre measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these standalone
financial statements is Included in the respective notes.

Research & development costs

Research and development costs that are in nature of tangible assets and are expected to generate probable
future economic benefits are capitalised as tangible assets. Identifiable development expenditure is
capitalised to the extent that the technical, commercial and financial feasibility can be demonstrated.
Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to the statement of profit and ioss in the year
in which it is incurred.

y. Exceptional items

When items of Income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are of such
size, nature or incidence that thelr disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the Company for
the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

Changes in accounting policies and new disclosure requierments
New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
via notification dated August 12, 2024, September 09, 2024 and September 28, 2024 to introduce the new
Ind AS 117 iL.e. “Insurance Contracts” and amended the Ind AS 116 i.e. Leases, respectively, Both are
effective from April 01, 2024,

The new standard and the aforesaid amendment did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.
Amendments to Ind AS Issued but not yet effective

MCA has notified amendment to Ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, vide the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2025 through Notification Ne. G.S.R. 291(E)
dated May 7, 2025. The amendment provides comprehensive guidance on assessing the exchangeability of
currencies, determining spot exchange rates when currencies are not exchangeable and enhancing related
disclosures. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025,
The Company wili evaluate the impact of this amendment and Implement the necessary changes in its
financial reporting for periods commencing on or after the effective date.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these
timates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertai
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carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the perlod of the revision and future perlods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers, such as identifying performance obligations in a bundled sales
transactions, wherein, the Company sell goods, transportation and warranty services bundled together with
sales of goods. The Company allocated the portion of the transaction price to goods basis on its relative
standalone prices.

Non- Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

The Company has issued Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares which meets the fixed
to fixed criteria at the date of issuance. The Company has assessed the terms of such instruments and
classified these as equity.(Refer footnote (e) of note 20)

Impairment testing

The Company has reviewed its carrying value of long term Investments in equity shares as disclosed in Note
no. 9 of standalone financial statements at the end of each reporting perlod, for possible impairment If there
are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying amount of assets may not be recoverable.
If the recoverable value, which is based upon economic circumstances and future plan is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is accounted.

Expected credit losses on financlal assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
timing of collection. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Determining lease term

The Company determines the lease term as the non-canceliable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the iease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has some
property lease arrangements with Its holding company that include option to terminate the contract by either
party at any time by glving advance notice. The Company applied judgment in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain for both the parties to terminate the property lease contract before the lease term. It
considered all the factors that create economic incentive for the parties to continue with lease or terminate

ding alternatives available for the office lease, use of underlying property, leasehoid improve o Fb@(

Q?, cordingly determined lease term. 5 2
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The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised {or not exercised) or the Company becomes
obllged to exercise (or not exercise) it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the
control of the iessee.

Estimates and Assumptions.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabiiities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters avaiiable when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market change or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are refiected in the assumptions when they occur.
Useful life of assets of (Property, plant and equipment)

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of
Company’s assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at each
financial year end. )

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Capital work in progress and intangible asset
Property, plant and equipment, Capltai work in progress and intangible assets with definite lives, are
reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value
may not be recoverable.

Impairment of investment in equity instruments of subsidiary companies

During the year, the Company assessed the investment in equity instrument of subsidiarles carried at cost
for impairment testing. Some of these companies are start-ups or are at early stage of their operatlons and
are expected to generate positive cash flows in the future years. Detailed anaiysis has been carried- out on
the future projections and viability of each project carried out by these subsidiaries and the Company is
confident that the investments do not require any impalrment.

Contingencies

Contingent Liabllities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the
Cornpany, including legal and other clalms. By virtue of their nature, contingencies will be resolved only
when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur, The assessment of the existence, and
potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of signlficant judgements and the use
of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Recoverability of deferred taxes

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. The ultimate realisation of deferred
tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the
temporary differences become deductibie, Management considers the projected future taxable income and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment.
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Recoverability of intangible asset

Capitalisation of cost in intangible assets under development is based on management’s judgement that
technological and economic feasibility is confirmed and asset under development will generate economic
benefits in future. Based on evaluations carried out, the Company’s management has determined that there
are no factors which indicates that these assets have suffered any impairment loss.

Estimation of Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recoghised for unused tax losses to the extent that It 1s probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability, the Company
considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax
losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they expire. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing

and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount In ¥ lakhs, uniess otherwlise stated)

5 Ca ital workin ro ress

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year 4,947.01 477.06
Add: Additfon made during the year 8,015.26 5,524.15
less: Aliocated to Property Plant and Equipment during the year (10,205.31) (1,054.20}

2 756.96 4 947.01
Note :

The Company has capitalised following expenses to the cost of property, plant and equipment / capital work in progress in relation to
projects.

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,261.52 -
Employee benefit expenses 686.03 933.12
Contract Labour Charges - 114.19
Flnance cost 271.61 222,58
Other Expenses 224.95 15.87
Total 2 444,11 1 285.76
less: Atlocated to property ptant and equipment {1,114.94) {24.24)
Closing balance of pre-operative expenses Included under Capital Work In progress 1 328.17 1261.52
Ageing schedule of CWIP as at March 31, 2025:

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars Legs than 1 Mote than Total
year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years
Projects in progress 1,952.88 756.24 47.84 - 2,756.96
Projects tem~oraril sus~ended - - - -
A ein schedule of CWIP as at March 31, 2024:
Amount In CWIP for a period of
Particulars Total
Less than 1 More than
year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years

Projects in progress 4,742.94 204,07 - - 4,947.,01
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Note:

Project exacution plans are modulated on an annual basis following a detailed assessment of requirements. All projects are undertaken In

accordance with a rolling annual plan.

6 Intangible assets
Computar

C %

113

Particulars Software Total
At Deemod cost
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 296.00 296.00
Add: Additions during the year 51.92 51.92
Less: Disposals/(adjustments) during the year (1.34 1.34
Balance as at March 31, 2024 346.58 346.58
Add: Additions during the year 17.11 17.11
Less: Disposals/{adjustments) during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 363.69 363.69
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at Aprll 1, 2023 64.16 64.16
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 57.80 57.80
Less: Disposals/(adjustments) during the year {1.29 1.29
Balance as at March 31, 2024 120.67 120.67
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 62.75 62.75
Less: Disposals/(adjustments) during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 183.42 183.42
Net carrying amount
Ag at March 31, 2024 225,91 225.91
As at March 31, 2025 180.27 180.27
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° ¢ ) ﬂ, =
% « m
-] o red 4 & b
—"‘ N 13 [
)
() W



Hero Motors Limlted
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7 Intangible assets under development (TAUD)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.34 -
Add: Addition made during the year 94.19 1.34
Less: (Disposals)/adjustments during the year - -
Bailance at the end of the year 95.53 1.34
Ageing schedule of intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2025:
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
Projects in progress 94.19 1.34 - - 95.53
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Ageing scheduie of Intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2024:
i Amount In CWIP for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years Moret an
Pro ects in o ress 1.34 - - - 1.34

Projects temporarily suspended - - - -

Note:
Project execution plans are modulated or an annual basis following a detailed assessment of requirements. Al projects are undertaken in

accordance with a rolilng annual plan.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes te standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
8 Right of use assets
Below are the carrying amounts of right to use assets and lease liabilities and the movements during the year. The Company’s leased
assets consists of leases for land and building.

Particulars Lease hold buildin Lease hold land Total
Balance ason A rii 1 2023 - 1 149.70 1 149.70
Additions 790.66 - 790.66
Dereco nition of i ht of use assets# - 113273 1132.73
Balance as on March 31 2024 790.66 16,97 807.63
Additions - - -
Dereco nition of ri ht of use assets - - -
Balance as on March 31 2025 790.66 16.97 807.63
Accumulated de recation
Balance ason A ril 1 2023 = 130.24 130.29
Charge for the year - 56.50 56.50
Derecognition of right of use assets# - (169.77} {169.77)
Ad ustment 14.64 - 14.64
Balance as on March 31 2024 14.64 16.97 31.61
Charge for the year 87.85 - 87.85
Dereco nition of ri ht of use assets - - -
Balance as on March 31 2025 102.49 16.97 119.46
Carr in amount
As at March 31, 2024 776.02 776.02
Ag at March 31, 2025 688.17 688.17
Lease liabilities
The following is the movement in lease liabilities during the year
Particulars Lease hold buildin Lease hold land Total
Balanceas at A ril 1 2023 - 1 228.76 1229.76
Additions 790.66 - 790.66
Finance cost accrued during the year 11.90 56.25 68.15
Leage rent payable / paid - {217.94) {217.94)
Reversai of Lease ilabiiit # - 1 068.07 1 068.07
Balance as at March 31 2024 802.56 - 802.56
Additions - -
Finance ¢ost accrued during the year 70.96 70.96
Lease rent payable / paid (94.02) {94.02)
Ad 'ustment - -
Balance as at March 31 2025 779.50 - 779.50
The foillowin Is the break-u of current and non-current lease ilabilities
Particulars Current Non - current .
Asg at March 31, 2023 33.25 769.31
As at March 31, 2025 48.00 731.50
Others Disclosures :-
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refer note 36) 87.85 56.50
Interest expense on iease liabilities (Refer note 35) 70.96 56.25
Expense relating to short-term leases {Refer note 38) 205.33 165.68
Total Cash outflow for leases 94.02 -
Note
#Refer Note 66.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

10

1
a)

b)
c)
d}

e)

%

(3

A

Investmel;lt in subsidiaries and other Investments
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non- Current:
Investments in equity shares of Subsidiaries - (unquoted)-Valued at amortised Cost

Hero Moters Thai Limited 1,418.93 1.418.93
589,998 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 589,998) of THB 100 each fully paid up
Hewiand Engineering Limited

10,513 equity shares {March 31, 2024: 10,513) of GBP 1 each fully paid up 10.08 10.08
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited 2,880.00 2,880.00
288,00,000 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 288,00,000) of ¥ 10 each fuily paid up

Hero EDU Systems Private Limited* 1750.00 100.00
1,75,00,000 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 1000,000} of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Spur Technoiogies Private Limited** 3800.24 2,920.24

396,10,000 equity shares (March 31, 2024: 308,10,000) of ¥ 10 each fully paid up
9 859.25 7 329.2%

* During the vear, the company have been alloted 1,65,00,000 shares of face value ¥ 10 ¢ach through right issue.

** During the year the company have been alloted 88,00,000 shares of face value ¥ 10 each through right issue.During the previous year the
company had acquired 1,11,09,990 shares of face value ¥ 10 @ %8.55 from Hero Cycle Limited and further 1,97,00,000 shares @ ¥ 10 have
been alloted through right issue .

Note:
Investement in subsidiary :

a)} Hero EDU Systems Private Limited :

The company ventured into the eiectric drive unit (*EDU”) segment for micro-mobility under the "ESYNC' brand. EDUs are integrated systems
with reotor, battery and controller as key components and have major Impact on the overaii perfarmance and functionalities of the end-
applications such as e-bikes or electric two-wheelers and has Intangible capitaiised of ¥1,021.84 and Intangible assets under development

(IAUD) of ¥ 2,186.49.The net worth of the company as at March 31, 2025 is ¥ 1641.14 (March 31, 2024 ¥ 91.72).
The Company has got confirmed orders for certain products which has been developed and is in process of obtaining orders from the market

for remaining projects.
The company expects to generate revenue and profit starting financial year 2025-26 and thus investment has been considered to be good

and recoverable.

b} HYM Drive Systems Private Limited :

A Joint Venture company with Yamaha Motors Japan. focuses in design, validation, and production of motors for two-wheeiers. The facility
features latest and advanced motor assembly iine built as per Japanese standards, along with in-house moetor winding and comprehensive end-
of-line testing, equipped with the [ODIN] software system to ensure 100% traceability and has intangible capitalised of ¥202.81 and
Intangible assets under development {IAUD} of ¥ 145.38.The net worth of the company as at March 31, 2025 s ¥ 2,112.38 {March 31, 2024

¥ 2,761.35)

The Company has got confirmed orders for certain products which has been developed and is In process of obtaining orders from the market
for remaing projects.

The company expects to generate revenue and profit starting financial year 2025-26 and thus investment is considered to be good and

recaoverable.

¢} Hero Motors Thal Limited :

The Company has advanced gearbox assembly manufacturing faciiity in Samut Prakan, Thalland in 2023 to cater to the growing ASEAN region

and globel internal combustion engine (“ICE”) and EV markets.
Investment Is considered to he good and recoverable and the net worth of the company as at March 31, 2025 is ¥ 1,586.00 (March 31, 2024
¥ 1,406.72)

d} Spur Technologies Private Limited :

The Company has been engaged in Manufacturing components for high-end bikes and e-bikes.
Investrment is considered to be good and recoverable and the net worth of the company as at March 31, 2025 is ¥ 3,008.41 (March 31, 2024

¥ 2,264.80)
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otORs,
5klﬂs¢

@ o 4 =3
ed & 9‘;'; g’
) Y 9

~ *

116



Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

11} Investment in other equity instruments

i1

a)

b}

Ix)

a)

b)

(valued at fair value through OCI)

AMP Solar Urja Private Limited

1,51,200 equlty shares (March 31, 2024: 1,51,200) of ¥ 10 each fully pald up
AMP Energy Green Thirteen Private Limited

1,44,000 equity shares (March 31, 2024: Nil) of ¥ 10 each fully paid up

Investments in debenture of others - (unquoted)

{valued at fair value through OCI)

AMP Solar Urja Private Limited

13,608 Debentures {March 31, 2024: 13,608} of ¥ 1,000 each fully paid up

AMP Energy Green Thirteen Private Limited
12,960 Debentures (March 31, 2024: Nil) of 2 1,000 each fully paid up

These Compulsory convertible debenture shall be entitled to Interest at rate of 0.01%
p.a. Interest shall be due and recelvables at the end of every financlal year.

Grand Total

i) Aggregate value of unquoted investments
11y Aggregate value of unquoted investments (net of impairment)

Movemnent during the year in subsidiary investrments ;

Name of Company

Subsidiary
Hero Motors Thal Limited
Hewland Engineering Limited
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited
Herg EDLU Systems Private Limited
Spur Technologies Private Limited
Investment Others
Current Investments

Particulars

Investments in Mutual funds measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Quoted Investments

Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund

19,746.73 Units (March 31, 2024 : 123,036,20 Units) market linked Mutual Fund

HDFC Liquid Fund

Nit {March 31, 2024 : 24,496.84 Units) market finked Mutual Fund
Invesco India Arbitrage Fund - Direct Plan Growth

3,18,689.11 Units {March 31, 2024 : NI} market linked Mutual Fund

a} Aggregate book value of quoted investments
b) Aggregate market value of guoted investments
¢) The number of units in note above represents absolute numbers.

117

15.12

14.40

136.08

129.60

295.20
10 154.45

10,154.45
10,154.45

15.12

136.08

151.20
7 480.45

7,480.45
7,480.45

Proportion (%) of equity interest

As at
Mrh 1t 02

100.00%
51.00%
90.00%
100.00%
100.00%

As at

March 31, 20258

107.95

108.07

216.02

216.02
216.02

As at
rh 12 24

100,00%
51.00%
90.00%

100.00%

100.00%

As at
March 31, 2024

479.45

188.11

667.56

667.56
667.526

{ORg
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Loans measured at amortized cost
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non - Current Non - Current

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Loans to employees
Loans receivables considered good - Unsecured 136.32 131.07
Loans to Subsidiaries {Refer Note No. 43 and below note 'b',
'c’ and 'd")
Hero Motors Thai Limited 85.73 4,398.54
Hewland Engineering Limlted 686.21 1,907.22
Hero EDU Systems Private Lirmited 1,323.75 1,020.83
HYM Drive Systems Prlvate Limited 1,170.00 538.33
3 402.01 7 995.99

Current
As at
March 31,
2025

111.35

2,609.99
84.69
441.25
390.00

3 637.28

Current
As at
March 31,
2024

60.19

1,014.15
531.62
204,17
107.67

1917.80

a)} The Company has no outstanding loans which have significant increase in credit risk and loans which are credit impaired. (Refer

Note No. 46)

b} The above loan given to Hero Motor Thai is repayable as per the schedule defined in agreement and carries interest rate @ 9%

p.a.

¢) The above ioan given to Hewland Engineering Limited Is repayable as per the schedule defined in agreemetit and carries interest

rate @ 9.00% p.a.

d} The above loan given to Hero EDU Systems Private Limited and HYM Drive Systems Private Limited is repayabie on demand in 4

years (Including moratorium of one year) carries interest rate @ 9% p.a
Note :

There is no loss allowance for receivables in relation to any outstanding baiances, and no ioss aliowance has been recognised during

ihe year in respect of receivabies due from related parties.
Other financial assets

Non - Currant Non - Current
As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024

Particulars

Unsecured considered ood unlesss eclfied
At Amortized Cost

1. Interest accrued but not due

- Margin Money *

- Loan to Subsidiary

il.Ioterest accrued and due on Deposit

251.69

240.86 616.57

- On security deposit - 3.86

Ni.Others

Baiance with Banks:

In Depostt Accounts (with remaining maturity of less than
twelve months)(refer note Below)

Security deposits -Others{Electricity and others)
Receivables from retated party

Other Receivables - -

At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Forward Contract Recelvahle - -

372,72 3%96.04

613.58 1 268.16

Note:

Current
As at
March 31,
2025

96.43
695.37

14.64

60.04

752,07
1,329.22

59.47

3 007.24

Current
As at
March 31,
2024

245.42

154.93

394.39
1,230.87

32.63

2 058.24

1. Balances with Banks heid as Margin Money Deposits against Bank Guarantee and Letter of Credit issued by Axis Bank.

2. There [s no loss allowance in refation to any outstanding balance and no loss allowance has been recognised during the year in

respect to receivabies from related party.
* Includes ¥ 35.95 iakhs {(March 31, 2024 ¥ 34,91 lakhs} agalnst lten for fund based / non fund based working capital facility with
Kotak Mahindra Bank, Axis Bank and State Bank of India ¥ 60.48 lakhs (March 31,2024 ¥ 216.78 lakhs} against non-lien Margin

money.

<{ORg

Pl " ) %

5 -

¥4, 2 ﬁ, 5

e . 2 ) S
% Acar %

o



\ “e,sr

Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 Non current tax asset Net

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Advance Income Tax 1,251.39 903.50
{Net of provision of ¥ 1,971.25 lakhs (March 31, 2024 ¥ 1,465.00 lakhs)
1 251.39 903.50
15 Other assets
Non -~ Current Current
As at As at As at As at
lars
Particula March31,  March31, March31,  March 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024
{Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
{i} Capital Advances (Refer Note No. 41) 614,51 1 595.20 - -
614.51 1,595.20 - -

(i1} Balances with Government Authorities

Goods and service tax receivables - - 131.51 422,91

Amount deposit under protest - - - -
- - 131.51 422.91

(iify Others
Export Incentlve receivable - - 330.82 200.69
Prepaid expenses - - 141.85 269.96
Share issue expenses recoverable* 1,260.75 232.00
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - - 32.55 19.97
Advances to suppliers - - 627.75 420.08
Advances to related party (Refer note 22) - 1 667.00
- - 2 393.72 2 809.70
614.51 1 595.20 2 525,23 3 232,61

*The Company incurred and recognised expenses towards proposed Initial Public Offering of its equity shares based on the
Invoices accounted for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024. The Company expects to recover certain amounts
from the seiling share holders and the batance amount would be netted -off to securities premiurmn account in accordance with
Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Issue of shares (Refer note- 67).

16 Inventories
{Valued at lower of cost or realisable value)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Raw materials {(Refer note i {a) below) 3,521.50 2,911.52
Work in progress (WIP) 2,331.07 2,855.38
Finished goods (Refer note i {b} below) 6,231.19 6,432.29
Stores and spares 1,922.15 1,649.21
Scrap 27.50 . 46,97
Total 14 033.41 13 895.37
Notes:
{i}Includes goods In transit:
{a) Raw material 184,77 69.83
{b} Finished gocds 5173.06 5078.95
5 357.83 5148.78
17 Trade receilvables
0 < As at As at
Particulars /{, March 31, March 31,
- 2025 2024
Unsecured Considered good - others 14 m 18,003.38 17,731.38
Unsecured- Credit Impaired “,’S, o - -
Less: Aliowance for receivables {credit impaired) - -
Total 18 003.38 17 731.38

Notes :

*Refer note 43 for receivables from reiated parties.

(i) The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days-75 days. No interest is charged on trade recelvabies,

(li} There are no indicators / default on receipts of amount from debtors (including related parties). Accordingly, the Company
does not anticipate risk of recovery and expected credit loss in respect thereof.

(iil} Of the trade receivables balance as at the year end, the Company's largest customers who represents more than 10% of
the total balance of trade receivables are as follows;

As at As at

Particulars coype of March 31,  March 31,
'Y 2025 2024
er A Domestic 6,047.60 8,114.58
Cug ‘merB Exoort 2,961.67 -

&re no other customers other than mentioned above, who represent more than 10% of the total balance of the trade
ro s.
pany's exposure to credit and current risk and loss allewance related to trade receivables are disclosed In Note 45,
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Hero Motors Limited
Notos to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwlise stated)

18 Cash and cash & uivalents

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks:
- Current account 495.78 915.06
[;e::;?)omts with original maturity of fess than 3 months {Refer Note 'b" 250.00 2,000.00
Cash in hand 0.30 0.25
748.08 2915.31

a) For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, the cash and cash equivalent are considered as given above.

b} The deposits maintained by the company with Banks comprise of the time deposits which may be withdrawn by the company at any peint of
time without prior notice and are made of varying peried depending upon the cash requirements of the company and earn interest at respective

deposit rate.
19 Bank balances other than cash & cash aquivaients
. As at Az at
Particulars March 31 2025  March31 2024
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than
12 months{Refer notes below) * 3,800.00 4,600.00
3 800.00 4 600.00
Note :
* The above deposits includes ¥ 2,000.00 lakhs (March 31, 2024 : ¥ 2,000.00 fakhs ) on which lien is marked on over draft facility obtained from
kotak bank .
As at As at
20 Equity share capltal March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Authorised Sharo ca ital
58,00,00,000 shares {March 31, 2024: 38,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each* 58,000.00 38,000.00
58 000.00 38 000.00
EFUed, SUDSCHDed ang 1 DRG] Up SNACE CHADILA
357,384,491 {March 31, 2024: 353,578,380} Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each* 35,738.45 35,357.84
35 738.45 35 357.84
a) Reconciliation of issued and subscribed share capital:
© Particulars No. of Shares* Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2023 35,35,78,380 35,357.84
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 35 35 78 380 35 357.84
Add: Shares issued during the year 3806111 380.61
Balance as at March 31, 2025 3573 84 491 35 738,45

b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one dass of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares Is entitled to one vote per share
and wllf rank peri passu with each other in all respect. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
recelve remaining assets of the company, after distributlon of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the sharehelders.

¢ Details of shareholders holdin more than 5% shares in the Com an

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of .
Name of Share Holder Shares* Holding % No. of Shares "‘:g'““
Pankaj Munjal on behalf of OP Munjat Holding 27,31,23,055 76.42% 27,31,23,055 77.25%
South Asia Growth Invest LLC 2,59,47,024 7.26% 2.59,47,024 7.34%
Bhagyoday Investments Private limited 2,39,79,804 6.71% 2,39,78.804 6.78%
* Number of Shares are given in absofute numbers.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in ¥ iakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

21 Other aquity

Particulars

a. Securities premium:
Balance at the beginning of financial yvear
Add: Share based payment reserve on shares excercised transferred to Security Premium

Balance at the end of financlal year

b. CCPS classified as Equity:

Balance at the beginning of financial year

Add: Issue of Non-cumulative Compulsory convertlble preference shares
Balance at the end of financial year

c. Share-based payment reserve

Balance at the beginning of financial year

Add: Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments

Less: Share based payment reserve on shares excercised transferred to security premium
Balance at the end of financial year

d. Retained earnings

Balance at the baginning of financial year

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations(net of tax)
Less: Payment of dividend (Refer note 62}

Balance at the end of financial year

a. Demarger adiustment deficit account
Balance at the beginning of financial year

Add: Change during the year
Balance at the end of financial vear

Tota) othar ¢ uit a+b+cid+e

Notes:

a)

b)

<)

1) For Movernent during the year in other equity, refer “Statement of changes in equity™.
i) The description of the nature and purpose of each reserves within equity 15 as follows:
Securities premium:

As at March 31,
2025

55,439.61
2,319.06
57,758.67

2,097.19

2,097.19

5,281.15
1,481.65
(2,319.06)

4,443.74

17,642.79
2,361.04
(22.78)

942.05)
19 039.00

{75,279.98)

75 27998

8 058.62

As at March 31,
2024

55,439.61

55,439.61

2,097.19

2,097.19

1,334.98
3,546.17

5,281.15

16,611.27
1,896.99
70.23

935.70)
17 642,79

{75,279.98}

75 279.98

5 180.76

Securities premiur is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Corpanies Act,

2013,
Share-based payments reserve:

The Share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees under emplovees stock options scheme.

Retained earmings:
Retained sarnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unlass otherwlise stated)

d) Demerger adjustment deficit account
The difference between assets, liabilities and reserves transferred and the purchase consideration on Demerger is recorded as "Demerger Adjustment

Deficit Account™

As at As at
e} Preference Share Capital March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Authorised Corpulsarily Preference Shacve Canital
Non Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of ¥ 10 each 9,95,00,000 9,950.00 9,950.00

‘ 9 950.00 9 950.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid wa )
Nor Curnulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,09,71,941 of ¥ 2,097.19 2,097.19
10 each”

2 097.19 2097.19

ADuring the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has issued 2,09,71,941 Non Cumulative Compulsory Convertibie Preference Share @ ¥ 69.13
{face value ¥ 10 each) convertible in to equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 each. The details of CCPS holders as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 is as

under:
As at As at
Marh 12 2 M r h31 2024
Name Of Share Holder N;::r:;d Amount Number of Amount
South Asla Growth Invest LLC 2,00,08,283 2,090.83 2,09,08,283 2,090.83
South Asia EBT Trust 63,658 6.37 63,658 6.37
Total 2,09,71,941 2,097.20 2,09,71,941 2,097.20

Terms and rights of Compulsorily Convertible Preferance Shares (CCPS) issued to South Asia Growth Invest LLC and South Asla EBT

Trust:
CCPS would be compuisorily converted into 2,09,71,941 number of equity shares as agreed between the company and CCPS holders at the option of the

CCPS holders at any time after the date of allotment of CCPS but not later than 5 years from the date of allotment.

As per the original terms (including addendum thereto}, the CCPS holders had right on the promoters of the Company to provide it an exit at fair market
value of securities after 50 months from the Execution Date of agreement{ December 7, 2022), if the Company is unable to provide exlt to Investors
gither via IPQ or any other route. Subsequently, the parties agreed and amended the terms wherein after 60 months from the Execution Date of
agreement, the investors would be entitled to request the Company and its promaoters to buyback its shares and the Board may, at its sole discretion
{with the affirmative vote of the investor nominee director), if deemed commercially prudent to undertake a buy-beck in accordance with the applicable
laws. Based on the assessment of the Campany as per the amended terms, the buy back event is controfled by the Board of Directors of the Company

and hence these CCPS have been classifed as equlty.
If the Company is unable to provide an exit by way of buyback within the timelines as per agreement, the CCP5 holders shall be entitied to identify 2

Person who is willing to purchase all of the Shares from the CCPS holders and may require the Promoters to transfer any or all of the Equity Securitles

held by such Promoters to the identified person, if required by that identified person on the terms which shall be no less favorable than those as offered

to the CCPS holders.

The holders of CCPS ~

a) carry a pre-determined non-curnulative dividend rate of 0.0001% per annum in priority to any dividend on the Equity shares.

b} carry a preferential right vis-a-vis the equity shares of the Company with respect to payment of dividend and repayment of capital during winding
up.

c) Each CCPS shall entitle the holder to such voting rights that such holder would have been entitled to exercise if such CCPS had been converted into
Equity Shares in accordance with these terms prior to the date of such general meeting.

d} The CCPS shall be participating in the surpius assets and profits, on winding up which may remain after the entire capital has been repaid.

<{ORg
eking Q‘Q T
MY e 4 3
1)
s A o o \‘}s, g
st g
(0"

125



Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial stataments for the year endad March 31, 2025

{Amount In € lakhs, unless otherwlse statod)
Reprasents Non - Current part Represents Current part long

22 Non Current Borrowing - At Amortised Cost tong term borrowing term borrowing
Particula As at As at As at As at
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
(a) Term loan from bank 7,397.19 5,231.37 2,902.46 970.88
(b) External commergial borrowing (ECB) 1,508.63 2,208.15 754.32 736.05
(c} Redeemabie non-convertible debenture - - - 1,667.00
. 8,905.82 7,439.52 3,656.78 3,373.93
Less: Amount disclosed under other financial
liabilities as ‘Current Borrowings' (refer note 23) B B 3,656.78 3.373.93
8 905.82 7 439.52 - -

Security
(1) The term loan and external commercial borrowing mentioned In (a} ang (b} have been secured by first pari pasu charge on all movable fixed

assets of Ghaziabad plant.
{#l} The Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures mentioned (RNCD) in {¢) above have been secured by a first par] passu charge (equitable

mortgage)} on the land and building of Mangli plant held by Hero Cycles Limited and a first part passu charge on Flat No 2A , 16th Floor Gurugram
held by Hero Cycie Limited. These non convertible debenture were transferred to the Company via demerger scheme and are not transferred in
the name of the company. On due date company used to pay its liabllity to Hero Cycles Limited and Hero Cycle Limited used to pay to Debenture
Holder (HDFC Bank Limited) ; During the previous financial year, the charge against the Mangli land has been released by the Bank. The
Company has prepaid the entire outstanding batance ¥ 1,667.00 lakhs amount to Herc Cycle Limited before the due date for onward repayment

to Bank.Hero Cvcle Limited has rebaid the entire amount on due date .

Terms of Repayment
Maturity profile of secured torm loans Is as _ _
sat out below : 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-25 Beyond 2029-30
(I} Term loan from banks are repayabie in _
varterl instalments 2,902.46 2,902.46 2,630.71 1,864.02
External Commercial Borrowin s 754,321 754,321 754.31 - -
Notes :

1. The rate of Interest for term loan from Axis bank is (Repo rate +2.10% spread) i.e. 8.60% p.a.

2. The rate of Interast for term ioan from Kotak mahindra bank is Repo+ 2.15% spread ie. 8.65% p.a

3, The rate of Interest for term loan from ICICE Bank Limited is 3M MCLR+ 0.00% spread i.e. 8.65% p.a .

4, The rate of interest for External commerclal borrowings is 3M Secured Overnight Financing Rate + 2.75% p.a. .e. 7.64% to 8.08% p.a. The

Company have entered in to Interest rate swap @ 6.65% p.a. with Axis Bank Limited.
Detalls of borrowings availed and repaid during the year :

Farex As at
Particulars Opening Addlition Reinstatement Repayment March 31 2025
External commercial borrowing 2,944.20 - 26.87 {708.12) 2,262.95
Non convertible debenture 1,667.00 - - (1,667.00) -
Term loan 6,202.25 5,128.65 - {1,031.25) 10,299.65
Total 10 813.45 5 128.65 26,87 3 406.37 12 562.60
23 Curvent Borrowin - At Amortised Cost
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
(a) Working capltaf demand loan 18,305.57 16,590.05
(b) Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 22) 3,656.78 3,373.93
(<} Bank overdraft 1,825.16 892.47
{d) Export packing credit - 1 000.00
23 787.51 21 856.45
Note
The Com an had access to the followin  undrawn borrowin  facilities at the end of the re ortin  ear :
As at As at
Particuiars March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Floating Rete
Expiring Within One Year {Bank overdraft and other facllities) 3,260.84 3,324.00
Expiring beyond One Year {Bank loans } -
3 260.84 3 324.00
Security

(1} The Working Capital Demand Loan and Export Packing Credit mentioned in (a) and (d) have been secured by first parl pasu charge on entire
current assets of the company present and future for both Axis and Kotak Mahindra Bank.
(i) The Bank Overdraft have been secured by FD equivalent to 100% of QD [Imit.
Notes :
1. The rate of Interest for working capital demand loan from Axis Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank ranges 7.95% - 8.25% p.a.
2. The rate of Interest for Bank overdraft from Kotak Bank is term deposit+0.80% I.e. 8,10% p.a.

3. The rate of interest for export packing credit from Kotak Bank is 7.90% p.a.
4. Refer Note No. 22 for the terms and conditlons, nature of security and maturlty profile of the current maturities of long-term borrowings

{forming part of long term borrowings of the Company).
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone flnancial statemaents for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
24 Other financial Uabilities

Particulars

At amortised cost

Security deposit

Interest accrued but ot due on borrowings
Creditors for capital goods

Payable to Related parties

Bonus / Leave Travel Alfowarices

BHI Discournting / Factoring

Notes:

Non - Current

a) The company's exposure te currency and liquidity risk related teo trade payables is disclosed in note 46,

25 Other currant liabilities
Particulars

Advance from customer
Statutery dues

26 Provislons

Particulars

Provision for employee henefits
Proviston for compensated absences {Refer note 42)
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 42)

27 Trade avables
Particulars
Sundry Craditor for goods and services

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of craditors other than micro and small enterprises

a Tradae Pa ables a eln schedule as at March 31 2025:

Outstandin for followin

Particulars Less :;:n 1 12y
© MSME /Refer Note 51 2 168.51
Others 9 179.21

Diszuted dues — MSME R
Dis uted dues — Others -
Note : Unbilled included under less than 1 year.

a Trade Pa ablesa ain schedule as at March 31 2024:

Outstandin for followin  eriods from due date of

Particulars Less eﬂ;:n 1 1-2 y
MSME (Refer Note 51 1662.15 0.44
Others 10 089.76 38.66

iii Dis uted dues — MSME
W Dis uted dues — Others - -

Note : Unbilled included under less than 1 year.

Note:Refer note St for disclosure requierd under MSMED Act,2006
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As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
1.15 2.14
1.15 2.14
Non - Current
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
328.50 252.26
1,698.81 1,467.02
2027.31 1719.28
As at
March 31, 2025
2,168.51
9,206.04
11 374.55

2-3 years

26.83

2-3 years
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erfods from due date of a ment

More than
2 ears

More than
3

= ment

Current
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
£3.02 42,97
566,29 662.02
918.23 1,342.69
261.74 248.59
4,181.83 7,568.93
5981.11 % 865.20
As at March 31, As atMarch 31,
2025 2024
86.04 38.40
530.09 559.58
516.13 597.98
Current
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 2024
72.86 43.10
142,98 156.24
215.84 199.34
As at
March 31, 2024
1,662.59
10 128.42
11 791.01
Tetal
2 168.51
9 206.04
Tetal
1 862,59
10 128.42
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28

29

Deferred tax llabiiities Net
Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets
Net deferred tax liabilities

Particulars
Deferred tax liabliities relates to followings:

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Forward Contract Receivabie
Right of use asset

Deferred tax Assets relates to followings:
Employee benefit
Lease liability

Deferred tax Llabilities {(net)
Defarred tax ex ense relates to followin s:
Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Forward Contract Receivable

Right of use asset

Employee benefit

l.ease liability

Share based payment expenses

Total

The movement Iln deferred tax liabilities durln the earis as follows :
Particulars

Opening balance

Tax expenses recognised in profit or loss
Tax credit recognised in OCI

Closing balance

Income tax reco nised In Statement of rofit and loss
Particulars

Current tax expense:

Current year

Refating to earlier year Tax adjustment
Total current tax (A)

Deferred tax assets/ {liabilitles):

Current year origination and reversals of temporary difference
Refating to earlier year Tax adjustment

Deferred tax charge/ {credit) (B)

Total tax expense recognlsed In statement of profit and loss

Particulars
Income tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Income tax impact on Remeasurement of defined benefits
Total Income tax recognised In Other Comprehensive Income

As at March 31,
2025

2,133.22
813.32
1 319.90

As at March 31,
2025

1,945.05
14.97
173.20
2133.22

617.14
196.18
813.32

1 319.90

As at March 31,
2025
(417.88)
{6.76)
{173.20)
76.92
196.18

324.74

As at March 31,
2025
1,002.82
324.74
7.66
1 319.90

For the year ended
March 31, 2028

506.25
115.21
621.46

354.59
29.85
324.74
946.20

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

7.66
7.66

As at March 31,
2024

1,535.38
532.56
1002.82

As at March 31,
2024

1,527.17
8.21

1535.38
532.56

532.56
1002.82

As at March 31,
2024

(239.99)
{13.24}
(52.93)

58.87

335.99

583.28

As at March 31,
2024
395.92
583.28
23.62
1002.82

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

339.63
403.79
64.16

250.94
332.34
583.28
519.12

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

23.62
23.62

Reconciliation of estimated Income tax expense at tax rate to Income tax expense reported In the Statement of profit and loss |

Particulars

Profit before tax
Applicable income tax rate
Expected Income tax expenses

Adjustments:
Corporate Social Responsibiity
Income tax related to prior years

Aipeterred Tax adjustment related to prior year
AnSCthers

“® Taxati 4aws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019.

sported Income tax axpenses

Por the year ended
March 31, 2025

3,307.24

GORS,  smar

9
%
23.76

7
o 115.21

(29.85)

4.7%
946.20

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
2,416.11
25.17%
608.09

21.94
(403.79)
332.34

39.46
519.12

"Co_mpany has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 3%, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

30 Revenue from operations

. For the year ended For the year ended.
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of product 85,460.97 85,829.12
Sale of Service 2 148,95 1 562.04

87,609.92 87,391.16

Other Operating Revenues ‘
- Scrap Sales 1,703.75 1,368.47
- Export Incentive 473.38 360.25
89 787.05 89 119.88

a) Performance obligation

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of products and polnt of completion of services

During the year, the company has not entered into long term contracts with customers and accordingly disclosure of
unsatisfied or remaining performance obligation (which is affected by several factors like changes in scope of contracts,
periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not been materlalized, tax laws etc.) is not applicable to the

company.

b) Disaggregation of revenue:

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of geographical spread of the
operations of the company. The company belleves that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount of

revenues and cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors:

For the year ended For the year ended

Revenue based on Geography March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 62,954.76 61,385.43
Qutside India 26,832.29 27.734.45
Revenue from operations 89 787.05 89 119.88

- For the year ended For the year ended

Timing of revenue recognition March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue recognised at point in time 85,460.97 85,829.12
Revenue recognised over the time 4,326.08 3,280.76
Revenue from operations 89,787.05 89,119.88

c) Reconciliation of revenue from operations of products with contracted price
For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contracted Price 85,460.97 85,829.12

Less:

Sales Returns - -

Rebate and Discount - -

85 460.97 85 829.12

d Assets and liabilities related to contract with customers

Particular For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Trade receivables 18,003.38 17,731.38

Advances from customer 86.04 38.40

Remalning performance obligation as at the reporting date are expected to be substantially recognised over the next

reporting period by the Company.

e)Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year

Contract liabilities related to sale of services

Particular For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances from customer 38.40 405,80

Further, the Company has no contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the

customer and payment terms by the customer exceeds one year. In light of above;
- it does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money, and

o unbilled revenue as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, except as disclosed in trade receivab
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31 Other income

Particulars

Interest Income

- On bank deposits
- On Loan to Subsidiaries (refer note 12)

- Other

-0On loan to employees (refer nota 12)
Other non-operating income:

Rental income

Profit on sale of Property Plant Equipment

Profit on sale / fair valuation

Mark to Market Gain on Forward Contract

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain{net)

Excess Provision/ Liabilities Written Back

Galn on derecognition of Right of use asset and

lease llabifity#

Other Non Operating Income

Note:

# Net effect of derecognition of Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabilitles on accoun
land situated at Mangii Ludhiana, Punjab.

!

itte

r-“'aQ)
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For the year ended
March 31, 2025

356.27
835.40
58.67
3.78

23.09
11.64
49.24
26.84
499.17
0.04

9.01
1913.15

2
%

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

588.26
633.64
43.01

16.69
.3.38
87.29
32.63
246.14
300.00

105.12

2 056.16

t of termination of lease agreement of

o'Rs,,
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year endad March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32 Cost of raw material consumed

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Raw Matarial
Balance at the beginning of the Year 2,911.52 4,159.07
Add:- Purchases during the vear 58,241.54 57.646.98

61,153.06 61,806.05
Lessi- Balance at the end of the Year 3,521.50 2,911.52
Cost of materials consumed 57 631,56 58 §94.53
33 Changes In inventorles of finished goods, work In progress For the year ended For the year ended
and stock in trade March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-In-progress 2,855.38 3,128.05
Finished goods 6,432.29 6,431.06
Scrap Stock 46.97 70.56
Stock in trade - -
(A) 9 334.64 9 625.67
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 2,331.07 2,855.38
Finished goods 6,231.19 6,432.29
Scrap Stock 27.50 46.97
(E) 8 589.76 9 334.64
{Increase) / decrease in inventory (A-B) 744.88 295.03
34 Em lo ee benafits ax ense

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Salaries, wages & bonus 6,686.36 5,675.93
Contribution to provident and other fund {(Refer note 42) 547.33 501.80
Gratuity expense (Refer note 42) 327.64 304.82
Compensated absences 175.73 94.04
Staff welfare expenses 344.39 384.68
Share based payment expenses (Refer Note No.37 ) 1,481.65 3,046.17
Director Sitting Fees 3.70 1.60

9 566.80 10 909.04
35 Finance costs

. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024

Interest expense on

-term fgans & working capitel facilities 2,007.26 1,483.85
-redeemable non convertibie debentures - 182.11
-external commercial berrowings 165.50 202.48
-others 1.04 20.28

Other borrowling cost
- Reverse discount 231.95 152.77
- Buyer credit - 5.76
- Sales hilf discounting 3390.17 354.23
- Others 77.80 108.89
interest expenses on lease lfability 70.96 56.25
2 897.68 2 566.62

Note :

The company has capitalised the borrowing cost ® 271.61 lakhs {(March 31, 2024:% 222,58 lakhg) .The interest rate used for capitalizaticn
ranges from 8.95% - 9.45%.

36 De reciation and amortisation ex ense

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4) 1,742.99 1,375.10
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 6) 62,75 57.80
Amortisation of Right of use assets (Refer note 8) 87.85 56.50

1 893.59 1 489.40
king
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
37 Em lo ee Stock o tion lan
Detalls of Stock O tion Scheme

Particulars

Tranche-1
Tranche-2
Tranche-3
Tranche-4
Tranche-5
Tranche-6
Tranche-7
Tranche-8

Date of Board approval of the relevant scheme

Date of Shareholder's approval of the relevant scheme
Date of last modification by shareholders

Method of settlement {Cash/Equity)

vesting Period

Exercise period

ESOP Scheme [an 2022
Option Value

¥ in absolute value Date of Grant
60.93 December 02, 2022
27.44 December 30, 2022
29.97 December 30, 2022
32.34 March 01, 2023
16.57 July 13, 2023
16.95 November 17, 2023
10.96 July 17, 2024
11.13 December 12, 2024

Number of option
Granted*

95,15,278
49,43,511
39,54,809
11,54,196
5,89,800
1,44,975
6,99,738
1,06,620

December 02, 2022
December 02, 2022
August 13, 2024
Equity

Minlmum of 1 Year and maximum of 8 year from grant date
10 years from the vesting date

The optlens are granted to eligible employees at the latest available closing price of the shares of the company prior to

-Exercise price

Vesting Condition

Particulars

Ex enses arlsin from e uit - settled share based a ment transactions Refer note 34
Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions recognized in

statement of profit and loss
Notes:

the grant date as per the valuation report obtained by the company

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

1481.65
1,481.65

Vesting of options is a function of achlevement of performance criteria or any other criteria as specified by the company in
the grant letter, further the vesting takes place on staggered basls over the respective vesting perlod.

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

3 946.17
3,946.17

(i} The company has given stock options to certain employees and has considered the refated compensation cost to recognize in tbe statement of

prefit and loss ,over the vesting period

The details of activit under the ESOP Pians have been summarized below :

Particulars

Quistanding at the beginning of the year

Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Exercised durin the ear

Outstandin at the end of the ear
Vested and Exercisable at the ear end

Remaining average contractual life (In years)
Fair value of options granted

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

Number of
options*
2,00,70,524

3806111
169 32924

ESOP Scheme pian 2022
For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Weighted Average Welghted Average
Exercise Price (¥) Number of options* Exercise Price (¥)

41.10 1,95,67,794 40.38

69.14 7,34,775 68.43

69.14 {2,32,045) 68.43

10.00 - -

49.48 200 70 524 41.10

7375491
3.60 3.80

The weighted average fair value of stock optlons granted during the year pertaining to ESOP 2022 plan is ¥ 10.98 (March 31, 2024 ¥ 16.64) (in
Rupee) The fair value at grant date is determined using the using the Black- Scholes model which takes into account the exercise price, the term
of the option, the share price at grant date and expected expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yleld and the risk
free interest rate for the term of the option. The following tables list the inputs used for fair valuatlon of options for the ESOP plans

For option granted For option granted
Particulars during the year ended during the year ended
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
ESOP 2022 Plan ESOP 2022 Plan
Dividend yield 1.56% 0.53%
Expected volatility 53.16%-60.22% 36.97%~43.00%
Risk free interest rate 7.16% 6.69%-6.91%
Expected life of share option 3.5to 6.4 years 3.5to 6.4 years
Share price at grant 32.08 47.37
* Number of options are in absolute number
OR
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
38 Other ax enses
Particulars

Rent

Contract Labour Charges
Power & Fuel

Consumptlon of Stores & Spare
Packing Material Consumed
Security Charges

Repair & maintenance

- Plant & machinery

- Buildings

-Others

Legal & professional expenses
Payment to the auditors {refer note 'a’ below)
Freight & Forward Charges
Other selling expenses

Rates & texes

Travelling & Conveyance
Insurance Expenses

Bank Charges

Loss on sale/write off of PPE
Corporate Social Responsibilities {refer note 39}
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

a) Detalls of payment made to auditors is as
follows:
i) Payment to Auditor ~
- Statutory audit fee
- Tax audlt fee
- Other services and certification

For the year ended
March 31 2025

205.33
3,674.15
2,289.53
2,684.64
2,100.89

216.21

611.55
103.11
28.69
325.03
59.91
1,374.71
434.47
21.08
395.96
236,18
88.53
.15
94.42
713.91

15,658.45

For the year ended
March 31 2025

32.50

2.50

24.91
59.91

For the year ended
March 31 2024
165.68

3,309.99

2,410.42

2,081.56

2,174.98

182.23

608.84
96.20
29.53

294.07
56.83

1,377.79

387.97
35.63

376.70

235.95
58.82

2.37
87.16
552.59

14,605.31

For the year ended
March 31 2024

47.50
2.50
6.83

56.83

~ Excludes fees fer Initlal public offer related services of ¥ 180.67 Lakhs currently disclosed in Share Issue expenses recoverable

(Refer note 67).
39 Cor orate Social res onsibili ex enditure CSR
Particulars

Gross amount required to be spent by the company
during the year

Less: Set off of excess spent in previous year i.e, 2023

24

Gross amount required to be spent by the company
during the period

Amount spent during the year on ;

- National Apprenticeship Promotion Scheme

- Other

Unspent amount at the end of the year
Amount spent during current year pertaining to
previous years

Totei of previous year unspent balance

- For Current Year

- For previous Year

Mature of CSR activities

Detalls of related party fransactlon to CSR expenditure
as per relevant Accounting Standard :

Movement in the CSR provision during the year :
Opening Provision

Add:Provision made during the year

Less: Spent during the year

Provision / (excess) at the end of the year

kin
sXing ,
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For the year ended
March 31 2025

100.72
6.30

94.42

57.85
39.47

Nil

Mil
Skill Development and
Entrepreneurship
Nil

94.42
97.32
(2.90)

133

For the year ended
March 31 2024

80.85

80.85

27.77
59.39

28.58

Skl Developrment and
Entrepreneurship

Nil

28,58
87,16
115.74
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Hero Motots Limited
Notes to standalona financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, uniess otharwise stated)

40

41

Earnings per share (EPS

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders {A) 2,361.04 1,896.99
Number equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (B) 35,73,84,491 35,35,78,380
Weighted average number of potential equity shares for Non-Cumulative compulsory 2,09,71,941 2,09,71,941
convertible preference shares
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (C} 37.76,29,178 37.,45,50,321
Nominal value of Equity shares {T} 10.00 10.00
Basic Earming per share {ASC) (in ¥) 0.53 0.51
Weighted average number of potential equity shares on account of Pending Employee 28,83.437 81,3%,045
Stock optipn Scheme e
Weighted average number of Equity shares {including dilutive shares) outstanding for 38,25,12,605 38,26,89,366
Dilutive EPS {D)
Nominal value of Equity shares ¥ 1000 10.00
Diluted earmings pet share {ASD} {in ¥) 0.62 0.5¢

Contingent ilabliitles and commitments

a) Contingent llabliities {To the extent not provided for)

The Company has reviewed all its pending claims, litigatlons and other proceedings and has adequately provided for wherever required. However,
wherever it js difficult for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respact of the below as it is determinable only on
receipt pf judgerment/decisions pending with varipus ferums/authorities, the Company has disclosed the same as Contingent Liabilities {pending
resolution of the respective proceedings).

The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material pr adverse effect on financial position of the Company. Also,
the Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the below contingent: liabilities,

Particulars

As At

March 31, 2025

As At

March 31 2024

- Legal Cases of tabour pending before Labour Court 98.27 92.34
- Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt {see note-1 below) 39.29 39.29
- Bank Guarantee 207.41 328.18

b)

<)

Several Legal Cases of labour pending at labour Court, Civil Court: and High Court. The Company has assessed and believe that none of these
cases, either individually or in aggregate, are expected to have any material adverse effect on its standalone financial statements. Howaver, Since
it Is difficult for the Company to estimate the timings of the cash outflows, if any, no further provision or separate disclosure is made in books of
account,

A Vendor - Sadhu Forging Limited, has filed suit claiming # 39.29 lakhs as balance payment against supply of material. Hero Motors Limited has
resisted the claim on the basis that the material supplied was faulty by the vendor, material was refected by Hero Motors Limited & Debit Note
ratsed to the Vendor, The case is pending at Civil Court, Faridabad

The excise department issued a show cause notice to demand duty of T 474,82 lakhs along with interest and penalties, Vide final prder dated
September 05,2017 the CESTAT set aside the SCN and dropped the demand. The Department filed Civil Appeal to impugn the final order passed
by CESTAT , which is pending consideration before the Supreme Court as per order dated September 20, 2024,

As At
March 31 2024

As At
Commitments March 31 2025
Capital commitment: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on the

capital account {net of related capital advances) 3,388.12

1,847.03

The Company does not have any other long term commitments or material non cancellable contractual commitments, which may have a material
Impact on the standalone financial statement.

1) Corporate guarantee 1o finance long term loan taken by subsidiary Spur Technologies Private Limited upto maximum exposure as on March 31,
2025 is ¥ 1590.00 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 1,590.00 lakhs). The outstanding balance of drawdown as on March 31, 2025 is ¥ 963.56 lakhs {(March

31, 2024: 1,103.66 lakhs).

2} Standby letter of credit to finance long term lpan taken by subsidiary Hero Motars Thai Limited upto maximurn exposure as on March 31, 2025
is % 4,709.10 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Ni). The outstanding balance of drawdown as on March 31, 2025 is T 4,355,98 Lakhs {March 31, 2024:

N,
3) Standby letter of credit to finance long term loan taken by subsidiary Hewland Engineering Limited upto maximum exposure as on March 31,

2025 is ¥ 2,878.27 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nit). The cutstanding balance of drawdown as on March 31, 2025 is ¥ 2,615.90 Lakhs (March 31,
2024: Nil).
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unfess otherwise stated}
42 Gratuit and other post-em 10 ment banefit lans

a} Definad contribution plans

The Company makes contribution towards Employees Provident Fund, Employee's State Insurance scheme and other welfare schemes. Under the rules
of these schemes, the Company is reguired to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. The company during the year recognised the following

amount in the Statament of profit and loss under company’s contribution to defined contribution plan.

Emplover's Contribution to Provident Fund/ Penslon Fund
Employer's Contribution to Employee State Insurance

Employer's Contribution to Welfare Fund
Total

For tha year ended
March 31, 2025
512,72
34.26
.35
547.33

For the year ended
March 31, 2024
465.86
35.24
0.70
501.80

The contribution payable to these schemes by the Company are at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

b} Defined benefit plans

In accordance with Ind AS 19 "Empioyee benefits®, an actuarial valuation on the basis of "Projected Unit Credit Method" was carried out, through which
the Company is able to determine the present value of obligations. "Profected Unit Credit Method” recognizes each period of service as glving rise to
additional unit of empioyees benefit entitiement and measures each unit separately to builk up the final obligation.

) Gratuity scheme

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to
specific benefit, The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age. The gratulty is funded for
Mangil unit by Life Insurance Corporation of India and unfunded for Ghaziabad unit.

The following tables surmmarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Staternent of profit and ioss and the fund status and amounts
€} recognised In the balance shest for the defined benefit plan and other fong term benefits. These have been provided on accrual basis, based oh year

end actuarial valuation.

Change In benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obllgation
Interest cost

Service cost

Effect of Business Combination

Past Service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial {gain} / loss on obligations

Prasent value of obligation as at the
end of the year

As at March 31, 2025

Gratulty Gratuity

{Funded) {Unfunded}
569.13 1,317.27
39.12 94.89
35.97 176.31

- {0.83)

(54.22) {132.15}
5,12 3281
583.88 1,488.10

As at March 31, 2024

Gratuity Gratulty
{Funded) {Unfunded)
538.65 1,296.72
38.65 96.80
31.33 157.68
(39.65) (135.51)
0.15 (98.42)
569.13 1,317.27

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Staternent of profit or Joss and the funded status and amounts

) recognised In the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Cost for the year included under
employeea benefit

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Effect of Business Combination

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Net amount charged to Profit and
Loss

a) Changaes In the falr value of the plan
assats are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning
Expected return on plan assets
Actual Cormpany Contributions
Employee's Contribution
LIC charges
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains / {losses) on the plan assets
Fair value of plan assats at the end

Detall of actuarial gain/loss
recognised In OCI is as follows:
Actuarial gaint / (loss) for the year -
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year - plan
Effect of Business Combination
Unrecognised actuarial gains / {losses} at
the end of year

For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024

Gratuity Gratulty Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded} {Unfunded) {Funded) {Unfunded}
35.97 176.31 31.33 157.68
39.12 94.89 38.65 96.80
- - {20.85) -
75.09 271.20 49,13 254,48
As at March 31, 2025 Ag at March 31, 2024
Gratuity Gratuity Gratulty Gratulty
{Funded) {Unfunded) (Funded} {Unfunded)
263.15 - 284.79 -
18.66 - 20.85 -
2.33 - 1.59 -
{49.98} - (39.65) -
{3.95) - {4.43) -
230.21 - 263.15 -
For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity
{Punded) {Unfunded) {Funded} {Unfunded}
6.12 (32.61) {0.15) 98.42
{3.95) - (4,43} -
2.17 (32.61) {4.58) 98.42
ORs
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Notes to
{ Amount

)

9)

h}

B

k)

standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Principal actuarial assumptions at the Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratulty
batance sheet date are as folows: {Fumded) {Unfunded) {Funded) {Unfunded)
Zconomic assumptions
1. Discount rate 6.68% 5.68% 7.09% 7.09%
7 Rate of increase I compensation 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
3. Expected Return on Plan Agsets 6.68% - 7.09% -
Demographic assumptions
1. Ratirement Age (years) 58 58 58 58

Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)} Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
2. Mortality Rate (medified) ultimate {modified) ultimate
Withdrawal Rate
1. Ages from 0 to 30 Years 3.90% 8.00% 3.90% 8.00%
2. Ages from 31 to 44 Years 3.90% 3.50% 3.90% 3.50%
3. Apes Above 44 years 3.90% 1.00% 3.90% 1.00%

The estimates of future salary Increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senterity, promoticn and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in the employment market,

Net assets / {llabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet and experience adjustments on actuarial gain / (loss) for benefit obligation
and plan assets.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratulty
Particula
curare {Funded) {Unfunded) {Funded} {Unfunded)
Present value of obligation 583.88 1,488.10 569.13 1,317.27
Less: Fair value of plan assets 230.21 263.15 -
Net agsets /( liabillty) {353.67) (1,4588.10) {305.98) {1,317.27)

Expected contribution for the next year is ¥ 391.17 iakhs {March 31, 2024: ¥ 340,70 lakhs) in respect of Gratuity for Mangii Unit.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is as shown halow:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Gratulty Gratuity Gratulty Gratuity
A. Discount rate {Funded) {unfunded) {Punded) (Unfunded)
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Discount Rate {35.59) (121.25) {34.44) {98.95}
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Discount Rate 39.81 143.43 38.54 116.07
B. Salary escalation rate
:g:ect on DBO due to 1% increase In Salary Escalation 36.84 141.57 36.21 115.08
g:ect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Salary Escalation (35.37) (122.18) (34.48) (100.09)

C.There are no changas in current year from the previous corresponding period In the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity

analysis

D. Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence imoact of chanae due to these not calculated..

Risk

Discount Rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations ¢an Increase the liability.

Actual salary increases will increase the defined benefit liability. Increase in salary Increase rate assumption

in future valuations which inturn also increase the Eability.

Withdrawais Actual withdrawals proving higher or iower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawals rates at
subsequent valuations can impact defined henefit liability.

Actual details and disabllity cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the

liabtlities.

Salary Increases

Morality and disability

Maturity profile of cash outflows ralating to

defined henefit obligation are as follows: As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Gratuity Gratulty Gratuity Gratulty
{Funded) {Unfuncded) {Funded) {Unfunded)
0 to 1 years 40.88 122.92 71.89 123.03
110 2 years 47.52 179.11 66.61 119.77
2 to 3 years 75.08 141.26 46.51 171.23
310 4 years 64.56 160.79 69,85 134,32
4 to 5 years 86,38 157.61 60,55 154.09
From S years gnwards 290.87 491.83 310.69 546.78
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{Amount th ¥ Iakhs unless othearwise stated

43  Related party transactions
a)  List of reinted arties
Nature of Relathonshi
Subsidiaries

Enterpris gver wihich Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
exercise Significant influence

Enterprise cver which Directors and thefr relatives exercise Significant
influence

Nama of tha Relatad Part

Hero Motors Thai Ltd. (September 24, 2021)

Spur Technologies Private Limited {Novernber 29, 2023}
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited (Febryary 17, 2023}
Hewtand Enginesring Limited (February 21, 2023)

HYM Drive S stams Private Limited (April 07, 2022)
Bhagyoday Investrnants Frivate Limited

Firefox Bikes Private Limited

Hero Cycles Group Private Limited

Hero Cyches Linited

HMC E-¥allay Private Limited {forrmerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limitad)
Hero PBG Cycies Private Limited

Hero Transmisshon Private Limited

High Rise Industries

Lectro E-Mobility Privata Limited

Munfal Kirdu Industries Private Limited

Muonjal Sales Corporaticn

OMA Privabe Limited

HNF Gmbh

Meenakshi Polymer Private Limited

ZF Hero Chasasis S5 stems Private Limitad

Nuwvomax Nutritionals Private Limited

Ke Managemeant Personnal (KMP and thair ralative

Mt. Pankai Munjal
" Amit Gupta
, Abhishek Muntal
3. Ruhani Munjal
- . Keshav Misra

Mr. Sridhar Harayan

Mr. Kulbir Sin h

Or, Andrew Charles Patmer
Mr. Ashok Kumar Taneja
Mr. Gaurav Dalméa

+, Pratibha Goyal

Mr. Dar an Vasishta
Mr. Ritesh Kumar Agrawal

Mr, Utkarsh Sanghi
Ms. Sheeba Dhami a

A olntment-Ma 24,1998

PEETIERPIE A Py ug 2022

Chairman and Director
Managir: Divector & CEQ A

“hale-time Director des unatm-Septunber 09 2022
kigor te Chairman spe s of Mr. Abhishek Munfal
w-Execytive Director  mEgsvment-Se ber 09,2022

gon -Executive  Nominee , ..invment- January 04,2023

Inde endent Director Appointment-February 01,2023

Independent Director A pintment-Jul 16,2024

Indapendent Director A ofntrnent-Au ust 12,2024

Independent Director Appointment-August- 12,2024

Id ' nd ntDirector -May 26,2021

r -lanuasv 28,2025

Lassaton-March 01 2023
Cessnt on-October 13 2023
Appointmeant-February 16, 2024
Cessation-June 25 2025
Appointment-June 25,2025
Cessar-:n 19 Jut 2024

. 1"Executive Dlractor
Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Fihancial Officer
L hpary e etary

Ms. Sakshi Dureja Company Secretary and  Appointment-August- 12,2024
Commiance Officer )
Ms. Esha Gupta Company Secretary and  Appointrment-December
Co ol 0 . 0
b) Related Party Transactions
A, Tranvactions with rafated arties
Year Ended Yaar Ended
S-No Particuiars Relation March 31, 2025 March 31 2024
a. Sala of Goods
Spur Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary 132.30 16.49
Hero Cydes Limibed* Significant Influence - 14,78
HMC E~vallay Private Limited (formery known as Here E-Cycies Private  Significant Influence 14,88 10.54
Limited)
Hero Motor Thai Uimitad Subsidiary 235.24 188.55
Hym Drive Systems Private Limitad Subsidlary 35.86 16.98
Hero EDU Svstems Private Limited Subsidiary 6.76 5.5¢
Munial Kirig Industries Private Limied Significant Influence 267.30 -
b, Purchase of goods
Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited Significant Tnfluence 2,540.55 2,134,07
Spor Technologles Private Limited Sulysidiary 1,368.12
HMC E-valley Private Limited {formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Significant Influence - 4,01
Litnitad)
High Rise Industries Sigrnificant Influetce 1,554.39 1,705.87
Haro Cycdes Limftad* Slanificant Influence - 17.81
Oma Private Limited Significant Influence 1.39 1.23
Hym Drive Systems Privata Limited Subskdlary - 7.44
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary v1.19
Meenakshi Polvioer Frivate Limited Significant Influence 148.25 172,90
€ Consultancy Fees
Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limiged Significant Influence 234.75 183,45
d. -Purchase of Servica
Here Cycles Limitad™ Significant Influence 2,234.15 2.416.51
Hewland Enginesring Limiced Subsidiary 20.58 29.36
& Purchase of Property. Plant and Equinment
Hero Cvdles Litmited* Shanificant Influence - 2,308.78
Spur Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary - 5.44
Oma Private Lirnited Sianificant Influence 15.67 -
Hewland Enalneering Licnited Subsidiary 52531 -
f. Sale of Property, Plant and Eaulpmaent
Hero EDU Svstems Private Limived Subsidlary 16.18
r Technok ies Private Limited Subsidia 22,05 OR 5
Y
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Notes to standal fi ial atak

Amount In € lakhs, uniess otherwise stated
b} Related Party Transactions

A,

Transactions with related arties

ts for the year ended March 31, 2025

5.No Particutars Relation
g. Loan glven
Hero Motor Thal Limited Subsidiary
Hewland Enaineering Limited Subsidiary
Hero EDU Systems Private Limifed Subsidiary
Hym Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary
k. Loan received back
Spur Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary
Hero Motor Thal Limited Subsidiary
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary
L Investment in equity shares
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited Subsidiary
Sour Technolovies Private Lirnited Subsidiary
1 Purchase of 100% sauity from Haro Cvcle Limited
Spur Technologies Private Limited Transaction under
COMMON Control
k. Rentsl income
Spur Technologies Private Limited Subsidiary
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited Subsidiary
1.  Rental expense
Bere Cycles Limlted* Sigoificant Influence
m. Interest Income on loan
Herp Motor Thai Limited Subsidlary
Hym Drive Systems Pvt Limdted Subsidiary
Spur Technalogies Private Limited Subsidiary
Hewiand Enatneering Lirited Subsldiary
Hero EC4J Sysbems Private Limited Suobsidiary
n. Other Incoms
Hero Cycles Limited™ Signlficant Influence
0. Other Expanss
Reimbursemeant Of Expensas
Here Giobal Designs Limlted Significant Influence
Spur Technologias Private Limitad Skanificant Influence
HMC E-Valley Private Uimitad (formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Significant Influence
Limited)
Hero Cycles Limited™ Sianlficant Influence
Hero Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary
Hewland Enaineering Limited Subsidiary
Hytn Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary
Hero Edu Systems Private Limited Subsidiary
P« Corporate Guarantes
Spur Technolkogies Private Limited Subsidiary
q. Standby lattar of cradit
Haro Motor Thai Limited Subsidiary
Hewiand Engineering Limited Subsidiary
r. Ramuneration paid to Key Managament Parsonnel**
Refer nate (a) balow
Amit Gupta Managing Director and
Darpan Vashishtha (DOL-13-0ct-23} CFO
Ritesh Agrawal (DOJ-16-Feb-24) CFO
Abhlshek Munfal Whole Time Director
Ruhanl Munjal Relative
Sheeba Dhamija Company Secretary
Sakshi Dureja {12 Aug 2024 to 11 December 2024) Company Secretary
Esha Gupta (11 Decembar 2024 to t date) Company Secretary
s. |Shara issued under ESOP Schame
Amit Gupta Managing Director and
rE0
t. Directors sitting Feas:
Mz, Pratibha Goyal Independent Director
Mr. Kuibir Singh Independent Dlractor
Mr. Ashok Kumar Taneia Indepandent Director
Mr. Gaurav Dalmla Independent Diractor
Mr. Andrew Charles Palrmer Director
u. Dividend paid
Hero C des Limited=
%
%4 =
=)
b’\
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Year Ended
March 31 2028

85,73
1,045,80
540,00
914,00

0.5]

395.76
95.82

227.%
116.47

2.878.27
4,527.90

354.59

143.28
327.85
22.56
6.68
5.38
10.34

380.61

1.50
1.40

0.10
0.30

19.31

Year Ended
March 31, 2024

371.34
1,005.15

1,225.00
646.00

{250.00M

1.970.00

950.00

217.94

501.36
12,93
15.34
62.42
40,59

300.00

2,40
0.26

48.44
207.53

.47
275.19

1,590.00

396.57
93,52
16.65

33505
20.93
20.95

0.60
1.00



Hero Motors Limited .
Notes Lo standatone financial statements for the year endnd March 31, 2025

{Amount in ¥ lakhs unless otherwise stated

B.

Closin  Balances

As at As at
SNo Particulars Relation March 32 2023 March 1.2 24
4. Trade Recelvable
Spur Technolkgies Private Limited Subsidiary - 25.83
HML E-Valley Private Limited {formerly khown as Hero E-Cycles Private  Significant Influence 635.23 615,96
Limitedy
Hero Global Designs Limited Significant Influence - 1.12
Hym Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidlary 42,49 35.16
Haro Mobor Thal Limibad Subeidiary 250.71 288.28
Mungal Kiriu Industries Privata Limited Sknificant Influence 82491 -
b. Othar Recelvable
Hero Edu Systems Private Limited Subsldiary 723.28 394,39
Hym Drive Systams Private Limitad Subsidiary 20.15 -
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary - 0.60
Hero Motor Thal Limited Subsidiary - 82,03
Spur Technoloales Private Limited Subsidlary 8.64 -
Armit Gupta Manaqing Director & CED 29.16 -
G Trade Payable
Munjal Kirlu Industries Private Limited Shanificant Tnfluence 1,139.43 1.200.0¢
Huvormax Nutritionals Private 1td Sianificant Irfluence - 28.03
Zf Herg Chassls Systems Privabe Limited Significant Influence - 5.51
Sour Technoloaies Private Limited Subsidiary 125.46 -
High Rise Industries Significant Influence 25.4% 61.56
Meenakshi Polvmer Private Limited Stanificant Influance 14,12 -
Oma Private Limited Siceificant Inffuence 0.13
HNF Gmbh Slgnificant Influence 1.69
Hewland Engineering Limited Subsidiary 22,14 -
d. Other Pavahle
Hero Cycles Limited* Shanificant Influence 1,000.61 1,34351
Huvormax Hutritionals Private Limited Sianificant Influence 10.21 -
Hero Global Dasian Limited Significant Influerce 0.04 -
Spur Technoloales Private Limited Subsldiary 3.5t -
Hewland Enginearing Limited Subsidiary 48.93 -
e, Pavabie agalnst purchase of Property , Plant and Equipmaent
Hero Cycles Limited* Sianificant Influence 228.20 228.20
f. Investment in Equity Shares
Hym Drive Systems Private Uimited Subsidiary 2,880.00 2.880.00Q
Hero Motor Thal Limibed Subsidiary 1,418.93 1,418.93
Hero Edu Svstems Private Limited Subsidiary 1,750.00 100.00
Hewland Enaineering Limited Subsldiary 10.08 10.08
Spur Technologles Private Limibed Subsidlary 3,800.24 2,920.24
9. Interast Recelvable
Hewland Englneering Limited Subsidiary 27.93 62.09
Hero Edu Systemns Private Limited Subsidiary 141.35 40.5%
Here Motor Thai Limited Subsidiaty 669.07 746.05
Hym Drive Systems Private Limited Subsidiary 97,88 12.93
h. Loan Receivable
Hyra Drive Systerrs Private Lirited Subshdiary 1,560.00 646,00
Herg Moter Thal Limited Subsidiary 2,695.72 £.412.89
Hewland Enqlneering Limited Subsidlary 770.90 2,438.24
Hero Edu Svysterns Private Limited Subsidiary 1,765.00 1,225.00
i. Other Advance
Hero Cycles Limiked* Significant Influence 1.667.00
j. Corporate Guarantes
Spur Technologles Private Limited Subsidiary 1,550.00 1,590.00
k. Standby letter of cradit
Hero Motor Thal Limited Subsidiary 4,599.00 -
Hewlan_ Enqia.. ring Liml Subridia 2913.00 -
Note a ** The status of stock options pendin  vestin Jexercise, ranted to Ke Mana ement Personnels are as below
Mr. Amit Gupta Mr. Keshav Misra
Nam# of Kay Managemaent Personnel ESOP Scheme Plan 2022 ESQP Schams Plan
ESOP tranche Tanche-1 Tanche-2 Yanche-1
Exercige rice ¥ ero tion 10 69.14 69,14
Share option outstandin  as at 315t March 2025 In Nos) 57 09 167 49,43,511 39,54 809
Share o tion outstandin  as at 31st March 2024 In Nos) 95.15.278 49,43,511 30 54 ANO

biRefier Note 20 *Equity share capltal’ for movement of shareholding
c)* These are the transactions/ balances taken from entries parked in the books of Hero Motor Limited
d) The Company bas carmied out an Independant assessment of all the transaction with its related parties and is of the opinion that all the transactions are

at arm's length.
44 Ultimuta Baneficiary
{i) The Compary has rot sdvanced or loaned &r invested funds to any other person{s} or entity(ies}, incfuding foreign entities (intermediaries) with the
{a} directly or indirectly Jend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mariner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the Hke to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficlaries

{lI) The Cotnpany has not received any fund from any person(s} or entity{ies), including foreign entities (funding partles) with the understanding (whether
(&) directly or indirectly lend or Invest In other parscns or entitles identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the funding Parties (ultimate

(b} provide anv quarantee, security ot the like to or on behaif of the ultimate beneficiaries
o'ORs
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

45 Fair value measurements
I Financial instruments
a) Financial instruments by category
Except investment in mutual funds which are measured at fair value through profit or ioss and Investment in Debentures and unquoted equity
investment {(other than investment in subsidiary) which are measured through fair value through other comprehensive income all other
financial assets and liabilities viz. trade recelvables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, interest receivable,
other receivables, trade payables, employee refated liabiliies and borrowings, are measured at amortised cost.
by) Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the standalone financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair vaive and (b) measured at amortised cost (¢) measured through fair vafue through other comprehensive
income and for which fair values are disclosed in the standalone finandal statements. To provide an indication abeut the refiability of the
inputs used in determnining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table,
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financials liabilities, incuding their levels of in the fair
value hlerarchy:
As at As at
Particulars Levet March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets measured at fair value through Profit and loss
Investment in Mutual Funds Level 1 216.02 667.56
Forward Contract Receivable Level 1 59.47 32.63
Financial assets measured at fair value through Other comprehensive Income
Other investment Level 3 29.52 15.12
Investment in Bebenture Level 3 265.68 136.08
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Investment in equity shares (Unquoted) 9,859.25 7,320.25
Loan to employees B 247.67 191.26
Loan to related parties 6,791.62 9,722.53
Security Deposits & Margin Money 447.40 550.97
Irterest accrued but not due on margin money 96.43 251.69
Interest accrued but not due on loan %o related parties 936.23 861.99
Interest accrued and due on Deposit with Electricity department - 3.86
Other Receivable 1,329.22 1,230.87
Trade receivables 18,003.38 17,731.38
Cash and cash equivalents 4,546.08 7,515.31
Receivables from related art 752.07 394.39
Total Financial Assets 43,580.04 486,634.89
Financial liabiiltles valued at amortized cost
Barrowings 32,693.33 29,295.97
Security Deposits 1.15 2.14
Lease Liabilities 779.50 802.56
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 53.02 42,97
Trade payables 11,374.55 11,791.0t
Employee Benefit Payable 261.74 248.59
Payable to Relatad parties 918.23 1,342.69
Creditors for capital goods 566.29 662.02
Bill Discountin  / Factoring 4,181.83 7.568.93
Total Financial Liabilitles 50,829.64 51,756.88
¢) Capital management
The company’s capital management objectives are:
{a) to ensure the company’s ability to continue as a going concer
{b) to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurataly with the level of risk.
For the purpose of Company's capital managernent, capital Includes equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company and other
equity reserves. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and
maximize shareholders value.
Gaaring Ratio
The Company has outstanding lortg term debt of ¥ 8,905.82 lakhs at the end of reporting year (previous year ¥ 7,439.52 lakhs) and short
term debt of ¥ 23,787.51 lakhs at tha end of reporting period (previous year ¥ 21,856.45 lakhs). Accordingly, the gearing ratio is worked out
as follows:
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Long term borrowing (refer Note 22) 8,905.82 7,439.52
*Short term borrowing {refer Note 23) 23,787.51 21,856.45
‘Lease [ability (refer note 9) 779.50 802.56
Total debt 33 472.82 30 098.53
Less: Cash and hank halances 4 546.08 7 515.31
Adjusted net debt %! OR 28 926.75 22 583.22
Total equity Q. < 43,797.07 40,538.60
d net debt to equity < /g' 66.05% 55.71%
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Hero Motars Limited

Notes to standalona financlal statemants for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in € lakhy, unless otharwise stated)

46 Financial risk managemant objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables, borrowings, current maturity of borrowings, interest accrued and capital
creditors. The main purpose of these financial lfabiitles is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s
principal financlal assets includes Investment in mutual funds, foans to related parties, security deposits, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, deposits
with bank, interest accrued In deposits, receivables frorm related and other parties and interest accrued thergon,

The Cornpany has exposure to the fellowing risks arising from financlal Instruments:

- credit risk,

- liquidity risk and

- market risk.

The Company’s senior level management oversees the management of these risks and ts supported by finance department that, advises on the appropriate financial

sk governance framework.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting én finance foss to the Company. Credit risk arise from Cash and cash
equivalents, deposit with panks, trade receivables and other Ainanclal assets measure at amortised cost. The Company continuously monltors defavits of customers
and other counterparties and Incorporate this information into #s cradit rsk control.

Lui:u“i;ditcv n?fs the risk that the Company may not bo able to meet its preserit and future cash and collateral gbligations without incurting unacceptable losses.

The Company’s ehjective Is to, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adeguate sources of financing including Joans from banks at an optimised cost,

The table below summarises the maturity profiie of the Company’s financial ilabifities based on contractual undiscounted PAYMants.

As at March 31, 2025 Less than 1 year 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Berrowings 23,787.54 8,505.82 - 32,693.33
Trade payables 11,374.54 - - 11,374.54
Other financial fiabilities 5,981.11 1.15 - 5,982.26
Lease Llabilities 114.91 600.97 303,95 1,109.83
Total 41,258.07 9 597.94 303.95 51 159.97
As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1 year 1to S years > 5 yaars Total
Borrowings 21,856.45 7,439.52 - 29,255,97
Trade payables 11,791.01 - - 11,79:.01
Other firiancial fabillties 9,865.20 2.14 - 9,867.34
Lease Liabliites 94.02 640.10 459.74 1203.86
Total 43 606,68 8 081.76 459,74 52 158.18
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes i market prices. Market risk comnprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, curréncy risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commeodity risk.

Intergst cate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market Interest rates relates primarlly to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with ficating interest rates. Tha
Company meanages its net exposure to interest rate risk related to borrowings, by balancing a proportion of fixed rate and floating rate borrowing in its total
borrowing portfollo.

Interest Rate Sengitivity: The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate ko the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, The following tabla
demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the
Company's profit bafore tax is affected through the Impect on Roating rate borrowings, as follows:

Increase or Decreasa

Particutars decrease in /{incrense)} in
basis points profit before tax
March 31, 2025 +50 173.65
-50 {173.66)
March 31, 2024 +50 150,92
-50 (150.92}
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Hero Motors Limited
Notas to standalons financial statemants for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

i)

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis Is based on the currentiy cbservable market environment, showing a significantly
higher volatility than in prior years.

Unhedged foralgn currency exposore

The carrying amount of the Company's unhedged foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31,2025 Az at March 31,2024
Foreign Forelgn
ooy N cwrency ccy T currency
=Trade payables :
EUR {64.02) {0.70) EUR {32.73) {0.36)
usb (682.87 (7.599) uso (50.41) (0.60)
GBP (2.49) {0.02} GBP
-Trada Receivables
EUR 2,781.75 30.21 EUR 699.07 7.78
uUso 4,761,29 55.70 usD 3,204.37 38.42
=Loan 1o Subsidiary
-Hewland Engineering Limited GBP - - GBP 1,4338.49 13.70
Note: External commercial borrowing Js not prone to foreign exchange sensitivity risk as the same has been hedged.
Foraign currency risk

Foreign currency tisk Js the risk that the falr vaiue or future cash flows of an exposure wiil luctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
exposed to foreign curtency risk on certain transactions that are denominated in & currency other than entity's_ functional currency, hence exposure to exchange
rate Auctuations arises. The risk is that the functional currercy value of cash Bows will vary as a result of movements in exchange rates. The following tables
demonstrate the sensitivity (strengthening or weakening of Indian Rupee) to a reasonably possibie change In exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Impact on profit before tax Impact on total equity
. Year ended Year endad Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2028 March 31 2024 March 31 2025 March 31 2024
USD sensitivity
Increase by 5 %’ 203,92 156.92 203.92 156.92
Decrease by 5 % {203.92} (156.92) (203.92) {156.92)
Impact on profit before tax Impact on total aquity
Yaar ended Year ended Year endad Year endad
March 3% 2025 March 31 2024 March 31 2025 March 31 2024
EURD sensitivity
Increase by 5 % 135.89 91.00 135.85 91.00
Decrease by 5 % {135.89) {91.00) (135.89) (91.00}
Impact on profit before tax Impact on total equity
Year ended Year ended As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
GEP sensitivity
Increase by 5 % (0.12) 71.92 (0.12) 71.92
Decrease by 5 % 0.12 (71,92} 0.12 {7L.92)

Note: External commerdial borrowing is not prone to foreign exchange sensitivity risk as the same has been hedged.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
Amount in ® lakhs unless otherwise stated

47 Segment Reporting
The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the hasis of business segment. The Company Is organised into key business segments -
Power Train & Alloy & Metallics . Segments have been identified and reported based on the nature of the products, the risks and returns, the
organisation structure and the internal financial reporting systems.
The following is the segment information :

Power Train Alloy & Metallics Total
Particulars
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Yea Curvent Year Previous Year

1. REYENUE

External sales {Gross) 34,671.54 35,385.47 52,938.38 52,005.41 87.600.92 87.291.16

Other Operating Income 776.47 594.00 1,400.66 1,135.00 217713 1,728.72

Total revenue 35.448.01 3597947 54 339.04 53,140.41 89.787.05 89,119.88
Z. RESULTS

Segment resuits 3,965.00 4,274.22 201374 1,976.67 5,978.74 6,250.89

Unallocated Income/ ex enses net of income - - - - 22618 1 268.16)

O eratin  rofit 2965.00 4274.22 2013.74 1 976.67 & 204,92 4982.73

Finance costs - - B - 2,897.68 256662

Profit before tax - - - - 3307.24 2416.11

Provision for taxation - - - - 846.20 519,12
Net profit after tax - - - - 2361.04 1 896.99
3. OTHER INFORMATION

A. ASSETS

Segment assets §3,251.37 39.678.01 21,317.84 24,945.98 74,569.01 64,623.99

Unaliocated assats - - - - 24,236.68 31,180.91

Total asgets 28 805.89 95 814.90
B. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity (Share Capital & Other Equity} 43,797.07 40,538.60

Segment llabilities 12,768.39 8,357.58 $,132.50 16,609.32 21,900.89 24,966.90

Securad and unsecurad [eans - - - - 32,693.33 29,295.97

Unallocated [fabllities - - - - 414.60 1.013.43

Total liabilitles 98 805.89 95 814.90

€. OTHERS

Unallocated capital expanditure - - - - 9,046.03 | 8,945.65

Unallocated depreciaion and amortisation expense - - - - 1,893.59 1,489.40

Unaflocated non cash expenses other than decreciation - - - - 148165 | __ 294617

Geographical information
Secondary segment reporting Is performed on the basis of geographical location of customers. The operations of the Company are 69% in India, with
exports contributing to approximately 31% {Pravious Year 37%) of its annual saies. The management views the Indlan market and export market as
distinct geographicai segments.
Revenue from external customers (Refer note 30)
Non-current o eratin assets: % in lakhs

As at March  As at March

31 2025 31 2024

india 36,705.78 29,551.99
Outside India - N
Total 36 705.78 29 551.99

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of proporty, plant and equipment, Right of use assets, Capital work in progress and Intangible assets,
Segmant accounting policies:

In addition to the matertal accounting policies applicabie to the operating segments as set out in note 2.1, the accounting policies in relatlon to segment
accounting are as under:

(i} Segment revenue and expenses:
Joint revenue and expenses of segments are allocated amongst them on a reasonable basis, All other segment revenue and expenses are directly
attributable to the segments.

(i} Segment assets and liabilities:
Segment assets inciude ail operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating cash, trade receivabies , inventories and property,
plant and equipment, which are reported as direct offsets In the balance sheet. Segment liabilities Include all operating fabilities and consists principally of
trade payables. Segment assets and llabilities do not Include deferred Income taxes. While most of the assels/ labiities can be directly attributed to
individual segment, the carrying amount of certain assets/ liabilities pertalning to two or more segments are allocated to the segments on a reasonable
hasis.

Segment revenue and profit

The expenses that are not directly attributable to tha business segments are shown as unailocable expenses,

Segment assets and liabilities

Segrment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of debtors, Inventories, advances and Property Plant and
Equipments. Assets at the unallocable level including cash and bank balances ,Loans, other financial asset, Investment and tax assets are not allocable to
segments on a reasonable basis and thus the same have not been allocated,

Segment iiabillifes inciude all operating llabilities and consist principally of creditors and acerued llabliities,

The Company’s largest customers who represents more than 10% of the total revenues are as follows;

As at As at
Particutars Type of Customer March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 -
Customer A Domestic 42,439.49 41,347.60
Customer B Export - 9,483.89
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

48 Scheme of Arrangement
The Board of Director of Hero Cycle Limited (HCL) ("Transferor Company”)} as its meeting held on August 27, 2021 has
approved a scheme and subsequently filed with Natlonal Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) for demerger of Auto business of
HCL into Hero Motors Limited ("resulting Company®).

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the Natlonal Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November 09, 2022 for
which the certified copy of the order dated November 09, 2022 was received on November 16, 2022, the Demerged
Undertaking (Primarily related to Auto Business consisting, Inter-alia, of all assets including movable and immovable
properties and labilities related thereto) was demerged from the Demerged Company and transferred to the Resulting
Company, with effect from April 01, 2021, the appointed date,

Shareholders of the Demerged Company were to receive 81,174 share of the Resuiting Company for every 100 share they
held in the Demerged Company,

As per the Scheme, all assets and llabilities of the Auto Business ("Demerged Undertaking™) stand transferred to the
Resulting Company from the appointed date, The employees of the Demerged Undertaking have also moved to the
Resulting Company and consequently the employee related benefits and all contracts and agreements in relation to them
have been taken over by the Resuiting Company in the financial year ended March 31,2022,

Pursuant to the approved Scheme, the Resulting Company has given effect to the scheme In the standalone financial
statements for demerger of Demerged Undertaking. Further, as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103
“Business Combination”, the comparatives for the year ended March 31, 2021 have been restated as if the common
control business combination had occurred from the beginning of the earilest perfod presented. The Accounting tréatment
includes the following:

1. Assets, Liabillties and Reserves of the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company
were recorded at thelr carrying values as appearing in books of the Demerged Company at the time of the demerger
effective date and in accordance with requirements of relevant Ind AS,

2. The Resuiting Company will issue new equity shares pursuant to the approved Scheme to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company

3. The inter-company balances between Demerged Company and Resuiting Company relating to Demerged Undertaking,
if any, In the books of accounts of Demerged Company and Resulting Company got cancelled.

4, The difference between assets, llabilitles and reserves transferred and the purchase consideration on Demerger is
recorded as "Demerger Adjustment Deficit Account” of Resulting Company.

5. As per para 43 of Ind-AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows, transactions that do not require the use of cash and cash
equivalents (i.e. the above transfer of assets and lfabilities under the scheme of demerger) have been excluded from the
standatone cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2022,

The detalls of Demerged Undertaking as per the scheme approved by National Company Law Tribunal into Resuiting
Company is as follows:

Particulars AsatA rill 2021
ASSETS

Non-cuirent assets 16,627.32
Current assets 31,231.48
Total assets 47 858.80
Equity and liabilitles

Equity

Other equity 3,214.36
Total equity 3 214.36
Liabilities

Non- current Habilities 13,860.89
Current fiabliitles 30,783.55
Total equity and liabilitles 47 858.80
Excess of assets over liabilities Nil
Less: Issue of equity share capital of the Company due to demerger (Refer

75,279.98

Note 20)

Amount credited to Demerger Adjustment Deficit Account pursuant to the (75,279.98)

above scheme of demerger
Note : Equity shares pending for Issuance at the end of previous year L.e. March 31, 2022 were issued in financial year
ended March 31, 2023.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otharwise stated)

50

51

52
53

57

60

Transfer Pricing:

The Company has established a comprehensive system on maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer
pricing legislation under 92-92F of the Incomte Tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existance of such information and
documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the
International transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the year and expects such records to be in existence
latest by the due date as required under law. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm's
length and the aforesaid legislation will ot have any impact on the financial statements.

Detalls of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act 2006:

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises had issued an Office Memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends
that the Micro and Smail Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum
Number as aliocated after filing of the Memorandum, Based on information received and available with the Company, there are no
amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2025 except as foliows:-

As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining
2,168.51 1,662.59

unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year

(i) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section
16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

(iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of

delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the

appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest - -
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Development Act, 2006

{iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the
end of each accounting year;

(v) the amount of further interest remaining due and payabie
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the Micro, Smali and Medlum Enterprises
Development Act, 2006.

Dues to Micro and Smali Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

informatlon collected by the Management.
There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educational and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 {'Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment recelived
Presidential assent, in September 2020 and was published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the code will come
into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any
related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The CSR activities and spend
are as per the CSR Policy recommended by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board.

Alt the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lakhs of Indian Rupees (INR’ or 'Rs.") and are rounded to the

nearest iakh, unless stated otherwise.

Relationship with Struck-off Companies

The Company has not incurred any transaction with struck-off companies i.e., investments in securities, receivables, payables,
shared held by struck off companies and other balances during the period,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

There is no charge created on the assets of the Company with the Registrar of Companies other then assets specified in Note 22,

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not done any investment or trading in crypto and virtual currencles,

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceedings has been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any Benami property.

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defauiter by any lender who has powers to declare a Company as a wilful defaulter
at any time during the financial year or after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are
approved.

<OR
King 0%,
R Ve o Z
L % 0y ﬁ/ m
° 3= o g
oo N 3};{\:

* 146



Hero Motors Limited

Notes

to standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unlass otherwise stated)
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67

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of account but has been surrendered or disclosed
as Income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act 1961 (such as, seerch or survey or any other relevant

provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961).
The Company has declared and paid Final dividend 7 942.05 lakhs {(March 31, 2024 interim dividend ¥ 935.70 lakhs ; T0.25

/share) during the year (¥ 0.25 /share).

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses.

As per the notification of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated August 05, 2022, -the Central Government has notified the
Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter
referred as ‘Rules’). As per said Rules, the Companies are, inter-alia, required to maintain back-up of the books of accounts and
other relevant books and papers in electronic mode in servers physically located in India on a daily basis. The beoks of account
along with other relevant records and papers of the Company are maintained in electronic mode and the same is physically tocated
In Indla and backups are being carried out on a daily basis.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company had entered into agreement of lease of jand from Hero Cycles Limited for 10 years which was expiring on March
31,2032; Subsequently, during the financial year 2023-24 , the Company had entered inte an agreement to buy this land at a
consideratfon of ¥ 2,282.00 lakhs and continued to hold the possession of the land and accordingly had terminated the land lease
agreement in 2023-24. The Company had paid ¥ 2,053.00 lakhs towards purchase consideration of the land and had disclosed the
balance amount payable under the head capital creditors and had capitalized the land as free hold land and has reclassified the
building constructed on this land from leasehold Improvements to buildings in financial year 2023-24,Further, net gain on account
of cancellation of land lease agreement (accounted as right of use assets and lease liability) has been credited under the head
‘Other income’ in Note 20 of signed financlals pertalning to financlal year 2023-24.

During the year the Company has got land of 7 2,053 lakhs (6.65 acres) registered in its name and registration charges paid
amounting ¥ 151.14 lakhs has been capitalized .The Company is in process of registering the land ameunting ? 228.00 lakhs (0.67
acres) in its name.

The Company is in the process of launching its initfal public offer (IPO), accordingly the Company is in the process of filing the
DRHP with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Company has incurred initial public offer reiated expenses of ¥
1,260.75 lakhs (March 31, 2024 2 232.00 lakhs) in connection with proposed public offer of equity shares. The initial public offer
related expenses shall be shared in proportion mutually agreed between the Parent Company and the Selling Shareholders in
accordance with applicable [aw. The Company’ share of expenses will be adjusted against securities premlum to the extent
permissible under Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 on successful completion of initial public offer.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification No. GSR 206(E) dated March 24, 2021 has issued the “Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2021”7 read with sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred as “the Act”} introducing Rule 11(g). As per this rule, every company which uses accounting software for maintaining fts
books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trall of each and every
transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made
and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

During the year, the Company maintained it's books of acesunt in SAP 54 Hana accounting software where audit trail feature (edit
log facility) was not evaluated, during the year ended March 31, 2025. The Company is evaluating implementation of audit trail
feature in accounting software used for maintaining its books of account to comply with the requirements of Proviso to Rule 3(1) of
the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014,

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Her ot LUmited

Abhishek Munjal [ pta

) ing Director and
Whole Time Director Executive Officer

(DIN: 05355274)

{DIn: 02997032)

O“ORS ¢ Place: Noida Place: Nolda
= / Date: August 12, 2025 Date: August 12, 2025
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'§ A w3 gf k4 Utkarsh Sanghl Esha Gupta
"SR P~ , Company Secretary
0 — 8\ Chief Financial Officer M. No. A23608
* Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date: August 12, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
To The Members of Hero Motors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanyling consolidated financial statements of Hero Motors Limited {the “Parent” and
its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaties together referred to as the “Group”) which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financlal statements, including a summary
of material accounting policles and other explanatory information.

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on
the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements, subsidiaries, referred te in
the Other Matters section below the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the Information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act*) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, (*Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted In India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025,
and their consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive incoeme, their consolidated cash fiows and
their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinlon

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements In accordance with the Standards on Auditing
("SA"s) specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group, In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolldated financiai statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirernents and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Other Matters section below,
Is suffidient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financlal statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

= The Parent’s Board of Directors Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included In the boards Report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements,
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Our opinion on the consolidated financlal statements does not cover the other information and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

et

ptiodgiLenter, Tower 3, 32nd floor, Senapat! Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road {(West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, Indla.
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¢ In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility Is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes avafiable ; compare with the financial statements of the
subsidlaries audited by the other auditors, to the extent it refates to these entities and, in doing so, place
reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is materialiy
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the
subsldiaries, is traced from thelr financial statements audited by the other auditors.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conciude that there is a material misstatement of this other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors Is responsibie for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these consclidated financial statements that give a true and falr view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash
ffows and consolidated changes In equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generaily
accepted in India, induding Ind AS spocified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies Inciuded in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records In
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group for preventing and detecting
frauds and other Qregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal finandat controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finandal statements that glve a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financiai statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of the
cornpanies induded in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intend to liquidate their respactive entities or to
<ease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies induded in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a quarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materiai misstatement when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of materiai misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements in Place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disciosures made by the management.

» Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to maodify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a 0oing concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disciosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated finandal statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the
entities inciuded in the consolldated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors
remain respensible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
rernain solely responsible for our zudit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements In the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes It probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowiedgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materfality and qualitative factors
in () pianning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance of the Parent and such other entities incduded in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the Independent auditors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inciuding any significant deficiencies in
intemal financial controls that we identify during our audit,
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We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethijcal
requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with themn all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

been furnished to us by the Management and our oplnion on the consolidated financial statements, in so
far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and our
report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries
is based solely on the reports of the other audlitors.,

{b) Two of these subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other finandal information
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in thelr respective countries
and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in
their respective countries, The Parent’s management has converted the financlal statements of such
subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in thelr respective countries
to accounting prindpies generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made
by the Parent's management. Qur opinicn in so far as it relates to the balancas and affalrs of such subsidiaries
located outside India Is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by
the management of the Parent and audited by us.

Our opinion on the consolidated finandial statements above and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our rellance on the work
done and the reports.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the
separate financial statements of the, subsidiaries, referred to in the Other Matters section above we report,
to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained ali the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the Purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books, and the reports of the other auditors except for not compliance with the requirements of audit
trail, refer paragraph (i)(vi) below.

¢} The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss inciuding Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Censclidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our apinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.
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e}

a)

h)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Com pany and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its, subsidiary companies, Incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companles,
incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, are
as stated in paragraph (b} above-

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
staterments and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internai
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of those companies,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Audltor’'s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

in our opinfon and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the auditor's reports of subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, the remuneration paid
by the Parent and such subsidiary companies, to their respective directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financiai position of the Group, - Refer Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements;

I} the Group, did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts. (Refer Note 63, to the consolidated financial statements}

iii} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Parent, and its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India.

(iv) (a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries, which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us and to the other auditors of such su bsidiaries, that, to the best of their
knowledge and bellef, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Parent or
any of such subsidiaries, to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign
entities  ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behaif of the Parent or any of
such subsidiaries, ("Ultimate Beneficiarles”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. (Refer note 67 of the Consolidated Financial
Statements).

g gkins. NS
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(b) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries, which are companies

incorporated in India, whose financia! statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the best of thelr
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Parent or any of such
subsidiaries, any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”®},
with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Parent or any
of such subsidiaries shali, directty or indirectly, iend or Invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on hehalf of the Funding Party (“Uitimate
Beneflciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. {Refer note 67 of the Consolidated Financial Statements)

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonahle and

v)

appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of
the subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India whose financia! statements
have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that
has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under suh-clause
(i) and (li) of Rule 11(e), as provided under {a} and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the Company during the
year Is In accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Vi) Based on our examination, which included test checks, and based on the other auditor's
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reports of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India whose financiai statements have
been audited under the Act, we report that,

In absence of management's evaluation of the audit trail feature in the accounting software
at the Parent Company level, we are unable to comment on the audit trail feature of the said
software and whether there were any instances of the audit traii feature been tampered with
(refer Note 64 of the consolidated financial statements)

In respect of subsidiaries, audit trail was not enahled at database level.

Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective other auditors, whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management of the Parent Company, have not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of sald accounting software’s
for the period for which the audit trall feature was enabled and operating.

As audit trail feature was not enabled for the year ended March 31, 2024, reporting under
Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit-and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit traii
as per the statutory requirements for record retention is hot applicable,
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2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("CARO"/ “the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section
143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO
reports issued by us and the auditors of respective companies included in the consolidated finandial
statements to which reporting under CARQ is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Parent,
we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the CARO reports
of the said companies included in the consalidated financlal statements except for the following:

| Name of thﬁom;ny ‘ CIN ' Nature of Relationship ‘ Clause Number of |

CARO report with

‘ ‘ qualification or ‘
\____ . __l____ﬂv'-'&remk_
Hero Motors Limited - __TU_29299ﬂ3199§PLC033602_|_PareLt Company ey - _|
SPUR Technologies ‘ U35990HR2014PTC074086 | Wholly Owned ‘ xvii ‘
_Private Limited S | Subsidiary I
HYM Drive Systems | U35999PB2022PTC055274 | Subsidiary | xvi |
Privatelimited | S | o
Hero EDU  Systems | U34100UP2022PTC17571 |Wholly Owned | xvii |
| Private Limited Subsidlary |

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration Nc. 1173(?6W/w - 100018)

ooking
) <
| Chartersd 'S,
"5 | Aocountants | ¢ (Partner)
o ) ,{\ {Membership No. 105546}
W@ 3N UDIN: 25105546BMIAKN2946
Place: Gu Y &/
: Gurugram R

Date: August 12, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financlal statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 (the “Act™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Cormpany as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of Hero Motors Umited (hereinafter referred to as “the” “Parent”) and its subsidiary
companies, incorporated in India, as of that date,

Managements and Board of Directors’ Responsibllities for Intemal Financlal Controls

The respective Company's management and Board of Directors of the Parent, and its subsidiary companies,
which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on “the internal control with reference to
standalone financial statements criterla established by the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)".] These responsibilities
indude the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s polides, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Audhtor's Responsibiiity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financlal statements of the Parent, its subsidiary compantes, which are companies Incorporated in India,
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Finandal Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent appiicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
staternents. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtein reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal finandlal controls
with reference te consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively In all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financiai statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements Induded obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consclidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal controi based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
induding the assessment of the risks of materlal misstatement of the finandal statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated In India, in terms of their reports referred to
in the Other Matters paragraph below, Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls with reference to consoildated financial statements of the Parent, which
are companies incorporated In India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A company's intemal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabillty of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements indudes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertaln to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accerdance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made oniy In accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. -

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidatad financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reports of the branch auditors and other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph beiow, the Parent, its subsidiary companies, which are companles incorporated in India, have, in
all material respects, an adequate Internal financial controls with reference to conhsolidated financial
statements and such Intemnal financial controls with reference to consalidated financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on criteria for intemnal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial stastements established by the respective companies considering the essentfal
components of internai contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finandal Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3){i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financiat statements insofar as it relates to financial
statements of three subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated In India, is based solely on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companles incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

=2 | Acvountar:s 3,;-/ (Partner)
"\ / (Membership No, 105546)
2@ "% VIDIN: 25105546BMLAKN2946
Place: Gurugram DN
Date: August 12, 2025 -

156



Haro Motors Limited

Consolidatad Salance Shast as at March 31, 2025
CIN : U29299PB1998PLCO39602

(Amount in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No,  AS at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Non-current assats
{a) Property, plant and equipment 4 49 536.55 36,029,592
{b) Right of use assets 5 2,986.16 3,547.56
{c) Capital work In progress 7 3,810.02 5,960.45
{d) Goodwill 8 797.25 797.25
{e) Other Intangible assets 9 1,453.44 525.21
{F) Intangible assets under devalopment 10 2,863.38 1,800.56
(g) Financial assets
(i} Investments 11 300.20 156.20
(i} Loans 13 136.32 131.07
{iii) Other finantial assets 14 497.63 739.13
{h) Deferred tax asset (net) 29 214,25 41.59
{i) Non-current tax assets {net) 15 1,253.93 904.59
{j} Other non-current assets 16 1,058.29 1,741.70
Total non-Current assets 84,907.42 52,375.23
2. Currant asgets
(&) Inventories 17 19,125.52 17,989.79
{b) Financlal assets
(i) Investments 12 216.02 667.56
{#i) Trade receivables 18 20,233.12 19,478.69
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 19 944,82 4,226.09
{lv) Bank batantes other than (it} above 20 3,831.00 4,600.00
{v) Loans 13 111.35 60.19
{vi) Other financial assets 14 3,205.90 2,017.55
{c) Other current assets 16 3,886.29 4,569.61
Total current assets 51,554,02 53,609.48
Total assets 1,16,461.44 1,05,984.71
B. Equity and llabilities
1. Equity
{a) Equity share capital 21 35,738.45 35,357.84
(b) Other equity 22 6,770.54 3,226.09
Equity attributable to the owners of the company 42,508.99 38,583.93
Non controlling interests 22 91.91 (1,102.33)
Total equity 42,800.90 37,481.60
2. Liabilitles
Non- current liabllitias
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings 23 12,336.98 8,175.29
{il) Lease liabllities 6 1,813.28 2,333.00
{lify Others financial llabilites 25 , Bl3.68 470.70
{b) Provisions 27 5,956.57 7,364.66
{c) Deferred tax llabilities {(net) 29 1,393.10 1,059.91
Total non- current liabllitles 22313.61 19,403.56
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Hero Motors Limited

Consolidated Balanca Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN t U29299PB199E8PLCD3602

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwiss stated)

Particulars Note No, As at As at
March 31, 20253 March 31, 2024
current llabilities
{a) Financlal liabilities
{1) Borrowings 24 28,425.20 22,224.34
(i) Lease liabifities 6 588.52 666.28
(jii) Trade payables 28
- Total autstanding due of micro enterprises and small 2,312.20 1,717.06
enterprises
- Total outstanding due of creditors ather than micro 11,407.99 11,907.22
enterprises and smaill enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 25 6,485.72 10,195.33
(b} Other current liabilitles 26 1,529.95 2,185.26
{€) Provisions 27 797.35 204.06
Total currant liabilitieg N 51,546.93 49,099.55
Total equity and liabilltles 1,18 481.44 1,05984.71
The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral 1-67

part of these consolidated financial statements

As per our raport of even date attached

(Partner)

{Membership No. 105546)
Place : Gurugram
Date: August 12, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Haero Motors Limited

Abhishek Munjal
Whole Time Director

(DIN: 05355274}
Place: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025

w4

Place: Nolda
Date: August 12, 2025

W

Utkarsh Sanghi Es upta
Chlef Financial Officer Company Secretary
— M. No. A23608
o —— Place : Noida Place: Nolda
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Hero Motors Limited
Consolidated Statemant of Profit and Loss for the yaar anded March 31, 2025

CIN : U29299PB1998PLCO39602
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)
Particulars Note No. For the year anded For the year ended
March 31, 202% March 31, 2024
Incoms
I Revenue from operations i 1,08,959.39 1,06,438.59
II Other income 32 2,163.99 1,903.27
IIl Total Income (I+II) 1,11,123.38 1,08,241.86
IV Expenses
(@) Cost of materials consumed 33 63,044.35 64,044.80
(b} Purchases of stock-in-trade 34 765.67 -
() Changes In inventories of finished goods, work In 35 {66.80) 456.77
progress and stock in trada
{d} Employee benefits expense 36 17,499.89 18,083.45
{e) Finance costs 37 3,312.12 2,994.42
{f) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 38 3,794.42 2,855.14
{g) Other expenses 39 18,865.93 17,475.87
Total expenses 1,07,215.58 1,05,910.45
V  Profit before tax (III-IV) 3,907.30 2,431.41
Vvl Tax axpense: 30
(a) Current tax 774.31 124.58
(b) Defarred tax {146.29} 603.10
Total tax expense 628.02 727.78
VII Profit for the year (V-VI) 3,279.78 1,703.63
VIII Other comprehensive income
(A) () eems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans 1,227.65 (488.09)
{b) Income tax effect {306.82) (23.62)
(8) (i) Items that will be reclassifled to profit or loss
{a) Exchange differances in translating the financial statements of foreign operations 29.99 {423.71)
(b) Income tax affect - -
Other comprehensive incomes for the year, net of tax 950.82 {935.42)
IX Total comprehensive Income for the year , net of tax {(VII+VIII) 4,230.60 768.21
X Profit for the year attributable te :
Equity holder of parent 2,520.15 1,341.84
Non-Controlling interest 759.63 361.79
3,279.78 1,703.63
XI Other comprehensive Income for the year, attributable to :
Equity holder of parent 533.90 {602.71)
Nan-Controlling Interest 416.92 {332.71)
950.82 (935.42)
XII Total comprehensive income for the year, attributeble to :
Equity holder of parent 3,054.05 739.13
Non-Controlling Interest 1,176.55 29.08
4,230.60 768.21
XIII Earmings per share: {face value € 10 per share) 40
1) Basic (amount In ¥) 0.67 0.26
2) Diluted (amount in ¥) 0.66 0.35
The accompanylng matarial accounting policles and
notes form an Integral part of these consolidated 1-67
financial statements
As per our report of aven data attached
For and on behalf of Board of

For olh.s Haskins & Sells LLP
Chart: red Acvountants

{Membership No. 105548)
Place ; Gurugram

Date: August 12, 2025
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Hero Motors Limited

Abhishek Munjal
Whole Time Director

{DIN: 05355274)
Place: Nolda

Date: August 12, 2025

Utkarsh Sanghi
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Noida
Date: August 12, 2025

“Japlaging Director and
Chief Executive Officer

(DIN: 02997032)

Place: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025

W/
Esha Gupta
Company Secrelary
M. No. A23608
Place: Noida

Date: August 12, 2025



Haro Motors Limited

Stab of chang
CIN : U2P2PPPB1544PLL0SDS02
{Armount in € iakhs, unless otivarwise stated)

in aquity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A. Equity Shara Capltal AR
An wt Apell 03, 2023 38,357
¢ hanges during the year
Az ot March 31. X124 3F5,357.04
Changes during the year 380 .51
Az st March 31, 2018 3;‘5‘73..4'_
B. Other Equity
Equity Share based Comargar Forsign Total Gther | Totnl Other Bquity
Particylars Security | . Capital Rarkainvad Carrency Equity bafore | Mon Controlling inchuding Non
L, i R daticht acoount || TEPWYE Enrnings Transiation Mon controliing Intarest Controlling Inkevast
" Balsnca as ot April 01, 2023 55,439,860 2,097.15 1,334.99 {75,279.98)| 16076 | 1597.22 256.04 (494.18) {1,131.41) (1,629.89)
Tssue of aquity shares (nefer note 413 - - - - - - -
1550% of non-cumulative tompultary nvertible - . E - - - - . -
Share fssue expanses (refar 22(7)) (2933}, = | - - i -1 -l (29.33)] - (2933
Crudit o equity for squity=settied share-based - 3,M617 - . 394617 - 3,996.17
| payments {Refer nots 41) -
| Pra sequisition raserve T - " ] - —t — E
Share issued during the year N SN TR [ S - - _ T -
Proft durtng i year - - - 1,341.84 - 1,341.84 3451.79 | 1,703,463 |
o desirik o - - - (935.70) - (935.70)| {935.70)
Dewmud Equlty Contribution by Mon Controlling | - - - - - | -
inbewest
Other income - - - - {225.37) (377.34) (502.71) (332.71) (935.42)
Totel comprelvanaive | for th yesr | - - - - - 180.77 (377.34) (196.57) a8 |  {187.40)
Bsisnoa s ot Merch 31, 2024 38.410.27 2,007.19 20148 (79,379.88) 180.74 1567700 (121.30) 3,228.09 {1,103-33) 2,113.78
Share stue (retur note 22(71) (31.52) . - - | (17.69) P 49.21) 17.69 (31.52)
|Shlmblﬂd payTiit resanv on shares ) Eu-;.ns_" R ] (2.319.06}‘ - N R B - I |
] 4 w ’ 1 i
Credit 1o equity for equity-settied share-basad = - 1,481.65 = = 14BLES - 1ABLES
payments { Rafer nobe 41) |
Profit during the year - - . - 2,520.15 | 1,520.15 759,63 3,279.78
Dividend distribution {refer nota 60} - - = 1] - T wezm| - (942.05) - (942.05))
Other comprehansiva Income = i 459,57 T 7634 53191 416,92 950.82
Total comp for tha year - - : - - 209787 7434 | 211200 1,176.99 | 3,385.58
Mainnce 5s 5k Narch 31, 2025 BY897.61 |  2,0979 4443.75 | (75,279.98} 160.78 17,697.97 (#6.96)| 6,770.54 91.91 8,862,495
The polickas and notes form an integral part of thasa fi ial

As par out raport of sven date sttected
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Hero Motors Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year anded March 31, 202%
CIN : U29299PB1998PLCO39E602

{Amaunt in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stabed)

. For the r anded For tha r anded
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cpsh flows from operating activitias
Profit hefors tax 3,907.80 243141
Adjustments for:
Depraciation and amortization 3,794.42 2,855.14
Interest cost 2,663.20 2,115.96
Other bormowing cost 643,92 878.46
Net Foraign currency translation 29.99 -
Provisionfsundry balances written back {200.25) {300.08)
Mark to market gain on forward contract (26.84) -
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (132.72) 8279
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment {net) {11.49) (10.84)
Share based payment expenses 1,481.65 3,946.17
Galn on devecognition of right of use asset and lease lablkty - {105.12)
Profit on sabe of falr valuation of mutual funds {49.24} (87.25)
Other Non Operating Income {9.01) {2.99)
Rental income {4.78) {2.35)
Interast Income o {474.34) (967.58)
Opacating cash flows bafore working capital changss 11,617.31 10,838.68
Working Capitel adjustmants:
Change In assats and liabilities
{IncTease) / decrease trade receivables {605.30} 5,131.59
{Increase) / decreass In inventories (1,135.73) 1,589.50
{Increase) / decrease n other financial assets (1,166.55) 1,901.67
{Increasa) / decrease in other assats 463.78 {2,345.49)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 285.29 (926.24)
Increase / (decredse) in other financial llzbikties {3,759.98) (3,050.02)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 412 85 {31.57)
Increase / (decrease) in other Babliites {655.31}) £75.78
Cash penarabed from operations 5458.36 13,783.90
Income tax paid {net of refunds) ] {1,123.65)  {934.28)
Net cash inflow from oparating sctivitias (A) 4,312.71 12,849.62
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of . plant and equi veluding Copitat watk in
S s e e e RSN 28349
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 28.31 25.07
Investment In det efshares/ I fund { 144,00} {38.04)
Proceeds from sale of mutmal funds 500.78 949.99
Loan glven o employees (56.41) (155.37)
Intwrest received 729.89 854.46
Rent recelved 4.78 2.35
Investmant in bank deposits {net) S 769.00 3,955.18
Neat cash inflow (usad in} investing activities (B} {12,407.86) (7,689.79)
Cash flows from financing activities
Froceads from long trm bormowlings 8,629.54 4,825.00
Repayment of long term borrowlngs {3,774.26) {2,253.14)
Proceeds from / repaiyment of short bermn bormowings (net) 5,480.40 8§23.23
Payment of final Dividend (942.05) (935.70)
Share issue expenses {31.52) (29.33)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 380.61 -
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilites {667.76) {654.12)
Payment of inbarest portion of lease lisbilities (208.30) (211.67)
Gther borrowing cost (648.92) (878.46)
Interast paid (2,462.27) {2,375.34)
Net cash infiow from financing activities (C) 5,755.47
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Hero Motars Limited

Consclidatad Statemant of Cash Flows for the year anded March 31,2025
CIN : U29299P81998PLCOISE02

(Amount in € lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

For the r andead For the r anded
Particulars n..-‘:n.‘;u 2025 m‘::;a, 2024
Net decrease in cash and cash squivalents {A+B+C} {3,319.68) 3,470.30
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 4,226.09 755.79
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3841 -
Total cash and cash equivalents {Note no. 19) $44.82 4,226.09
Componants of cash and cash equivalents N B
Cash on hand 0.30 026
With banks - Currant account* 694.52 2,225.83
With banks - Deposit account 250.00 2,000.00
Tolaf cash and cagh aquivatents (Note no. 19) 944,82 4,226.09

*Includes ¥ Nil s at March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 0.68) as unpald dividend account and Is restrictive in nature.

Notes 1

#) The statement of cash flow has been prepared In ordinance with ‘indirect rmethod
2013 read with relevant nies issued thereunder,

b} Refer note 46, for recondllation of abiifties wrmeceshﬂownmmgmaredbdosedaspartofﬂnmdng.

as set out In Ind AS - 7 - 'Statement of Cash Flows', as nutified under section 133 of Companies Act,

The accompanying material accounting policies and notes form an integral part of thess consolidated finandial statements.

As par our report of sven dute attached

For Déiaitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on bahalf of Board of
Charfred A Harc Motors Limibed /
(AR tration No. 117366W/W-100018)
_. @ ——
Rajesh Tuma Agarwal Abhighak Munjal If [
Partner Whale Time Divector L
/
{Membership No. 105546) {DIN: 05355274) ym/r
Piace | Gurugram Place: Noida / Place: Noida
Date: August 12, 2025 Date: August 12, 2025 Date: August 12, 2025
E i ’
Utkarsh Sanghi Esha Gupta
Company Secrwhary
10
Chief Finandal Officer M. No. 42
Place : Noida Place : Nolda
Date: August 12, 2025 Date: Avgust 12, 2025
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial stetements
(All amounts In € lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

1.

2.

2.1

; :gkiﬁ.s change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
¢

Corporato Information

"Hero Motors Limited, ‘the Group’ was incorporated on April 30, 1998, as a unlisted Limited Group under
the Companies Act, 1956, vide Registration Number U29299PB1998PLC039602. The Registered Office
of the Group is at Hero Nagar G. T. Road Ludhiana, PB 141003. These consolidated financial statements
comprise the Group, its subsidiaries (referred to collectively as the “Group”).

The main objective of the Group’s business is manufacturing, buying, selling, importing, exporting,
improving, assembling, repairing and dealing of all kinds of component parts, replacement parts, gears,
power train solutions, spare accessories, tools, implements and fittings for engines scooters,
motorcycles, three Wheelers, e-bikes or otherwise.

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National Group Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench on November
09, 2022 for which the certified copy of the order dated November 09, 2022 was received on November
16, 2022, the Demerged Undertaking (Primarily related to Auto Business consisting, inter-alia, of all
assets including movable and immovable properties and liabilities related thereto) was demerged from
the Demerged Group and transferred to the resuiting Group, with effect from April 01, 2021, the
appointed date {refer note-47).

Information on the Group’s structure is provided in note 2.1. Information on other related party
relationships of the Group is provided in Note 44,

Hewland Engineering Limited: A British company specializing in designing and manufacturing gearboxes
and transmission systems for motorsport and high-performance vehicles. Hewland’s product range
includes manual and sequential gearboxes, differential units, and bespoke drivetrain components,
Hewland collaborates with OEMs to develop customized transmission systems tailored to specific vehicle

needs.

Hero Motors Thai Limited: An advanced gearbox assembly manufacturing facility in Samut Prakan,
Thailand in 2023 to cater to the growing ASEAN region and global internal combustion engine (“"ICE")
and EV markets

HYM Drive System Private Limited: A Joint Venture company with Yamaha Motors Japan. focuses in
design, validation, and production of motors for two-wheelers. The facllity features latest and advanced
motor assembly line built as per Japanese standards, along with in-house motor winding and
comprehensive end-of-line testing, equipped with the [ODIN] software system to ensure 100%
traceabillity.

Spur Technology Private Limited: Manufacturing components for high-end bikes and e-bikes.
Hero EDU System Private Limited: We ventured into the electric drive unit ("EDU”) segment for micro-
mobility under the *ESYNC’ brand. EDUs are integrated systems with motor, battery and controller as

key components and have major impact on the overall performance and functionalities of the end-
applications such as e-bikes or electric two-wheelers,

Material Accounting Policies:

Basis of Preparation and presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements
of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
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Hero M

otors Limited

Notes forming part of the consoiidated financial statements
{All amounts in € lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

SN

The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and ali values are rounded to
the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), up to two places of decimal, except when otherwise
indicated.

The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the
previous year,

Basis of measurement

The Consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the

following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value as required under relevant

Ind AS,

- Certain financial assets and liabilities is (including derlvative instrument and contingent
consideration) measured at fair value.

- Defined benefit plans- plan assets are measured at fair value

- Share based payments

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Group, and the entities
controlled by the Group including its subsidiaries, assoclates and its joint venture as at March 31,
2025. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee,

Specificaily, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that glve it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

- Exposure, or rights, to variabie returns from its involvement with the investee, and The
abllity to use its power over the investee to affects its retums.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, inciuding:

- The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee. Rights arising from
other contractual arrangements.

- The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

- The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and disperslon of the
holdings of the other voting holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controis an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabllities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are inciuded in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group galns
control until the date the Group ceases to contro! the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting
policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, approprlate adjustments are made to that Group member's financial
statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformlty with the Group's
accounting policles.

*

e the financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn uptos
‘?gﬁorting date as that of the parent Group, i.e., year ended on March 31, 2025. “(%1' %
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Hearo Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

- the carrying amount of the investmeént and Is not tested for impairment individually.

AT L
~aRlng o
20° 'sﬂ#hv'e.,, Statement of Profit and Loss includes the Group’s share of the results of operations g

Consolidation procedure:

- Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the
parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary
are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements at the acquisition date,

- Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and property, plant and equipment, are eliminated
in full).

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income {OCI) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiarles to bring their accounting policles into line with the Group’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash fiows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated In full on consalidation,

A change In the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it

(i) Derecognises the assets (including goodwiil) and liabilities of the subsidiary

{ii) Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrelling Interests

(iii) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

{iv) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

(v) Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

{vi) Recognises any surplus or deficit in proflt or loss

(vii) Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss
or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.”

Non controlling interasts (NCI)

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of
acquisition. Changes in the Group's equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions.

Associates:

An associate Is an entity over which the Group has significant Influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy declsions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The Group’s investment in its associate are accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which it becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment,
any difference between the cost of the investment and the Group's share of the net fair value of the
investee’s identifiable assets and liabilitles is accounted for as follows:

+ Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Such
goodwill Is not amortised.

e Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the investee's identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment (if material) is recognised directly in equity as capital
reserve in the period in which the investment is acquired. "

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group‘s share of net
assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included i

ﬂa%_ofciabe. Any change in OCI of those investees s presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In add
-’“}*;‘,?ﬁ there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the

=
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in ¥ lakhs, except for share data and if otherwlse stated)

recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Interest in the associate.

The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether It Is necessary to recognise
an Impairment loss on its investment in Its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such
evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and Its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as share of profit or

loss of associate in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

The details of the consclidated entities are as follows:

H
Name of the Principal Relationshi Country of %Mof : I;I:.ng_
Entity Activities P | Incorporation arch 34,
2025

Hero Motors Thai | Manufacturer of L
Limited (HMTL) | auto component | Subsidiary Thailand 100%
Hewland

. . Manufacturer of C
Engineering Subsidiary United Kingdom 51%
Limited (HEL) auto component
HYM Drive

Manufacturer of L .

fiﬁ::fergs Private auto component Subsidiary India 90%
Hero EDU
Systems Private | haruracturer of | g pgqiary India 100%
Limited(HESPL) | 3Ute componen
Spur Technology | Manufacturer of
Private Limited* | auto compeonent Subsidiary India 100%

*With effect from November 29, 2023. The Group has consolidated using the Business
Combination under common contrel,

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

- Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying
amounts at the date when control is lost,

- Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling Interests. Derecognises the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity. Recognises the fair vaiue of the
consideration received,

Recognises the fair value of any Investment retained. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit
or loss,

- Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners.

- Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings, If required by other Ind ASs as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabllities.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition j

;ﬁl n s"-m_easured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair v
2> _@_n_"r:u’_.the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination th
,Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or a %tg

E

166




Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts In ¥ lakhs, except for share data and If otherwise stated)

proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
in the periods in which the costs are incurred, and the services are received, with the exception of the
costs of Issuing debt or equity securities that are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 32 and Ind AS

109.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assats
include an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The acquired process is considered substantive if It is critical to the ability to continue
producing cutputs, and the inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills,
knowledge, or experience to perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to
continue producing outputs and is considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without
significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing outputs.

At the acquisition date, the identiflable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities
representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of
the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following
assets and liabilitles acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated below:

e Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the liabilities or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind
AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

+ Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at
the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with
Ind AS 12.

+ Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share - based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-
based Payments at the acquisition date.

« Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that Standard.

¢ Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potentlal renewal
of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and llabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent condltions as at the acqulsition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives In host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured
at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as
appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acqulrer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value rocognised in profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS 109, If the contingent consideration is
not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS and shall
be recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured
at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held,
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and ali of the liabilities assumed and reviews the
procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment
still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate considerati ‘(ORS

—,—_I: -transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated In equity as capital reserve. Howe eF, ' (’-;
os‘ﬁ_ns ifthere is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the gain directly in equi e ﬂ/ ):-_'
m
BN\_9

*

: "'c_%‘il;,al reserve, without routing the same through QCI.
Ceed O
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(All amounts in T lakhs, except for share data and if otherwise stated)

2.2

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business cembination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those
units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverabie amount of the
cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro
rata based on the carrving amount of each asset In the unit. Any impairment ioss for goodwill is
recegnised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwlll is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposail. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained,

If the initial accounting for a business combination is iIncomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisicnal amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the
measurermnent period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumnstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have
affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period
adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one vear from the acquisition date.

Business combination under Common Control

A business combination involving entities or businesses under cemmon control is a business
combination in which all of the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the business combination and the controi is not transitory.

The transactions between entities under common control are specifically covered by Appendix C to Ind
AS 103 and are accounted for using the pooling of interest method as follows:

« The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at the carrying amounts.

¢ No adjustments are mede to reflect fair values or recoghize new assets or liabilities. Adjustments
are made to harmonize significant accounting policies.

¢ The financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods is restated as if the
business combination has occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial
statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. The balance of the retained eamings
appearing in the financial statements of the transferor is aggregated with the corresponding balance
appearing in the financial statements of the transferee, The identity of the reserves are preserved and
the reserves of the transferor become the reserves of the transferee.

The difference, if any, between the amounts recorded as share capital issued plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is
transferred to capitai reserve and is presented separately from other capital reserves,

Summary of Material accounting policles
Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabiiities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be scld or consurmed In hormal operating cycle
Held for primarily for the purpose of trading
Expected to be realised within tweilve months after the reporting period, or

at least twelve months after the reporting period
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All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held for primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of llability for at least twelve after the

reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment (*PPE’)
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost of acquisition or construction which Iincludes
capitalised finance costs less accumulated depreclation and/or accumulated Impairment loss, if any.

Cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing
the item to its working condition for its intended use. The cost of a self-constructed item of property,
plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, if the recognition
criteria is met. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Recognition criteria
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset If and only if,

a) Itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity,
and
b) The cost of the item can be measured reiiably.

Capltal work-in-progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use
at the reporting date. Advances pald towards acquisition of PPE outstanding at each Balance sheet
date, are shown under other non-current assets.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitallsed only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will fiow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably with the
carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of ltems of PPE less their estimated residual values over thelr
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and 1s recognised in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Depreclation on items of PPE Is provided as per rates corresponding to the useful life specifi
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 read with related amendments. The estimated usef P
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Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line basis on the estimated useful life
prescribed under Schedule II to Companies Act, 2013 with the following exception:

- Leasehold land & Leasehold improvement has been amortised over the lease term.

- Freehold Land is not depreciated.

Useful life considered for calculation for various assets class are as foliows:

Asset Class _ Useful Life o
" Building 30-60 years - ]
Plant & Machinery 0 to 30 years |
| Furniture & Fixture - | 3to 10 years |
| Office Equipment's | 3to 5 years i
| Vehicles B to 10 years -
| Computer 3 to 6 years -

* The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates tools included in plant and equipment over estimated useful lives of 0 and 30 years
which are different from the usefui life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these astimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end
and adjusted If appropriate.

Depreciation on additions {disposal} is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e, from (upto) the date on
which asset is ready for use (disposed of),

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upen disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢. Intangible assets
Acquired Intangible

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are measured initially at cost. Cost of an item of
Intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
texes, after doducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the itern
to its working condition for its intended use. After initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at
its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated Impairment loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific asset to which it relates. Ail other expendlture is recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss as incurred.

Amortisation

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful life and these are assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation perfod and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finlte useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or metheod, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intanglble assets with finite lives Is recognised

Q&g'l(ll'la &N
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: | ,-"_": determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.
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These are amortlzed over a period of 3-5 years or license period whichever is later.
Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase
of an Internai project) is recognised if, and only [f, all of the following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible

asset so that it wiill be available for use or sale

+ the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

+ the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

« how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

+ the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development
and to use or seli the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for interpally- generated intanglble assets Is the sum of the
expenditure Incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally- generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which it is incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally- generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets, comprising of software, expenditure on websites, etc. incurred are amortised on
a straight line method over a period of its useful life.

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from [ts use and disposal.

d. Inventeries

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for
obsolescence, wherever considered necessary. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to
their respective present location and condition. The cost of various components of inventory is
determined as follows; -

Raw material Cost includes purchase cost, duties, texes and all other costs |
incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location. Cost is
- determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

Work in progress Cost include appropriate proportion of overheads wherever
applicable. Goods in transit are valued at cost excluding import
duties wherever applicable

Finished goods Cost includes purchase cost, duties, taxes and all other costs
incurred In bringing the inventory to their present location. Cost is
determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

Stock-in-trade Cost includes purchase cost, dutles, taxes and ail other costs
incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location. Cost is
determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

Scrap Net realisable value.

‘Stores and spares | Cost includes purchase cost, duties, taxes and all other costs

incurred in bringing the inventory to their present location. Cost s
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The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventorfes, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realisable value of work-in-progress is
determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of finished products are not written
down below cost except in cases where material prices have declined and it is estimated that the
cost of the finlshed products will exceed thelr net realisable value.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value Is made on an item-by-item basls.
e. Retirement and other employee benefits
(i} Short-torm employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed
as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be pald e.g.,
salaries and wages and bonus etc., if the Group has a present legai or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can
be estimated reliably.

(ii) Post-employment benefits
a) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution pian is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. The Group makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and
employee state insurance scheme (ESI’) to Government administered scheme which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit
and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan. The administration of the gratuity scheme has been entrusted
to the Life Insurance Corporation of India ('LIC’). The Group's net obligation in respect of gratulty is
calculated separately by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is parformed annually by & qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability i.e. Gratuity, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Group determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-
net defined benefit liabllity, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a pian is curtalled, the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group recognises gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settiement occurs.
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c) Short term and other long term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange of
services rendered by employees are recognised during the period when the employee renders the
services. These benefits include salaries, wages, performance incentives and compensated absences.

The liabllity In respect of accumulated compensated absences Is provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and
losses are racoghised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which they occur.

d) Share - based payment

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an approprate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled
in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transactions at
each reporting date until the vesting date refiects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and Is recognised in employee benefits
expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihoed of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Group best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards Include a market or non-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfled.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the
expense had the terms had not been modified if the original terms of the award are met. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction or is otherwise heneflcial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through proflt or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of diluted earnings per share.

f. Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. If the time of money is materiai, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects
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The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting periad, taking Into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect
of the time value of money is material).

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

. by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities;
and

. as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it

willl discharge those responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settie a provislon are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement
will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

g. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an cutflow of resources, or a present obligation
whose amount cannot be estimated rellably, Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions but are
disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. Contingent assets are recognised when the
realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its
recagnition is approprlate.

A contingent asset is disciosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
h. Commitments

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are
reviewed at each reporting date.

i Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangement because it typically controls goods or services hefore
transferring them to the customers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised based on a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract Step 3: Detarmine the transaction price
Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfles a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and value added tax. Transaction price is recognised
based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts. Also,
In determining the transaction price for the sale of products, the Group considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration,
and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Q@skins A5 per Ind AS 115, the Group determines whether there is a signiflcant financing compenent in
- eg racts. However, the Group has decided to use practical expedient provided in Ind AS 115 3
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not to adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
componeants in the contracts, where the Group expects, at contract inception that the period of
completion of contract terms are one year or less. Therefore, for short-term advances, the Group
dees net account for a financing component. No long-term advances from customers are generally
received by the Group.

Sales-related warranties associated with goods cannot be purchased separately and they serve as
an assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group
accounts for warranties in accordance with Ind AS 37.

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by geography.

Sale of sarvices

The Group recognises revenue from these contracts on satisfaction of performance cbligation
towards rendering of such services over time, as and when the services are rendered in accordance
with the specific terms of contracts with customers. The Group’s performance obligation Is limited to
providing resources reguired for these services

Export benefits

Export incentive entitiements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the
terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made, and where there is no significant
uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Disaggregated revenue information

The Group presents disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers for the year ended
March 31, 2025 by type of goods and services and timing of revenue recognition. The Group believes
that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues
and cash fiows are affected by Industry, market and other economic factors.

Contract balanceas

Trade Receivable

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that Is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of
financial assets in section of financial instruments - Initial recognitlen and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liabllity is recognised if a payment Is received or a payment is due {(whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract iiabillties are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related gocds or services to the customer).

Recognition of interest income or expense

Interest income or expense is accrued on a time basls and recognised using the effective interest
method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discecunts the estimated future cash payments or
roceipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

- the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

- the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating interest Income and expense, the effective interest rate is applled to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liabili
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financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Claims receivables on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent the Group is reasonably
certain of their uitimate collection.

k. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as a
part of cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense In the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowlng costs.

l. Taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or an item recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recelvable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. Current
income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only iIf there is a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts, and it Is intended to realise the asset and settle the llability on a net
basis or simuitaneously.

Curront income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recegnised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underiying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken In the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Group shall refiect the effect of uncertainty for each
uncertain tax treatment by using either most llkely method or expected value method, depending
on which method predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except when the deferred tax

liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is

not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or ioss and In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments

in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the

temporary differences can be controlled and it Is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of

unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent Hat
/’f i.,~ Itisprobable that taxabie profit will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differ}efnc"’ R,
Q& f—‘-{\a_nd the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utllised, except wijen the \
- i "d',zyrred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recagﬂiiion m/
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of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting proflt nor taxable profit or loss and In respect of
deductible temporary differences associated with investments In subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences wiil reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised, Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that It has become probable that future taxable
profits wili allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Group relies on the same forecast
assumptions used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset Is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting dete.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(efther in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax liabillties and assets and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authorities.

Value added taxes/GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/GST paid, except:

- When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authorlty, in which case, the tax palid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item, as applicable

- When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables In the balance sheet.

m. Leases

The Group evaluates each contract or arrangernent, whether it qualifies as iease as defined under Ind AS
116:

Group as a lessee

The Group’s iease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buiidings. The Group assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identifled asset for a period of time in exchange for
conslderatfon. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Group has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (il
the Group has the right te direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU™) and a
corresponding iease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is 2 lessee, except for ieases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. *

Lease arrangernents may inciude the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities may include these options when it is reasonably certain that they

— - —

yggkina ‘Wil be exercised.
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The right-of-use assets are Initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depredation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in drcumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount
is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) te which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is Initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit In the lease or, if not readily
determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates pertaining to the Group. Lease liabilities are
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Group changes its
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments
have been classifled as financing cash flow activities.

Financial instruments
A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liability or equity instrument of another entlity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition ancd measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus except trade receivables where there is
no significant financing component, are recorded at transaction price, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost If the asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and contractual terms of the
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The effective interest rate Is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financlal instrument to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortised cost of the financial liabllity.
Amortised cost s calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included in other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
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Debt instrument at FVOCI

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if the objective of the business model is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and the asset’s contractual
cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt Instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest earmed whilst holding FVTOCI debt
instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVPL

FVPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVPL. In addition, at
initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise
meets amortised cost or FVOCI criterla, as at FVPL. However, such adoption is allowed oniy if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency {(referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group
may make an irrevocable adoption to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Group makes such adoption on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification Is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decldes to classify an equity Instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss to retained earnings.

Equity instruments included within the FVPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit- impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events
that have detrimental impact on the estimated future cash fiows of the financial assets have
occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or
- the disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except

Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of
the financial Instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial Instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is less than 12 months). In all cases, the maximum period considered when
estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This Includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and Including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probabllity-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. difference between the cash flow due to the
Group In accordance with the contract and the cash flow that the Group expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet Loss allowance for financial
assets measured at the amortised cost Is deducted from the gross camrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or In full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtors do not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash fiows
to repay the amount subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedure for recovery of
amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is primarily derecognised (l.e., removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:
The rights to receive cash ﬂows from the asset have expired, or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Group has transferred Its rights to receive cash fiows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Financial liabilitles

Initial recognition and measurement
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities inciude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurernent, financial liabilities are classiied in two categories:
. Financial liabillties at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL})
. Financial liabilities at amortised cost (lcans and borrowings)

A financial liability is classified as at FVPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or
It is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Other financial liabllities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability Is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires, When an existing financlal llability is replaced by another from the sarne lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabllity are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses various types of derivative financial instruments to hedge Its currency and interest
risk etc. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract Is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value Is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Balance Sheet
when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

n. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For impairment testing, assets that do not
generate independent cash fiows are grouped together into cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU
represents the smallest Group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely Independent of
the cash Infiows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of as CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and fair
value less cost to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash fiows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current assessments of the time value of —
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). /e
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Loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no Impairment loss had been recognised.

0. Operating Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available,
Ali operating segments’ operating resuits are reviewed regularly by the Group’s Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and
assess their performance.

p. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash In hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value,

q. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit after tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. Statement of cash flows is prepared segregating the cash fiows into operating, investing and
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indire¢t method adjusting
the net profit for the effects of:

a) changes during the period In operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash

nature;
b) non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised gains and losses;

and
€) all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude
items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

r. Govermnment grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant wiil be
received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised
as income In equal amounts over the expeéted useful life of the related asset,

s. Cash dividend

The Group recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the Group when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate
laws in India, a distribution is authorised when It is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding

amount is recognised directly in equity.
t. Eamnings per share

Basic eamings per share ('EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding OCI) for
the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the perlod,

m‘piluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attribut4b!
R & 74

I, Ckﬁ\.ﬁt‘o, equity shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or igtgr%
. Iy reg
)';1 \

¢dlating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
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outstending during the period as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only If their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares
are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a
later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independentiy for each period presented.”

u. Functional and presentation currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional, and presentation
currency of the Company.

The items inciuded in Financial Statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. ‘functional currency”).

Transactions and balances

Transactions In foreign currencies are initially recorded in the relevant functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign
exchange differences, on subsequent re-statement / settlement, recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevalent, at the date of initial recognition

(in case they are measured at histerical cost) or at the date when the fair value is determined (in
case they are measured at fair value} - the resulting foreign exchange difference, on subsequent
re-statement / settlement, recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in the OCI or directly in equity.

The equity items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at historical cost.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabliitles of foreign operations (including the goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of foreign entities) are translated into Rupees at the exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date whereas their Statements of Profit and Loss are translated Into
Rupees at monthly average exchange rates and the equity is recorded at the historical rate. However,
if exchange rates fiuctuate significantly during the period, the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. The resulting exchange differences arising on the translation are recognised
in OCI and heid In foreign currency translation reserve (‘*FCTR’), a component of equity. On disposal
of a foreign operation (that is, disposal invelving loss of control), the component of OCI relating to
that particular foreign cperation is reclassified to profit or loss.

Net Investment in Foreign Operations

When a monetary item forms part of the Group’s net Investment in a forelgn operation, the exchange
differences are then recognised initially in other comprehensive income and are held within the FCTR.
Such FCTR is reclassified from equity to profit and loss on disposal of the foreign operation.

v. Falr value measurement

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control
framework with respect to measurement of fair values. This includes the top management division
which is responsible for overseeing ali significant falr value measurements, including Level 3 fair
values. The top management division regulariy reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the top management
division assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these
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- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, thé Group uses cbservable market data as far
as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels
of the fair value hlerarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirely in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the changes have occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these
consolidated financial statements is included in the respective notes.

w. Exceaptional items

When items of Income and expense within statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities are
of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure Is relevant to explain the performance of the
Group for the period, the nature and amount of such material items are disclosed separately as
exceptional items.

3. Changas in accounting policies and disclosures

Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year
ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind
AS 116 - Leases, reiating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Group w.e.f, April 1,
2024. The Group has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined
that it does not have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS Issued but not yet effective:

MCA has notified amendment to Ind AS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, vide
the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2025 through Notification No.
G.S.R. 291(E) dated May 7, 2025. The amendment provide comprehensive guidance on assessing
the exchangeability of currencles, determining spot exchange rates when currencies are not
exchangeable and enhancing related disclosures. The amendment is effective for annual reporting
perlods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The Company will evaluate the impact of this amendment
and implement the necessary changes in its financial reporting for periods commencing on or after
the effective date.

3.1  Key sources of estimation uncertaintles and critical judgements

The preparation of financlal statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. Therefore,
actual results could differ from these estimates.
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Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers, such as identifying performance obligations in a bundled
sales transaction, wherein, the Group sell goods, transportation and warranty services bundied
together with sales of goods. The Group allocated the portion of the transaction price to goods basis
on its relative standalone prices.

Business Comblnation

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are
initially recognised at their fair value on the acquisition date {which is regarded as their cost).
Subsequent to [nitial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basls as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Non-Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares

The Group has issued Non-Cumulzative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares which meets the
fixed-to-fixed criteria at the date of issuance. The Group has assessed the terms of such instruments
and classifled these as equity. (Refer footnote (h) of note 21)

Impairment testing

The Group has reviewed its carrying value of long term investments in equity shares as disclosed in
note no. 11 of consolidated financial statements at the end of each reporting period, for possible
impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying amount of
assets may not be recoverable. If the recoverable value, which is based upon economic
clrcumstances and future plan is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted.

Expected credit losses on flnancial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected timing of collection. The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment caiculation, based on the Group’s history of collections, customer’s
creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Estimates and judgements are continually evaiuated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the Group and that are believed te be reasonable under the circumstances.

Determining the lease term

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, If it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
The Group has some property lease arrangements with its holding Group that include option to
terminate the contract by either party at any time by giving advance notice. The Group applied
judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain for both the parties te terminate the property
lease contract before the lease term. It considered all the factors that create economic incentive for
the parties to continue with lease or terminate including alternatives available for the office lease,

use of underlying property, leasehold improvements made and accordingly determined lease ter
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revised if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects this
assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee.

Determining the incremental borrowing rate for lease contracts

The initial recognition of lease liabilities at present value requires the identification of an appropriate
discount rate. The Group has determined the incremental borrowing rate based on considerations
specific to the leases by taking consideration of the risk-free borrowing rates as adjusted for country
/ Company specific risk premiums.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and llabllities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are refiected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful life of assets of Property, plant and equipment

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derlved after determining an estimate of an asset’s
expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The usefut lives and residual
values of Group's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and
reviewed at each financial year end.

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Capital work in progress and intanglble
assets

Property, plant and equipment, Capital work In progress and intangible assets with definite lives, are
reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes in circumstances Indicate that their carrying
value may not be recoverable.

Recoverabllity of Intangible asset

Capitalisation of cost in intangible assets under development is based on management’s judgement
that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed and asset under development will generate
economlc benefits in future. Based on evaluations carried out, the Group’s management has
determined that here are no factors which indicates that these assets have suffered any impairment
loss.

Provislon and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies.
For contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in
financial staterments. Contingent loss that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed
as Contingent liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likellhood of which is remote
are not disclosed In the financial statements. Contingent gain are not recognized until the
contingency has been resolved and amounts are received or receivable.
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Recoverability of deferred taxes

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. The ultimate realisation
of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods
in which the temporary differences becomeé deductible. Management considers the projected future
taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

Estimation of Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability
the Group considers whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, which will resuit in taxable amounts agalnst
which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised before they expire. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies.

Government grant

During the period, management has assessed the conditions attached to grants which have been
met and has assessed whether the grants will be received or not and the period in which it will be
received. Basis assessment, the Group has recognised the government grants in the Statement of
profit and loss and accordingly classified as current and non-current assets.

Climate - related matters

The Group considers climate-related matters in estimates and assumptions, where appropriate. This
assessment includes a wide range of possible impacts on the Group due to both physical and
transition risks. Even though the Group believes its business model and products will stil! be viable
after the transition to a low-carbon economy, climate-related matters increase the uncertainty In
estimates and assumptions underpinning several items in the consolidated financial statements.
Even though climate-related risks might not currently have a significant impact on ineasurement,
the Group Is closely monitoring relevant changes and developments, such as new climate-related
legislation. The items and considerations that are most directly impacted by climate-related matters
are Useful life of property, plant and equipment and Impairment of non-financial assets.
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statemants

(Amount in ¥ lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

5 Right of Use Assets

Below are the carrylng amounts of right to use assats and leasa liabilities and the movements during the year. The Group’s leased

assats consists of leases for buildling and land.

Leasehold
Particulars Buiidiing Leasehold Land Total
I Cost
Balance as at Aprll 1, 2023 - 2,023.69 2,023.69
Additlons 850.45 2,357.36 3,207.82
Derecognition of Right of use Assets# - (1,132.73) (1,132.73)
Transiation difference - 11.13 11.13
Balance as at March 31, 2024 850.45 3,259.45 4,109.91
Derecognition of Right of use Assets* (60.05) - {60.05)
Trenslation difference - 149.28 149.28
Balance as at March 31, 2025 780.41 3,408.73 4,199.14
11 Accumulated deprecation
Balance as at April 1, 2023 - 153.74 153.74
Charge for the year - 500.80 500.80
Adjustment during the year 28.95 45.07 74.02
Derecognition of Right of use Assets# - {1689.77) {169.77}
Translation difference - 3.56 3.56
Balance as at March 31, 2024 28.95 £33.40 £62.35
Charge for the yaar §7.85 514.18 602.03
Adjustment during the year 15.23 24.23 39.46
Derecognition of right of use assets* (29.81) - (29.81}
Transiation difference - 38.95 38.95
Balance as at March 31, 2025 102.22 1,110.76 1,212.98
III Net carrying amouat
As at March 31, 2024 821.51 2,726.05 3,547.56
As at March 31, 2028 588.19 2,297.97 2,986.148
6 Leases liabilitias
The following is the movement of lease liabllities during the year:-
Leasa Hold
Particulars Buildling Lease Hold Land Total
Balance as at April 1, 2023 - 1,502.53 1,502.53
Additlons 850.06 2,357.36 3,207.42
Finance cost accrued during the year 15.31 196.36 211.67
Payment of lease liabllities {15.54) {850.24) {865.78)
Delation of Lease |labiltty# - (1,068.07) (1,088.07)
Translation difference - 11.51 11.51
Balance as at March 31, 2024 849.83 2,149.45 2,999.28
Additlons - - -
Finance cost accrued during the year (Refer note *d" below} 73.72 134,58 208.20
Payment of lease liabilities {111.17) (764.89) {876.08)
Adjustment during the year - (19.17) {19.17)
Delation of Lease Habillty* {32.89) - (32.89)
Translation difference - 122.34 122.34
Balance as at March 31, 2025 779.4% 1.622.31 2,401.80
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabllities
Particulars Currant Non = currant
As at March 31, 2024 666.28 2,333.00
Ag at March 31, 2025 588.52 1,813.28
The following Is the movement In lease liabilities during tha year :
Other Disclosuras
For tha year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets (Refar note 38) 602,03 500.80
Interest expanse on lease liabilitles (Refer note 37) 190.23 184.12
Expense refating to short-term leases (Refer note 39) 299.48 252.97
Total Cash outflow for leases 876.06 865.78

Note

a) The effective discount rate for lease flabilities |s 8.00%- 9.00% p.a.
b} The Leases generally have Iease terms of 2 - 9 years. The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to
the leased assets. The Group is restricted from assigning or sub leasing the leased assets.,

<) Refer note 46, for maturity analysis of lease liabilides in the liquidity risk section.

d) The group has capltalized finance cost amounting to ¥ 18,07 Jakhs during the year ended March 31, 2025 in subsldiary of Hewland

Engineering Limited.

*During the year, the lease agreement for building In one of the subsidiary (Hero EDU Systems Private Limlted) has been terminated,

net gain on account of cancellation of building lease agreement (accounted as right of use assets and lease liability) 1

under the head ‘Other income” and adjusted with pre-operating expense.

1. . # Refer note 62.
st_[ﬂ_a_ &\
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Haro Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount in ¥ Inkhs, unless otherwise stated)

7 Capital work In progress (CWIP) —

Particulars As at As at
. B March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
5,960.45 5,863.64

Balanca at the beginning of the year

Add: Addition made during the year 11,458.00 8,000.72
Less: Allocated to property plant and equipment during the year {13,652.40) {8,757.91)
Transliation difference 43,97 {146.00)
3,810.02 5,960.45
The Group has capltalised following expenses to the cost of property, plant and equipment / capital wark in pregress In relation to prolects.
o As at As at
it March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,365.67 7872.62
Employes hanefit expanses 786.78 1,100.77
Cantract labour charges 10.71 114.19
Finance cost - 271.61 456.91
Other Expenses 242,93 713.60
Teanslation difference - 3g.29
267770 2 3,211.38
Less: Allocated to propersty plant and equipment _— {1,257.41) (1.845.11)
Closing balance inciuded under Capital Work In prograss 1.420.29 __1.365.67
Ageing achadule of CWIP ss at March 31, 2025:
Particulars | Amount in CWIP for a period of | o
Less than 1 | 1-2 years 2-3 yaars More than | Total
- | year I 3 yuars |
Projects in progress | 2,962.55 769,40 78.07 - 3,810.02
Projects temporarlly suspendead ! — = m— =
Ageing schadule of CWIP as at March 31, 2024:
'Particulars B Amount in CWIP for a period of
Lessthan i | 1-2 yaars 2-2 yaars Hore than Total
B year 3 years _
Projects In progress ~ 5719.42 241,03 5,960.45
ﬁects temporarily suspended | — -

Note: Project sxecution plans are modulated on an annual basls followling a detalled assessment of requirements, All projects are undertaken in accordance with
a rolling annuat plan.

8 Goodwill -
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balance 8t the beginning of the year 797.25 79725
Add/{Less): Addition/{Deletions) during the year o - -
Balance st the and of the year B 797.15 797.2%
Nota

During the previous year ended March 31, 2023, the Group has acquired 32% share tn Hewland Engineering Limited from Hero International B.V. pursuant to

which Hewland Englneering Limited has become an associate of Hero Mator Limited; On February 21, 2023 Hero Motors Limited has made further investmant

%imﬂ'}’ltll the shares of Hewland Engineering Limited and increased Its stake to 51%:; post which the Hewland Engineering Limited has became subsidiary of the
asiat

;aulmd and liabifity assumed of Hewland Engineering Limited as on March 31, 2023 Is as below :

As at

Particulars March 31,2023
Total Assets (A) 7,667.23
Total Liabllity (B} 10,571.42
Identifiable net nssets st fair valua on the date of acquisition {A-B) {2,904.19}
Failr value of net assets {2,904.19)
Less : Non-controlling interest measured at fair valug {1,423.05)
Nat assat for holding {1,481.14)
Purchass Conslderation - 10,08
Goodwill arising on acquisition = 1,491.22
Adjusted through other aquity* o o (653.97)

797.25

Goodwlll Recognized
The Goodwili of € 797,25 fakhs comprises the falr value of expected synergles arsing from aequisitioh. Goodwifl Is allocated to the acquired business as a whole,

* The Group adjusted Its share of profit and other comprehansive Income agalnst the goodwitl on the date It became subgidiary from assoctate.

The Group has not identified any Intanglble assets and recognised goodwill as per Ind AS 103 - Business Combination.

Impairmant analysis

The Group réviewed the carying amounts of Goodwill to determine whether there is any indicatfon of impalement and has determined that there are no
impalrment Indicator as st March 31, 2025, The Group considers the relatlonship betwaen recoverabie vaive which is calcutated based on future discounted cash
flows/net sales price, as applicable and its book vailue, ameng other factors, when reviewing for ndicaters of impalmment.

Hywiand- Powertraln

The racoversble amount of this segment was determined hased on value-In-use calculations, covering a detailed flve-year forecast, followed by an extrapalation
of expected cash Nows For the remaining useful lives using a declihing growth rate determined by the management. The values assigned to the key assumptions
represent management's agsessment of future trends In the relevant industiles and have been based on historical data fram both axternal and Internal sources.

The discount rate is a post-tax measure estimated basad on the welghted-average cost of capital.
The cash How projections include specific estimates for flve years and a terminal growth rate thereafter,

o rcTy‘iLdn'ﬁ:gmu The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Management determines the budgeted growth rates based on past performance and Its
A oﬁﬁ&r&me of market development. The welghted aversga long term growth rates used were conslstent with industry to 2%.
Q‘ Dlscound, fates: Management estimates discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the risks specific to the CGU, taki ation the
»3._Q§-f't‘-"pney and individual risks of tha underlying assets that have not been incorporated In the cash fiow estimates.
A
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Hero Motors Limited

Notes forming part of the congolidated financial statements

{Amount in € lakhs, unless otharwise stated)

9 Other intanglble assets

Particulars Com puter Software Development Cost Wabsites Trademark / Lables Total
{Motor Design and Kit)
1 Cost/deamad cost
Gross carrying amount
Balance ag at Aprdl 1, 2023 318.08 105.20 = A4, 64 485.50
Add: Additions during the year 97.92 110.37 5.50 224 216.03
Less: (Disposals) / adivsiments durfng the year ) 472 - - (5.91) {1.19)
Balanca as at March 31, 2024 418.70 215.57 5.50 40.97 -580.74
Add: Additions during the year 69.12 982.34 - - 1,051.46
Less: Disposals/{adiustrents) durfng the year - - - - -
Balanca as at March 31, 2025 487.82 1,197.91 5.50 40,97 1,732.20
II Accumulated amortisstion
Balance s st April 1, 2023 _ 567.48 2.14 - 1.55 71.25
Add: Amortisation charge for the vear 62.61 18.61 0.11 4,20 85.53
Less: (Disposals) / adlustments during the year {0.55) - - (0.60} {1.15}
Balance as at March 31, 2024 129.52 20.75 011 5.15 155,53
Add: Amortisation charme for the vear 76.47 41,79 0.69 4.28 123.23
Less: Disposals/{adiustments) during the year . - -
Balance as st March 31, 2025 - 205,99 62,59 0.80 9.43 278.76
EI Net carrying amount balance (I-1T)
As at March 31, 2024 289.18 194.8B2 5,39 35.82 525.21
As at March 31, 2025 281.83 1,138.37 4.70 31.54 1,453,449

Mote: The group has capitalized amortisation amounting to 0,30 lakhs during the year anded March 31, 2025 in one of the subsidiary Hero EDU Systems Private Limited.

10 Intangible assets undar developrant (TAUD)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year a 1,800,56 -
Add: Addition made during the year 2,045.16 1,800,565
Less: (Disposals)/adjustments during the year {982.34) -
Ealanca st the and of the year _ 2,863.38 1 800,56
The Group hes capitalised following expenses to the cost of Intanglbie assets under development in progress In refation to profects,
Farttaulorg As ot As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,735.50 -
Empicyee benefit axpenses 1,022.68 1,355.37
Finance cost 2.88 38.67
Other common expenses 925.41 372.09
Pra-Oparative expanses panding allocation 3,8868.97 1,766.13
Less: Sale of trial run production - {30.63)
Less: Capitalised during the year {982.34) -
Total Pre-Operative expenses pending allocation 2,704.13 1,735.50
Ageing scheduls of Intanglie assets under development as at March 31, 2025:
Particulars Amagunt in TAUD for a period of |

Laps than 1 year 1-2 yaars 2-3 yadnrs More than Total |
| 3 years
Projects in progress 2,045.17 g18.21 - - 2,863.38 |
Projects temporarily suspended B R . - | - !
Ageing schedule of intanglle assats ynder development ag at March 31, 2024:
Particulars B ' Amount in TAUD for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years [ 2-3 years More than ' Total
| 3 years

Projects In progress R 1,800,56 - 1,800.58
|Projects temporarly suspended ’ - - - -
Notei
i} Intangible assets under development related to below _entities:z
Particulars As =t As ot

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited 705.08 326.30
Hero Edu Systems Private Limited 2,062.78 1,472.92
Hero Motors Limited 95.52 1.34
Total 2.863.38 1,800.56

(N Project execution plans are modulated on an annual basis following a detaited assessment of requirements, All profects are undertaken in accordance with a rolling annual
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Haro Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolldated financial statements
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

11

I)

a)

b}

c)

)

2)

b)

12

a)

b)

<)

Investment

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Non- Current

Investments In equity shares of Others - {unguoted)
{valued at fair value through Othar comprehensive Income)

AMP Solar Urja Private Limited 15,12 15,12
1,51,200 equity shares {March 31,' 2024: 1,51,200) of ¥ 10 sach fully paid up
Ludhiana Advanced Centre for Cyde Technology 5.00 5.00
50,000 equity shares {March 31, 2024: 50,000} of ® 10 each fully paid up
AMP Energy Graen Thirteen Private Limited 14.40 -
1,44,000 eguity shares {March 31, 2024: Nil) of ¥ 10 each fully pald up
Investments in Debenture of Others - (unquoted)
{valued at fair value through Other comprahansive income)}
AMF Solar Urja Private Limited 136.08 136.08
13,608 Debentures {(March 31, 2024: 13,608) of ¥ 1000 each fully paid up
AMP Energy Green Thirteen Private Limited 129.60 -
12,960 Dabentures of (March 31, 2024: NIl) ¥ 1,000 sach fully paid up
The compulsory convertible debentures having par valye of ¥ 1000 shall be entitled to
interest at rate of 0.01% per annum. Interest shall be due and receivable at the end of every
financlal year.

300.20 156,20
1} Aggqreqate value of unguoted investments 300,20 156.20
Investments Others

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Currant
Investments In Mutual funds measured at Fair Valua through Profit and Loss
Quoted Investments
Adltya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund 107.95 479.45
19,746.73 Units (March 31, 2024 ; 1,23,036.20) market linked Mutual Fund
HDFC Liguid Fund - 188,11
Nil {March 31, 2024 : 3,965.44 Units) market linked Mutual Fund
Invesco Indla Arbitrage Fund - Direct Plan Growth 108.07
3,18,689,11 (March 31, 2024 : Nil) market finked Mutuwal Fund

216.02 647.56
a) Aggregate book value of quoted Investments 216.02 667.56

216.02 667.56

b) Aggregate market value of quoted investments
¢) The number of units in note above represents absolute numbers,

[This space has been feft blank Intentionally]
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Haro Motors Limited
Nuotes formina oart of the consoldated financial stabarents
{Amount in ¥ Iakhs, unless otherwisa stated )

13 Loans d at amortized cost B S
— Non.-Cwrant Currant
Purticulars As at As at As =t As at
sarch 31, 2015  March 31, 2024 March 31, 202% March 31, 2024
Unsacured, considered good o
Loans tw Emplovess* 136,32 131,07 111,35 50,19
13632 131.07 111.35 60,19
a) Tha Group has no outstanding lcans which have slgnificant increase in credit risk and |cans which are credit Impalred. (Refier Nota No, 46}
* Loan to empiovees is repayable in 1-4 vears.
14  Other financisl assets- st amortized cost
o T Non - Currant Current
As ot Az st
Particulars Ag at March As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 31, 2028 Match 31, 2024
Unsecured, considerad qood
At amortizad cost
L. Intarest accrued but not due on
- Margin Money* 251.69 95,43 -
li.Interast accrsed and dus on Depasit
- On security deposits 3.86 14.64 -
iil.Others
Balance with Banks:
In Deposit Accounts {with remaining maturity of less than twelve months) (Refer note below) . - 80.04 155.33
Security deposits -Others {(Electricity, rent and cthers) 497.63 483.58 0.47 7.69
Other Recelvables - - 2,974.85 1,821.90
At Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Forward Contract Recefvable - - 59.47 32.53
497,63 . 73943 3,205.90 2,017.55
Notaj
2. Parent Company- Balances with Banks held as Margin Money Deposits againat Bank Gurantee and Letter of Credit issued by Axis Bank.
b. There Is no allowance in relation to any outstanding balance and no loss alkowanca has basn necognised during the year in respect to receivables from related party.
* Includes ¥ 35.95 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 34.91 lakhs) sgalnst Ben for fund based/non fund based working capltal faciiity with Kaotak Mahindra Bank. Axis Bank and SBI Bank, and ¥ 66.78
lakhs {(Merch 31, 2024: 216.78 lakhs) against non-lien Margin money.
1% _Non Currant Tax Asgat — ===
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance Income Tax 1,252.92 904.59
Net of provision of ¥ 1971.25 lakhs (March 31. 2024: 1465.00 lakhs)
- 1.25%.93 904,59
14 Othar assets §
Non = Currant Curmnt
Particulars As at As B¢ As at As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered goor.l_

{i) Capital Advances (Rafer Note No. 43) 834.51 1,737.45 - -
$34.51 1,737.45 - -
{ii} Balances with Government Authorities
Goods and service tax and Value added ax {VAT} 223,67 3.46 112654 125255
23.07 3.48 1,126.54 1,252.55
(i} Others
Expert ncantive racehvable - - 330.82 203.80
Prepald expenses 0.11 0.79 425.30 626.17
Share [ssue expenses recoverable™ 1.260.75 232.00
Advancas to amploves - - 41.22 42.56
Advances to vendor - - 701.66 545.53
Advances to related oarty (Refer note 44} - e — - 1667.00
= 0.11 0.79 2.759.78 3317.06
1,058.29 __1,74L.70 3 886.29 4,569.61

*The Company incurred and recognised expensas towands proposed Initial Public Offering of its equity shares based on the invoices accounted for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March
31, 2024, The Company expects to recover cartain amoumts from the selling shane holders and the balance amount would be netted -off to securities pramium account in accordance with

Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 on issue of shares {Refer note- 61),
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Hearo Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financlal statemants
{Amount in € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

17 Inventories
(Valuad at Lower of cost and or realisable valua)

Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw materials {Refer note i {a) below) 4,473.78 3,709.63
Work in progress (WIP) 3,8758.78 3,835.39
Finished goods (Refer note | (b) below) 8,443.26 8,663.42
Stock-in-trade 325.19 63.96
Stores and spares 1,975.05 1,670.27
Scrap 29.46 47.12
Total 19313552 = 17.989.79
Motes:
(1) Includes goods in transit:
{8} Raw material 227.70 195.97
(b} Finished goods 5,173.06 5,078.95
5,400.76 5,274.92
18 Trade raceivables
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecurad Considerad good
- Others 20,233.12 19,478.69
Unseacured, Credit impaired
= Others 2.58 7.36
Less: Allowance for recaivables {credit impalred) (2.58) (7.38)
Total 20.233.12 19.478.69
Note:

a) It includes amount due from related party as disclosed in note 44,
b) The group's exposure to credit and current risk and losses allowance related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 46,

{This space has been loft blank Intentionally]
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Hero Motors Limited
Notas forming part of the consolidated financial statemants
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

a) Trade recelvables ageing schedula as at March 31, 2025:;

Particulars Outstanding for following perieds from tha due date of payment | Total
Lessthan 6 | 6 months-1| 1-2years | 2-3 years | Morethan 3
months* year years
(i)} Undisputed Trade recelvables - cansidered good 19,516.09 87.61 6.80 622.62 - 20,233.12
1

{il) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have - - - - - -
|significant increase in credit risk

‘(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - -
{iv) Dispute Trade Recelvables- consldered good - - - - - -

{v) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have - - - - - -
slonificant increase in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - cradit impalred - - 0.78 1.80 - 2.58
Less: Allowances for expected cradit loss - - {0.78) {1.80) - {2.58)
Net Trade racsivables 19,516.09 87.61 6.80 622.62 - 20,233.12
b} Trade recaivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024:
Particulars [ Outstanding for following periods from the dus date of payment Total

| Lessthan6 | 6 months-1| 1-2years | 2-3 years | More than 3

| months® year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivaltdes — considerad good 18,790.14 60.19 628.36 - - 19,478.69

(il) Undisputed Trade Recelvables - credit impalred - - - - - -
(1) Dispute Trade Recelvables considered goad - - - - - -
{Iv) Disputed Trade Recelvables which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk |

\{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit Impaired - - 7.36 - - 7.36
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss - - (7.36) - - {7.36)
Net Trade receivables 18,790.14 650.1% 628.36 - - 1$,478.69

* Includes unidlled and not due,

A) For trade receivables or any contractual right to recelve cash that result from transactlons that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Group aiways
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to Ifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss
allowance for trade recelvables, the Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. The Group foilows simpilfied approach for
recognition of impairment lass allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not requira the Group to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, It recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL's at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

a) Tha movement in the allowance for expected credit loss allowance Is as follows: As at As at
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Balanca as at beginning of the year 7.36 -
Loss allowances during the year 0.78 7.36
Trade receivables writben off / written back during the year {5.96) -
Balance as at the end of the year 2.58 7.36

a) Trade recelvables from damestic customers are generally on terms of 45- 60 days (March 31, 2024: 45-60 days).
b) Trade receivables from export customers are generally on terms of 30-75 days (March 31, 2024: 30-75 days).
¢} No trade or other raceivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company efther severally or jointly with any other persons.

d) There are no indicators / default on recelpts of amount from debtors {Including related partles). Accordingly, the Group does not anticipate risk of
recovery and expected credit loss in respect thereof. During the year, the subsidiries have created expected credit ioss on old outstanding recelvables.
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Haro Motors Limited
Notes forming part of tha consolidated financial statemaents
{Amount in ¥ lakhs, unlass otharwise stated)

Cagh and cash equivalents R

19
As ot As at
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Balances with banks: o
- Current account 694,52 2,225.83
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 250.00 2,000.00
{Refer Note 'b' below)
Cash on hand 0.30 0.26
944,82 4,226.09

a) For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the cash and cash equivalent are same glven above,
b) The depasits maintained by the group with banks comprise of the time deposits which may be withdrawn by the group at any point of time without prior notice
and are made of varying period depending upon the cash requirements of the group and eamn interest at respective deposit rate,

20 Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents
T o As ot “As at
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Deposits with origlnal maturity of more than 3 months but 3,831.00 4,600,00
less than 12 months (Refer notes below) *
3,831.00 _ 4 600,00
MNote: -
*The above deposits includes ¥ 2,000,00 (akhs (March 31, 2024 : ¥2,000,00 Lakhs) on which lien Is marked on overdraft Fadility obtained from kotak bank (Refer
note 24}
21 Equity Share CapRal - As at As at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Authorised Share capltal
58,00,00,000 (March 31, 2024: 38,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 10 sach* 58,000.00 38,000,00
58,000.00 38,000,00
35,73,84,491 {March 31, 2024: 35,35,78,380) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each* 35,738.45 35,357.84
3573845 35,357.84
a) Reconciliation of Issued and yubscribed share capital: - -
Particulara No. of Sharas* Amount
Balanca a8 at April 1, 2023 35,35,78,380 35,357.84
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 35,35,78,380 35,357.84
Add: Shares issued during the year 38,06,111 380.61
Balance as at March 31, 2025 35,73,84,491 35,738.45

b) Tarms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The parent company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ® 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and will
rank pari passu with each other in all respect. In the event of liquidation of the parent company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to recelve remalning
assets of the parent company, after distribution of all prefarential amounts. The distribution will be In proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.
c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the parent company

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Name of Shars Holder No. of Hokling % No. of Shares* Holding 2%
Shares*
Pankaj Munjal on behalf of OP Munjal Holding 27,31,23,055 76.42% 27,31,23,055 77.25%
South Asia Growth Invest LLC 2,59,47,024 7.26% 2,59,47,024 7.34%
Bhagyoday Investments Private limited 2,39,78,804 6.71% 2,39,78,804 6.78%
* Number of Shares are given in absolute numbers.
d) Details of Promoter's Shareholding:
| As at T Asat -
Promoter's Name March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 % Changa during tha
| No. of % of total No. of % of total year
Shares* shares Shares* shares
Pankaj Munjal on behalf of OP Munjal Holding 27,31,23,055 76.42% 27,31,23,055 77.25% -0.83%
Panka! Munial 94,00,436 2.63% 94,00,047 2.66% -0.03%
Charu Mun;al 5,42,425 0.26% 9,42,425 0.27% -0.01%
Abhishel Munjal 7,06,210 | 0.20% 7.06,210 0.20% 0.00%

Note: Promoter's refers to promoter as defined under Companles Act, 2013
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Haro Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
(Amount In € lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22 Other Equity

| Particulars As at As at
[ March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|a. Securitles premium:
Balance at the beginning of vear 55,410.27 55,439.60
]Add: Share based payment reserve on shares excerclsed transferred to Security Premium 2,319.06 -
Lass : Share issué expenses (Refer note 7 below) 31.52) (29.33)
Ealance at the end of year 57,697.81 55.410.27
b. CCPS dassified as equity:
Balance at the beginning of year {(Refer note 21(i}) 2,097.19 2,097.19
Add /({Less}: Change during the year -
Balance at the end of year 2,097.19 2,097.19
¢. Share-based payment reserve
Balance at the beginning of year 5,281.16 1,334.99
Add: Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 1,481.65 3,946.17
Less: Share based payment reserve on shares excercised transferred to Secufity Premium {2,319.06) -
Balance at the end of financlal year 4,443.75 5,281.16
d. Capital reserve-Commmon Control
Balance at the beginning of year {Refer note 5 below) 150.76 160.76
Add /{Less): Change during the year -
Balance at the end of year 180.78 160.76
. Retained eamings
Balance at the beginning of vear 15,677.99 15,497.22
Add: Profit for the year 2,520.15 1,341.84
Add: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) 459,57 (225.37)
Less : Share issue expenses reloted to earlier year {17.69) -
Less: Dlvidend distribution {942.05) {935.70)
Balance at the end of year 17,697.97 15,677.99
f. Demerger adjustment deficlt account
Balance at the beginning of year (Refer note 8 below) (75.279.98) {75,279.98})
Add / Less -Change during the year -
Balance at the end of year {75,279.98) (75,279.98)
g. Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance at the beginning of year {121.30) 256.04
Add: Additlon during the year 29.99 {423.71)
Lass: Attributable to Non Controling Interest 44.35 46,37
Balance at the end of year (46.96) (121.30)
h. Non controling Interest
Balance at the beginning of year {1,102.33} {1,131.41)
Adjustment related to share issue expense 17.69 -
Profit for the year 759.63 161.79
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) 461.27 {286.34)
Non controling interest share of foreign currency translation reserve {44.35) {46.37)
Balance at the end of year 91.91 (1,102.33)
Total other aquity (a+b+c+d+e+f+g+h) 6,862.45 2,123.76
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statemants
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Notes:
B For Movement during the year in Other Equity, refer "Statement of Change in Equity”.
ii) The description of the nature and purpose of each reserves within equlity Is as follows:

1 Securitles premium: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The raserve is utilised In accordance with the
provisions of the Companlkes Act, 2013.

2 Shars-based payments reserve: The Share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to
employees under employees stock options scheme. Refer Note 41 for further detail of this plan.

3 Retalned earnlngé: Retained Eamings represents the undistributed profits of the group.

4 Remeasuremaent of defined benefit obligations: The Group transfers actuarial gain/ (foss) arising at the time of valuation of defined benefit
obligations to other comprehensive income.

5 Capital reserve-Common Control: The capital reserve pertalns to reserve created out of Business combinations for common control
transactions. The reserve Is utilised in accordance with the provislons of the Companies Act, 2013,

6 Non Controlling Interest
Non-controliing interest (NCI) pertains to Hewland Engineering Limited and HYM Drlve System Private Limted.

7 Share Issue expensea:
For the year ended March 31, 2025 ¥ 31,52 lakhs (March 31, 2024 ¥ 29,33 lakhs) incurred for Issuance of further equity share capital by Hero
EDV Systems Private Limited and Spur Technology Private Limited.

8 Demerger adjustment deficlt account
The differance between assets, liabilities and reserves transferred and the purchase consideration on Demerger is recorded as *Demerger

Adjustment Deficlt Account” (Refer note 47).

9 Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
This represent converslion of foreign subsidlaries from there respective functional currency to reporting currency i.e. ¥

[This space has been left blank intentionally]
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Hero Motors Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statemants
{Amount In € laldws, unless otherwise stated)

23 Non Current Borrowlng - at amortised cost

Represents non = cyrrent part long

Represents current part lohg term

term borrowing borrowing
As at As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
{a) Term Loan from Banks 10,828,35 5,967.14 3,707.96 1,338.77
(b) External commerclat Borrowling (ECB) 1,508.63 2,208.15 754.32 736.05
(¢} Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture - - - 1.667.00
12,336.98 8,175.29 4,462.28 3741.82
Less: Amount discioged under financial liabilitles as 'Current Borvowings’ (Refer note 24} - - 2.462.28 3,741.82
12,338.98 B,175.29 - -
Amount disclosed undar current Borrowing (Refer note 24} N
Security
Parant Company

(i) The term foan and External Commercial Borrowing mentioned In (a) and (b) have been secured by first pari pasu charge on all movable Property, Plant and Equipment of
parent company.

(ii} The Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures mentioned (RNCD) In {¢) above have been secured by a first parl passu charge (aquitable mortgage) on the land and
buliding of Mangll plant held by Hero Cycles Limited and a Arst pari passu charge on Flat No 2A , 10th Floor Gurugram held by Hero Cycle Limited. Thase non convertible
debenture ware transferred to the Company vla demerger scheme and are not transferred in the name of the company. On due date company used to pay its liabillty to Here
Cycles Limited and Hero Cycle Limitad used to pay to Debenture Holder (HDFC Bank Limited) ; During the year ended March 31, 2024, the charge agalnst the Mangli land has
been released by the Bank. The Company has repald the antire outstanding balance ¥ 1,667.00 lakhs amount to Hero Cycle Limited before the due date for cnward
repayment to Bank. Hero Cycle Limited has repaid the entine amount on due date.

Subsidiary- Spur Technologies Private Limited
The term loan have been secured by first pari pasu charge on all movable Property, Plant and Equipmant of tha subsidiary company.

Terms of Repayment-
Parant Company

Maturity profile of sacured term loans Is as set out balow :
(i) Term jcan from hanks

zon-ze‘ 2028-29| Bayond 2029-30
3505.93] 2739.24 437.61 |
754,31 1

2025-26
3707.96|
754.32|

2018-27

4145.57
754.32)

1) External Commercial Borrowings

Notes

Parsnt Company

3. The rate of interest for term loan from Axts bank is (Repo+2.10% spread) i.e. 8.60% p.a.

b. The rate of Interest for tarm ioan from Kotak mahindra bank is Repo + 2.15% i.e. 8.65%.

€. The rato of Interest for berm loan from ICICI Beank Limited is 3Months MCLR+ 0.00% spread l.e. 8.65% p.a

d. The rate of interest for External commercial borrowings Is 3 Months Secured ovemight financing Rate + 2.75% p.a. l.e. 7.64% to 8.08% p.2.The parent company have
entared in to Interest rate swap @ 6.65% p.a. with Axis Bank .

Subsidiary- Spur Technologles Private Limited
The rate of intarest for term loan from Axls Bank Limited is Repo+ 2.45% p.a. l.e. 8.70%

Subsidiary- Hero Motors Thai Limited
1. The rate of interest for term Loan from Standard Chartered Bank Thor +1.97% i.e. 3.97%

Detu is of borrowings avalled and repald during the yoar ended March 31, 2025

i} — Forex| “As at
["'““"'" - Mawch 31, 2024 Addition | poinstatement Repayment | \arch 31, 2025
External Commercial Borrowing 2,944.20 - 26.87 {708.12) 2,262.95
Non Convertible Debenture 1,667.00 - - (1,667.00) -
[Term Loan 7,305.91 B,629.54 | - (1,399.14) 14,536.31
Total 11,917.11 8,620.54 26,87 (3,774.26) 16,799.26
Detallis of borrowings avalled and repaid during the year ended March 31, 2024;

[ asat Forex ~ Asat |
Pasticulars March31,2023|  Mddten | poinstatament Repayment | \arch 31, 2024 |
External Commercial Borrowing 2,900.60 - 43.60 - 2,944.20
Non Convertible Debenture 3,333.50 - - (1,666.50) 1,667.00
Term Loan 3,067.55 _ 4.825.00 - (586.64) 7.305.91
Total 9,301,685 4.825.00 43.60 (2,253.14) 11,917.11
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24 Current Borrowing - at amortised cost

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Secured -
(a) Working capital demand loan 21,776.57 16,590,05
(b} Cash credit 152.49 -
(€] Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 23} 4,4562.28 3,741.82
{d} Bank overdraft 2,023.86 892.47
{e) Export packing credit - ___1.000.00
28.425,20 21 224.34
Note
The Group had access to the following undrawn borrowing Facilities at the end of the reporting year ;
A at As at
Particutars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Floating Rate o T
Expiring within one year (Bank overdraft and other facilltles} 3,448.65 3,624.00
Expiring beyond one year {Bank Loans } = e
3.448.65 3.624.00
Security
Parent Company

{a) The Working Capltal Demand Loan and Export Packing Credit mentigned in {a} and (e} have been secured by first pari pasu charge on entire current assets of the parent
company present and future for both Axis and Kotak Mahindra Bank,

{b) The Bank overdraft have been secured by fixed deposits equivalent to 100% of overdraft limit.

Subsidlary- Spur Technologles Private Limited
The Axls Bank cash credit limit have been secured by first pari pasu exclusive charge on entire current assets of the borrower, present and future of the subsidiary company.

Subsidiary- Hero Motors Thal Limited
The working capital loan |5 secured by parent company via stand by letter of credit frim Standard Chartered Bahk -Indla.

Subsidiary- Hewiand Enginasring Limited
The working capital loan is securad by parent company via stand by letter of credit from ICICI Bank -Indla.

MNotes :

Parent Company

a. Tha rate of Interest for Working Capltal Demand Loan from Axis Bank and Kotak Bank ranges 7.95% - B.25% p.a.

b. The rate of interest for Bank Ovardraft from Kotak Bank is term deposit +0.80% i.e. 8.10% p.a.

c. The rate of Interest for Expeort packing credit from Kotak Bank s 7.90% p.a.

¢. Refer Note No. 23 for the terms and conditions, nature of security and maturity profile of the cutrent maturities of long-term borrowings (forming part of long term
borrowings of the Group).

Subsidiary- Spur Technologies Private Limited
The rate of interast for cash credit facility from Axis Bank is Repo + 2.90% i.e 9.15 %.

Subsidiary- Hero Motors Thal Limited
The rate of interest on working capital from Standard Chartered Bank I is Thai Overnight Repurchase Rate (THOR) + 1.97% l.e. 4.15%

Subsidiary- Hewtand Engineering Limited
a, The rate of interest ¢n working capital from Standard Chartered Bank is Is Sterling Overnignt Index Average (SONTA) + 1.50% l.e. 5.96%
b. The rate of intarest for Bank Overdraft from HSBC Bank Is Base rate+5.5% i.e. 9.75% p.a.
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25 Other financial Habilities

Non - Current Currant
As at As ot As at As at
Particulars March 31,  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2025
At amortizad cost
Security deposit 1.15 2.15 - -
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings - - 53.67 42,97
Employee related payable - - 121.65 47.49
Creditors for caplital goods 812.53 468.55 979.48 940.32
Payable to related partles - - 876.21 1,346.70
Bonus / leave encashment / leave travel allowance - - 272.78 248,92
Bill DIscounting / factoring - - 4,181.83 7,568.93
813.59 470.70 6,485.72 10,1595.33
Notes:
a) The group's exposure to currency and liquidity risk related to trade payables is disclosed In note 46,
26 Other liabliities
Current
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance from customer 611.28 1,350.02
Statutory dues 918.67 816.86
Others - 18,38
1,529.95 2,185.26
27 Provislons
Non - Current Current
As at As at As at As at
Particulars
March 31, March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2025
Provision for eamployee benefits
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note 42) 370.19 274.47 81.32 45.50
Provision for gratulty/defined benefit pension llabflity (Refer note 5,586.38 7,090.19 716.03 158.56
42)
5,956.57 7,364.66 797.35 204.08
Trade payables
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Total awstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 2,312.20 1,717.06
Total eutstanding dues of creditors other than rmicro and smalf enterprises 11,407.99 11,907.22
13,720.19 13,624.28
a} Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023:
Less than 1 1-2 yoars 2-3 years More than Total
Particulars year 3 years
(1) Total outstanding dues of micro and small 2,312.20 - - - 2,312.20
enterprises
(il) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than |  11,333.25 22.33 S2.41 - 11,407.99
micro and small enterprises
{lil} Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues — Others - - = = S
Note- Unbllied dues are Included in less than 1 year.
a) Trade Payables agelng schedule as at March 31, 2024:
Less than 1 More than
Particulars year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years Total
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small 1716.62 0.44 - 1,717.06
enterprises
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 11859.11 45.24 2.87 11,907.22
micre and small enterprises
{lii) Disputed dues — MSME -
{Iv) Disputed dues — Others -

Note- Unbllled dues are included in less than 1 year
ing &
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29 Deaferved tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax liabllities 1,393.10 1,059.91
Deferred tax assets 214.25 41.59
HNet defarrad tax llabilities 1.178.85 1,018.32
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Defarred tax liabilitias relates to followings:
Praperty, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 2,181.81 1,685.49
Forward contract receivable 14.97 8.21
Right of use asset 263.56 69.09
Offsetting of deferred tax fiabllities with deferred tax (assets) (1,067.24) (702.88)
Dafarred tax llabllities (net) % | 1,059.91
Deferred tax assets relates to followings:
Employee benefit 631.09 546.75
Carry forward of losses 376.75 183.97
Preliminary expenses 1.50 * 1.85
Lease liability 196,18 11.90
Others 75.97 -
Offsetting of deferred tax (assets) with deferred tax flablitles (1,067.24) (702.88)
Deferred tax assats ( nat) 214.25 41.5%
1178.85 1,018.32
Deferred tax expense relates to followings:
For the yaar ended  For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Property, piant and equipment and Intanglble assets 496.32 365,70
Employee benefit (391.15) (69.50)
Carry forward of Losses (192.78) {151.12)
Preliminary expenses 0.35 (1.32)
Leasa liability (184.28) 41.03
Forward contract recelvable 6.76 13.24
Right of use asset 194.47 €9.09
Share based payment expenses - 335.99
Others {75.98) -
(146.29) 803.11
The movement in deferred tax assats and llabllitles during the year is as follows:
For the year ended  For the vear ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Bazlance at the haginning of the year 1,018.32 391.59
Tax expense/ (Credit) recognised in statement of Profit or Loss (146.29) 603.11
Tax expense/ (credit) recognised In OCI:
- Re-measurement gain an defined benefit plans 306.82 23.82
Balance at the and of tha yaar 1,178.85 1,018.32
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30 Incoma tax recognisad in Statament of profit and loss

For the yaar ended For the year anded

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Currant tax axpense:
Current year 660.03 548.54
Prior year tax adjustment 114.28 (423.87)
Total current tax (A) 774.31 124.67
Defarred tax assets/ (liabilitles):
Current year origination and reversals of temporary dlifference {94.73) 265.74
Prior year tax adiustment (51.56) 337.37
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) (B) (146.29) 603.11
Tota) tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 628.02 727.78
For the year ended For the year ended
Perticulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income tax recognised In other comprehensive Incoms
Income tax impact on remeasurament of defined benefits 306,82 23.62
Total Income tax racognised in other comprehensive income 306.82 23.62

Reconclliiation of astimated Income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported In the consolidated
statement of profit and loss is as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 3,907.80 2,431.41
Applicable income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Expected income tax expenses 983.52 811.94
Austments:

Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 23.76 21.94
Deferred tax adjustment 64.09 -
Deferrad tax not racognisad on Subsidiary- Hewland Engineering Limited {Refer (495.92) 265.03
note ¢ and d below)

Income tax raiated to prior year 115.21 (423.87)
Tax effect of amounts which are net deductible In calculating of taxable Income (net of {63.61) 157.68
exempt income}

Differance in overseas tax rates {18.99) (1.67)
Others 19.96 96,73
Reported income tax sxpenses 628.02 727.78
Notes:

a) The Parent company has elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income tax Act, 1961 as Introduced
by the Taxation Laws {(Amendment} Ordinance 2019.

b) The Group has recognised deferred tax liabillties {net of assets} only to the extent It Is probable that future taxable income will be
avallable against wnich unused tax credit will be adjusted.

€) The subsidiary (Hewland Engineering Limited) has unutilised tax losses of approximately ¥ 7,230.39 lakhs (March 31,2024; ¥
5,986.85 lakhs) available for offset against future taxable profit subject to agreement from HMRC. A deferred tax asset (net)
amounting to ¥ 1,989.02 iakhs {March 31, 2024 T 3,045.89 lakhs), including amounts arising In relation to deferred tax liabllity has
not been recognised on the basis that Its future economic bensfit is uncertain,

d) The following 1s the Movement in unabsorbed tax losses in Hewland Englinaaring Limited:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,045.89 2,134.60
Changes during the year {495.92) 265.03
Translation difference {560.95) 646.26
Balance at the end of the year 1,989.02 3,045.89
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31 Rewvenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of product 1,01,350.84 1,00,815.54
Sale of service 3.704.00 3.124,59
1,05,054.84 1,03,940.13
Other Opevating Revenues
- Scrap sales 1,734.31 1,380.81
= Export Incentive 473.41 360.25
- Government Grant 809.39 757.40
- Other oparating income 887.44
1,08,959.39 1,06 438.59

a) Performance obligation

Revenue Is recognised upon transfer of control of products and point of completion of services.

During the year, the group has not enterad into long term contracts with customers and accordingly disclosure of unsatisfied or remaining
performance obligation {which is affected by several factors flke changes in scope of contracts, yearic revalidations, adjustment for reverue that

has not been materialized, tax laws etc.) Is not applicable to the group.

b} Disaggregation of rovenue: The table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers on the basis of gaographical
spread of the operations of the company. The company belleves that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount of revenues and

cash flows are affected by market and other economic factors:

For the year ended For the year ended
Revenue based on Geography March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 64,349.05 62,498.53
Qutslde India 44,610.34 43,940.06
Revenue from operations 1.08,959.39 1,06,438.59
Ravenue from oparations

For the year ended For the year ended
Timing of revenus recognition March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Revenue racognised at point in time 1,05,255.39 1,03,314.00
Revenue recagnised over the time 3,704.00 3,124.59
Revenue from oparations 1,08,959.39 1,06,438.59
<) ReconcHiation of revenue from sale of products with contractad price For the yaar ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Contracted Price* 1,01,350.84 1,00,815.54

Less: -

Sales Returns i -

Rebate and Discount - -
1.01,350.84 1.00,815.54

* It includes Sale of product and traded goods.
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32

d) Assets and liabllities relatad to contract with customers

Particular Az at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024

Trade recelvables 20,233.12 19,478.69
611.28 1350.02

Advances from customer
20,844.40 20.828.71

Remaining performance obligation as at the reporting date are expected to be substantially recognised cver the next reporting petiod by the
Group.

#) Revenue recognised in relation to contract Habilities outstanding at

the beginning of the year

Contract liabllities related to sale of services

Particualar For tha year anded For the year anded
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Advances from customer 1,350.02 1236.76

f} Trade Recelvables, Contract Balances

For Trade Recelvables, Refer note no. 18.

Further, the Group has no contracts where the year batween the transfer of the promised goods or services 1o the customer and payment terms
by the customer excaeds one year. In light of above;

~ It does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money, and

- there Is no unbiied revenue as at March 31, 2025, except as disclosed in Trade receivable under note no 18.

Further, the group doesn't have any contract liabilities as at March 31, 2025,

Other Income

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 21, 2024

Interest Income

- On bank depasits 408.86 600.37

~ Othears 65.48 367.21

Othar non-operating Income:
Rental income 4.78 2.35
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 11.64 13.22
Profit on sale / fair vafuation- Mutual funds 49.24 87.29
Mark to market gain on forward contract 26.84 32.63
Foreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) 1,204.92 246.14
Excess provision/ liabilities written back 200.25 300.08
Gain on derecognition of right of use asset and lease liabllity# - 105.12
Commission (ncome 182,97 145.87
Other non-operating income 9.01 2.99

2.163.99 1,903.27

# Net effact of derecagnition of Right of Use Assets and Lease Liabllitles on account of termination of fease agreement of land situated at Mangfl
Ludhiana, Punjab.
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33

34

3z

Cost of raw matarial consumed
For the year andad For tha ysar ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw Materlal
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,709.63 4,780.76
Add:- Purchases during the year 63,808.50 62,973.67
67,518.13 67,754.43
Less:- Balance at the end of the year 4,473.78 3,709.63
Cost of material consumed 632,044.35 64, 044.80
Purchase of stock in trade
For tha year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchases of traded qoods 765.67 -
765.67 -
35 _Chances In Inventories of finished goods, work in proaress and stock in trade
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work-in-prograss 3,835.39 4,736.24
Finished goods 8,663.42 8,050.34
Scrap Stock 47.12 73.68
Stack in trade 63.96 206.40
(A) 12 609.89 13,066.66
Inventories at the end of the vear
Work-in-progress 3,878.78 3,835.39
Finlshed goods 8,443.26 8,663.42
Scrap Stock 29.46 47.12
Stock in trade 325.19 63.96
(B) 12,676.69 12,609.89
Increase In inventory {A-B) (66.80) 456.77
Employee banefits expense
For the ysar ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Salaries, wages & bonus 13,408.83 11,778.57
Contribwtion to provident and other fund {Refer note 42) 1,185.46 1,092.14
Gratuity/Pension expense (Refer note 42} 703.93 547.44
Compensated absences 186.87 102.88
Staff welfare axpansas 525.45 614,65
Share based payment expenses {Refer note 41) 1,481.65 3,946.17
Director Sitting fees 3.70 1.60
17,499.89 18,083.45
Finance costs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest axpense on
-term loans & working capltal facllities 2,200.54 1,628.09
-redsemable Non Convertible Debentures - 182.11
-extemal commerciat barmrowings 169.50 202.48
- ICD Interest - -
- Others 102.93 103.28
Other borrowing cost
- Reverse discount 231,95 152.77
- Buyer credit - 5.76
- Sales bill discounting 339.17 354.23
- Others 77.80 181.58
Interest on lease labliity 190.23 184.12
3,312.12 2,994.42

Note :

The Group has capitalised the borrowing cost ¥ 271.61 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 456.91 lakhs). The interest rate used for capitalization

ranges from 8.60% - 8.65% (March 31, 2024: 8.95% - 9.45%).
Depreclation and amortisation expense

Particulars

For tha year ended
March 31, 2025

For tha year ended
March 31, 2024

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4 & 4 (d))
Amortisation of Intanglble assets (Refer nate 9)
Depreciation of Right of use assets (Refer nate 5)

3,069.46 2,268.81
122.93 85,53
602,03 500.80

3,794.42 2,855.14
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40

Nominal value of Equity shares (%)
Diluted earnings per share (A/D} (¥)
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0.66

Other sxpenses
For the year ended For the year anded
Particulars March ?1, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rent 299,48 252.97
Contract labour charges 3,806.44 3,333.41
Power & fuel 2,977.52 2,819.82
Consumption of stores & spare 2,727.46 2,100.17
Packing material consumed 2,149.46 2,220.28
Security charges 266.95 204.38
Repair & maintenance
- Plant & machinery 978.02 972.57
- Buildings 128,78 96.63
-Others 511.86 460,58
Legal & professional expenses 593.18 420.73
Payment to the auditors# 112.68 140.76
Freight & forward Charges 1,520,04 1,498.32
Other selling expenses 435.04 388.01
Rates & taxas 197.22 190.27
Travelling & conveyance 480.91 459,31
Insurance expenses 404.00 363.82
Allowance for expected credit loss -
Bank charges 106.09 121.47
Loss on sale/wrlte off of Property, plant and equipment 0.15 2.38
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net) - 298.13
Corporate social responsibilities expenses 94.42 87.16
Miscellaneous expenses 1,076.22 1,044.70
Total 18,865.92 17.475.87
# It includes payment to the auditors of subsidiaries.
Earmings per share (EPS}
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attrlbutable to the equity sharehoiders of parent company (A) 2,520.15 1,341.84
Number equity shares outstanding at the end of the year {B) 35,73,84,491 35,35,78,380
Welghted average number of potential equity shares for Non-Cumulative
compulsory convertible preference shares 2,09,71,941 2,09,71,941
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (C) 37,76,29,178 37,45,50,321
Nominal value of Equity shares (¥) 10.00 10.00
Basic Earning per share (A/C) (T} 0.67 0.36
Welghted average number of potential equity shares on account of 48,83,427 81,39,045
Pending Employee Stock option Scheme
Weighted average number of Equity shares (including dilutive shares) 38,25,12,605 38,26,89,366
outstanding for Dilutlve EPS (D)
10.00
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41 Employee Stock option plan (ESOP)
Deatalls of Stock Option Schame

ESOP 2022
Option Value Number of options
Particulars () Date of grant granted
Tranche-1 60.93 December 02, 2022 95,15,278
Tranche-2 27.449 December 30, 2022 49,43,511
Tranche-3 29.97 December 30, 2022 39,54,809
Tranche—4 32.34 March 01, 2023 11,54,196
Tranche-5 16.57 July 13, 2023 5,89,800
Tranche-6 16.95 November 17, 2023 1,44,975
Tranche-7 10.96 July 17, 2024 6,99,738
Tranche-8 11.18 December 12, 2024 1,06,620
Date of Board approval of the relevant scheme Deacamber 02, 2022
Date of Shareholder's approval of the relevant scheme December (2, 2022
Date of last modification by shareholders August 13, 2024
Method of sattlement (Cash/Equity) Equity
Vesting period Minimum of 1 Year and maximum of & year from grant date
Exercise period 10 years from the vesting date
Exercise price The optlons are granted to ellgible employees at the latest avallable closing price of tne shares of the parent company prior
p to the grant date as per the valuation report obtained by the parent company.
Vesting condition Vesting of optlons is a function of achievement of performance criteria or any other criterla as specified by the parent
9 company in the grant letter, further the vesting takes place on staggered basis over the respective vesting period.
For the year anded For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expensas arising from equlty - setiled share based payment transactions (Rafer Note 36) 1,481.65 3,946.17
Total axpense arising from share-based payment transactions recognized In 1,481.68 3,946.17

consolidated staterment of profit and loss

Notes:
o The parent company has given stock options to certain empioyees and has considered the related compensation cost to recognize In the
statement of profit and loss, over the vesting period,

The detalls of activity under the ESOP Mans have been summarized below :

ESOP 2022
For tha year endad For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Welghted

Average Welghted Average
2 3

Particulars Number of options Exarcise Price Number of options Exercise Price (¥)

()
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,00,70,524 41.10 1,95,67,794 40.38
Granted during the year 8,06,358 69,14 7,34,775 68.43
Forfelted during the year (1,37,847) 65.14 (2,322,045} £8.43
Exercised during the year (38,06,111) 10.00 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,69,32,924 49.48 2,00,70,524 41.10

Vested and Excerciseable at the year end 58,55,382 73,75,491

Remalning average contractual life {in years) 3.60 3.80

*Number of optiens are given In absolute number.
Fair value of options granted

The weighted average falr value of stock options granted during the petiod pertaining to ESOP 2022 plan is 2 10.98 (March 31, 2024: € 16.64). The
fair value at grant date is determined using the using the Black- Scholes model which takes Into account the exercise price, the term of the option,
the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying sbare, the expected dividend yleld and the risk free interest rate for the
term of the option. The following tables list the inputs used for fair valuation of options for the ESOP plans

For options granted For optlons granted

Particulars during the year during tha yaar
ended March 31,2025  ended March 31,2024

ESOP 2022 Plan ESOP 2022 Plan

Dividend yleld 1.56% 0.53%
Expected volatality 5£3.16%-60.22% 36.97%-43.00%
Risk free interest rate 7.16% 6.69%-6.91%
Expected life of share option 3.5to 6.4 years 3.5 to 6.4 years
32.08 47.37

_ Share price at grant
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42 {i} : Defined contribution and defined benefit plans
Below is the defined contribution and defined benefit plans for the group except for Hewland Engineering Limited and Hero Motors Thal Limited.
Defined contribution and defined benefit plans for Hewland Engineering Limited, refer note 42(ii) and for Hero Motors Thal Limited, refer note
42(l01):
a} Defined contribution plans
The Group makes contribution towards Employees Provident Fund, Employee's State Insurance scheme, Pension costs and cther welfare
schemes. Under the rules of these schemes, Group Co_mpanies is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. During the period
companles recognised the followlng amount in the Statement of profit and less under company's contribution to defined contribution plan.
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Emplover's Contribution to Provident Fund 577.37 513.08
Employer's Contribution to Empiloyee State Insurance 36.73 37.46
Employer's Contribution to Welfare Fund/Other Charges 0.70 0.80
Total 614.80 551.34
Note:
Out of the above, an amount of Z 42.04 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 25,83 lakhs) has been capitalized In one of the subsidiary Hero EDU Systems
Private Limited.
The contributlon payable to these schemes by the Group are at the rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
b) Defined benefit plans
In accordance with Ind AS 19 "Employee benefits”, an actuarial valuation on the basis of "Projected Unit Credit Method” was carried out,
through which the parent Company is able to determine the present value of obligations. “Projected Unit Credit Method” recognizes each period
of service as giving rise to add(tional unit of employees benefit entitiement and measures each unlt separately to built up the final oblfgation.
Gratuity scheme
The gratulty plan is governed by the Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972. Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled
to spedific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. The gratuity is funded
for Mangli unit of parent company for by Life Insurance Corporation of Indla and rest of units and subsldiaries are unfunded.
c) The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and the fund status and

amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits. These have been provided on accrual basls,
based on year end actuarial valuation.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 21, 2024

Change in benefit obligation Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity Gratuity

{Funded) {Unfunded) {Funded) {Unfunded)
Opening defined benefit obligation 569.13 1,376.04 538.65 1,350.24
Interest cost 39.12 99.66 33.65 100.14
Current Service cost 35.97 197.17 31.33 196.50
Transfer of employee - 0.72 - -
Benefits pald (54.22) {137.38) (39.65) (170.12)
Actuarlal {galn) / less on obligations {6.12} 20.69 0.15 (100.82)

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 583.88 1,556.90 569,13 1,376.04
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d) The following tables summarise the compenents of net benefit expense recognised In the Statement of profit or loss and the funded status and
amounts recognised In the balance sheet for the respective plans:

1. Retirement Age (years)
2. Mortality Rate

Withdrawal Rata

For tha year ended
March 31, 2025

For tha year ended
March 31, 2024

Indlan Assured Lives Mortality (2012-
14) {modified) ultimate

Cost for the year incdluded under employee Gratulty Gratuity Gratulty Gratulty
benefit {Funded) {Unfunded) {Funded) {(Unfunded)
Current service cost 35.97 187.17 31.33 196.50
Interest cost 3%z 99.66 38.65 100.14
Expected return on plan assets {18.66} - {20.85) -
Net cost 56.43 2986.83 49.13 296.64
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
e) Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as Gratuity Gratuity Gratulty Gratulty
follows: (Funded) (Unfunded) {Funded) (Unfunded)
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning 263.16 - 284.80 -
Expected retum on plan assets 18.66 - 20.85 -
Contributions by employer 2.33 - 1.59 -
Benefits paid (49.98) - {39.65) -
Actuarial gains / (losses) on the plan assets {3.95) - {4.43} -
Fair value of plan assets at the end 230.22 - 263.16 -
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
f) Detall of actuarial gain/loss recognised [n OCI [s as Gratulty Gratulty Gratuity Gratulty
follows: (Funded) (Unfunded) {Funded) {Unfunded)
Actuarial gain / {loss) for the year — obligation 6.12 {20.65} {0.15) 100.82
Actuarial gain / {loss) for the year - plan assets {(3.95) - {4.43) -
Unrecognised actuarial gains / {losses) at the end of year 2.17 {20.69) (4.58) 100,82
Note:
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
g) Group company Principal actuarial assumptions at the Gratuity Gratulty Gratulty Gratulty
balance sheet date {Funded) (Unfunded) (Funded) (Unfunded)
Economic assumptions
1. Discount rate 6.68% 6.92% - 7.01% 7.09% 7.09%
2. Rate of Increase In cempensetion levels 8.00% 5%-10% 8.00% 5%-10%
3. Expected Retun on Plan Assets 6.68% - 7.09% -
Demographic assumptions
58 58 58 58

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
{2012-14) {modified) ultimate

1. Ages from 0 to 30 Years 3.90% 1%-10% 3.90% 1%-10%
2. Ages from 31 to 44 Years 3.90% 1%-10% 3.90% 1%-10%
3. Ages Above 44 years 3.90% 1%-10% 3.90% 19%-10%

The estimates of future salary Increases, considered In actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senlority, promotion and other relevant

factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
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h) Net assets / (liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet and experience adjustments on actuarial gain / {loss) for benefit

obiligation and plan assets.

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Gratuity Gratuity Gratulty Gratuity
{Funded) {(Unfunded) {Funded} {Unfunded)
Present wvalue of obligation 583.88 1,556.90 569.13 1,376.04
Less: Fair value of plan assets 230,22 - 263.16 -
Net assets /{ Nability) {353.66) (1,556.90) {308.97) {1,376.04)

i) Expected contribution for the next year is ¥ 391,17 lakhs (March 31, 2024; ¥ 340.70 lakhs) in respect of Gratulty for mangli unit,

1) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for slanificant assumptions Is as shown below:

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

A. Discount rate Gratulty Gratulty Gratuity Gratulty

{Funded) {Unfunded) {Funded) {Unfunded)
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Discount Rate (35.59) (128.48) (34.44) (103.30)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease In Discount Rate 39.81 152.27 38.54 121.16
B, Salary escalation rate
Effact on DBO due to 1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate 36.84 150.39 26.21 120.25
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Salary Escalation Rate (35.37) (126.62) (34.48) (104.58)

€. There are no changes in current period from the previous corresponding peried In the methods and assumgtions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis.
D. Sensitlvities due to mortality & withdrawais are not material & hence Impact of change due to these not calculated.

k} Risk

Discount Rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the liability.

Salary Increases

liability.

|Actual salary increases will increase the definod benefit llability, Increase in salary
increase rate assumption In future valuations which in turn alse increase the

Withdrawals

Actual withdrawals proving higher or Jower than assumed withdrawais and change
of withdrawals rates at subsequent valuations can impact defined benefit liabllity.

Morallty and disability
valuation can impact the llabilittes.

Actual details and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the

i) Maturity profile of Group cash gutflows relating to definad

benefit obligation are as follows: As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Gratulty Gratulty Gratuity Gratuity
{Funded) {Unfunded) (Funded) {Unfunded)
Dto 1 years 40.88 135.62 71.89 125.43
1to 2 years 47.52 179.89 66.61 132.65
2 to 3 years 75.08 142.68 46.51 173.83
3to 4 years 64.56 169.02 69,95 137.63
4to 5 years 86.38 162.41 60.55 166.70
From 5 years anwards 290.87 504.67 310.69 563.48

213



Hearo Motors Limitad
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial stataments
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, unless otharwise stated)

{il} Post-empioyment banafit plans of Subsidiary Company’ i.e. Hewland Engineering Limited

a) The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for all qualtfying employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the company in an independently administered fund.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employer's Contribution to Pension Fund 267.69 280,90
Employer's Contribution to Soclal Security Cost 607.45 564.19
875.14 845.09

b) Dafined banefit schemes
The Group operates a defined beneflt pension scheme In the UK funded by employer's contributions with assets heid in a separate trustee

administered fund.

c) The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and the fund status and
amounts recegnised in the balance sheet for the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits. These have been provided on accrual basis, based

on year end actuarlal vaiuation,
Change In banefit obligation

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 20,998.10 20,516.53
Interest cost 1,030.60 941,55
Actuarial gains/{Losses) (2,764.91) (62.42)
Benefits paid {1,215.25) {1,078.88)
Translation adjustments 1,066.56 581.32
Present value of obligation as at the ond of the year 19,115.10 20,998.10
d) Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Particutars As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024
Fair value of plan assats at the beginning 15,431.37 15,407.73
Interest income on pian assets 762.91 712.66
Return on assets iess interest income {1,509.90) {645.04)
Contributions by employer 548.31 527.48
Benefits pald {1,215.25} (1,078.88)
Other {0.53) (1.04}
Translation adjustments 800.91 508.47
Fair valua of plan assets at the and 14,817.82 15.431.37
&) Net {assets} / llablliHes recognized in the Balance Sheet on actuvarial gain f {loss) For benefit obligation and plan assets.
Particulars As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024
Present value of plan liabilities 19,115.10 20,998.10
Fair value of plan assets (14,817.82) {15,431.37)
Net pension scheme llabliity 4,297.28 5,566.72

) Expected contribution for next year Is ¥ 548.31 lakh (March 31, 2024 - ¥ 532.51 fakhs ) to its definad benefit pension scheme.

@) The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expanse recognised In the Statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the

halance sheet for the respective plans:

For the year anded For the yeat ended
Cost for the yaar included under amployee benefit March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Net interest cost 267.69 280.90
h) Detall of actuarial gain/loss recognised In OCI is as follows:
For the year endad For the year endad
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Actual return less interast Income {1,509.90) (646.76)
Actuarial galns/(losses} 2.764.91 62.42
Total amount charged to other compraheansive incoma 1,255.01 (584.34)
i) Composition of plan assets :
Particulars As st March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024
Fixed income investmeant 3,788.24 3,706.60
Liability driven investment funds 3,460.22 4,059.51
Bank 284.10 206,91
Dlversified growth fund units 3,431.95 3413.56
Annuity pollcies 3.853.31 4.044.80
Total 14.817.82 15.431.38
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1) Princlpal actuarlal assumptions used at the Statement of financial position date

As at March 31, 2025  As at March 31, 2024

Particulars
0% O
Discount rates at start of year 4.50 4.60
Discount rate at end of year 5.40 4.90
Inftation - RPI 3.20 3.30
Inflation - CPI 2.40 2.50
Penslon Increases in deferment {Non GMP) 2.40 2,50
Penslon Increases in payment (RPI, max 5%) 2.590 3.00
Penslon increases In payment (RPI, max 2.5%) 1.90 2.00
Pansion increases In payment (RPI, max 3%) 2.20 2.30
Penslon increases In payment (RPL, max 3%, max %) 3.70 3.70
k) Mortallty rates Number Number
- for a male aged 65 now 86.1 86.1
- at &5 for 2 male member aged 45 now 86.7 88.6
- far a female aged 65 now 88.6 86.8
- at 65 for a female member aged 45 now 89.4 89.4

1) Sensitivity Analysis As at March 31, 2025  Ag at March 31, 2024
Change to defined benefit obligation

Increase/Decrease discount rate by 0,5% P.a. -6%: f+6% 5% f+7%
Increasa/Decrease assumed future rates of inflation by 0.5% P.a. +4% /-3% +4% f-4%

[This space has been left blank Intentionally]
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{1ii) Post-employment benefit plans of Subsidlary Company® l.e. Hero Motors Thai Limited

a)

b)

<)

a} Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution Social Security Fund. Under the rules of these schames, the Company is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs. The company during the year recognised the following amount in the Statement of profit
and loss under company's contribution to defined contribution plan.

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Empioyer's Contribution to Soclal Sacurity Cast 5.25 2.43
Total 5.25 2.43

b) Defined benefit schemaes

The Group pays contributions to & separate fund on 2 contractyal bagls, The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributlons have been pald. The contributions are recognised as employes benefit expense when they are due.

€) Retirement benefits

Amount of retirement benefits Is defined by the agreed benefits the employees will receive after the completion of employment, It
usually depends on factors such as age, years of service and an employee’s latest compensation at retirement.

The present value of the defined benefit obligaticn Is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market
yield of government bonds that matches the terms and curmency of the expecbed cash outflows.

Remeaswrement gains and losses are recognised directly to other comprehensive Income In the perlod in which they arise. They are
included in retained eamings In the statements of changes in equlty

Past-service costs are recognised Immediately in profit or loss.

d) Termination benefits

The Group recagnisas termination benefits at the earlier of a) when the Group can no lenger withdraw the offer of those benefits;
and b} when the entity recognises costs for the related restructuring. Benefits due more than 12 months are discounted to thelr
present value.

Employee benafit obligations

The plans are final salary retirement plans. The level of henefits provided debends on members’ length of service and their salary in
the final years leading up to retirement.

The amounts recognised In the statement of financlal position are determined as follows:

For the year ended Por the year ended

Cost for the year included under employee benefit March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Pension expense 91,85 -
Total 91.85 -

The following tables summarize the companents of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss and the fund
status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the defined benefit plan and other long term benefits.

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Opening defined benefit obligation - -

Current service Service cost 91,85 -
Translation adjustments 2.68
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 94.53 -

Principal assumptions used at tha Statement of financlal position data:

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
Discount Rate 2.65% -
Tumover Rate 36.50% -
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43
a)

II

b)

44
a)
(n
(i)
i)

Contingent llabilitles and commitments

Contingent liabilities (To the extant not provided for)

The Group has reviewed all its pending claims, litigations and other proceedings and has adequately provided for wherever required.
However, wherever it is difficult for the Group to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the below as it is
determinable only on recelpt of judgement/decisions pending with various forums/authorities, the Group has disclosed the same as
Contingent Liabilities (pending resolution of the respective proceedings).

The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material or adverse effect on financlal position of the Group.
Also, the Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the below contingent liabilities.

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
- Legal cases of labour pending before labour court 08.27 92.34
- Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt {see note-1 below) 39.29 39.29
- Bank Guarantee 207.41 328.18

Several Legal Cases of labour pending at labour Court, Civil Court and High Court. The Parent Company has assessed and believe
that none of these cases, either individually or In aggregate, are expected to have any material adverse effect on its consolidated
financlal statements. However, Since It is difflcult for the Parent Company to estimate the timings of the cash outflows, if any, no
further provision or separate disclosure is made In books of account.

A Vendor - Sadhu Forging Limited, has filed suit claiming ¥ 39.29 lakh as balance payment against supply of material. The Parent
company has resisted the claim on the basis that the materlal supplled was faulty by the vendor, material was rejected by the
parent company & Debit Note raised to the Vendor. The case Is pending with Civil Court, Faridabad.

The excise department issued a show cause notice to demand duty of ¥ 474,82 lakhs along with interest and penalties, Vide final
order dated September 05,2017 the CESTAT set aside the SCN and dropped the demand. The Department filed Civil Appeal to
impugn the final order passed by CESTAT , which is pending consideration before the Supreme Court.

As at As at
Commitment March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Capltal Commitment: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 2,188.05 4,719.09

the capltal account {net of related capital advances)

The Group does not have any other long term commitments or materlal non cancellable contractual commitments, which may have
a material Impact on the consolidated financlal statement.

Related party disclosures under Ind AS 24

List of related parties

Uktimate controlling entity
QP Munjal Holdlng (Partnership flrm}. It is held by signlficant beneficial owner Mr. Pankaj Munjal effectively controlling the said flrm.

For subsidiaries of the Holding Company - Refer note 2.1

Nature of Relationship Name of the Related Party

Hero Cycles Limited

HMC E-Valley Private

HNF Gmbh

Rero Global Designs Limited

High Rise Industries

Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited

SEll‘lteirf;i)rise ?v;r which Key Managerial Personnel! and their relatives exercise :I"S:i:: S(%u&%ﬁﬁ?&ﬁiéiﬁn?ﬁd
gnificant Infiuence OMA Private Limited

Bhagyoday Investments Private Limited

Hero Lectro (A div of hero cycles limited)

Flrefox Bikes Private Limited

Hero Global Deslgn Limited

Meenakshi Polymer Private Limited

ZF Hero Chassls and Systems Private Limited

Enterprise over which Directors and their relatives exercise Significant Influence Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limited
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(iv} Key Management Personnel {KMP} and their relative of Parent company

S.No

bl

Mr. Pankaj Munjal
Mr. Amit Gupta
Mr. Abhishek Munjal

Mrs. Ruhani Munjal

Mr, Keshav Misra

Mr. Pawan Purl

Mr. Andrew Charles Palmer
Mr. Sridhar Narayan

Mr, Kulbir Singh

Ms, Pratibha Goyal

Ms. J oti Arora

Mr. Ashok Kumar Taneja

Mr. Gaurav Dalmia

Mr. Darpan Vasishta

Mr. Ritesh Kumar Agrawal

Mr. Utkarsh Sanghi

Ms. Sheeba Dhamija
Ms. Sakshi Dureja

Ms. Esha Gupta

Related Part Transactions

Particulars

Sale of goods
Hero Cycles Limited
Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited

Chairman and Director
Managing Director & CEQ
Whole-time Director

Advisor to chairman

Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Independent Director

Appointment-May 24, 1998
Appointment-September 09,2022
Change in designation-September 09, 2022

Spouse of Mr. Abhishek Munjal

Appointment-September 09, 2022
Cessation- March 01, 2023
Appolntment-July 16, 2024

Non Executive Nominee Appointment-January 04, 2023

Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Inde endent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financial Offlcer
Chief Financial Officer

Cempany Secretary
Company Secretary and
Compliance officer
Company Secretary and
Compliance officer

HMC E-Valley Private Limited (formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited)

Firefox Bikes Private Limited

Purchass of goods
Munjal Kirlu Industries Private Limfted

HMC E-Valley Private Limited {(formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited)

High Rise Industries

Hero Cycles Limited

Oma Private Limited

Lectro E-Mobility Private Limited
Meenakshi Polymer Private Limited

Purchase of property, plant and equipmeot

Oma Private Limlted
Hero Cycles Limited

Consultancy Fees

Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limited
Purchase of Service

Hero Cycies Limited

HMC E-Valley Private Limited

Loan Recelved
Hero Cycles Limited

Loan Repaid
Hero Cycles Limited
Bhagyoday Investments Private Limited

- -u& of Share Capital

H les Lf
{/3%9 Ia@\stq\es mited

"
JR—
'." !:' '!‘ 1
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Appointment-February 01,2023
Appointment-May 26, 2021

A ointment-Januar 28 2025
Appointment-August 12, 2024

Appointment-August- 12, 2024
Cessation- Novemebr 06, 2024

Cessation- QOctober 13, 2023

Appointment- February 16, 2024
Cessation- June 25, 2025

Appointment- June 25, 2025

Cessation July 19,
Appointment- August 12, 2024
Cessation- December 11, 2024

Appointment- December 12, 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

667.97 579.15
534.60 -

830.73 708.38

- 1.69

2,540.55 2,134.07

20.02 118.02

1,554.39 1,705.87

0.01 19.15

1.39 1.23

- 1.01
148.25 -
15.67 -

- 2,308.78

234,75 183.45

2,234.15 2,416.51
18.02 -

- 381.00

- 881.00

- 500.00

- 1,110.00
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Particulars For the year ended | For the yaar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i. |Other Income
Hero Cycles Limited - 300.00
j- |Rovalty Incoma
Hero Cycles Limited - 3.53
k. |Interest Pald
Hero Cycles Limited - 29.44
Bhagvoday Investments Private Limited - 41.40
I. |Reimbursement of Expanses
HMC E-Valley Private Limited (formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited) 67.82 8.92
Hero Global Designs Limited 1.34 -
Hero Cycles Limited 101.55 3.83
m. |Rentel expense
Hero Cycles Limited 1.24 0.40
n, |Lease liability paid for ROU assets
HMC E-Valley Private Limited (formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited) 150,00 177.00
o. |Dividend Pald
Hero Cycles Limited 19.31
p- | Other Expanse
HMC E-Valley Private Limited (formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited) 46.00 16.83
Hero Cycles Limited - 49.97
Hero Global Designs Limited - 2.40
q. |Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel
Refer note (c) below
Arnit Gupta 364.69 396.57
Darpan Vashishtha - 93.52
Ritesh Agrawal 143.28 16.65
Abhishek Munjal 327.55 335.05
Ruhani Munjal 22.56 20,93
Sheeba Dhamija 6.68 20,95
Sakshl Dureja 5.38 -
Esha Gupta 10.34 -
r. |Sharg issued under ESOP Scheme
Amit Gupta 380.61 -
s. |Directors sitting Fees:
Ms. Pratibha Goyal 1.50 0.60
Mr. Kulbir Singh 1.40 1.00
Mr, Ashok Kumar Taneja 0.40 -
Mr. Gaurav Dalmia 0.10 -
Mr. Andrew Charies Palmer 0.30 -
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€)

Closing Balances

- As at As at
8.Noj|Particulars March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

a. |Trade Recelvable

HMC E-Valley Private Limited (formeriy known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited) 824.14 640.58

Flrefox Blkes Private Limited - 2.16

Hero Global Designs Limited - 1.10

Munjal Kirfu Industries Private Limited 82.41 -

Hero Cycles Limited 89.68 52.94
b |Trade Payable

Munjal Kiriu Industries Private Limited 1,134.43 1,200.04

Nuvomax Nutritlonals Private Limited - 28.03

Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Limited - 5.51

High Rise Industries 25.4% 61.96

HMC E-Valley Private Limited - -

Hero Lectro {A div of hero cycles limited) - 3.90

HMC E-Valley Private Limited {formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited) 0.23 -

Oma Private Limited - 0.13

HNF Gmbh - 1.69

Meenakshi Polymer Private Limited 14,12 -
¢. |Other Payable

Hero Cycles Limited* 1,001.13 1,343.91

Nuvomax Nutritionals Private Umited 10.21

HMC E-Valley Private Limited (formerly known as Hero E-Cycles Private Limited) 14.64 -

Hero Global Deslgns Limited 0.04 -
d. |Other Advance

Hero Cycles Limited - 1,667.00
e, |Other Receivable

HMC E-Valley Private Limited 5.48 -

Amit Gupta 29.16 -
f. |Payable against purchase of propert, plant and equipment ,

228.20 228.20 |

|Hero Cycles Limited

The Parent Company has given:
a) Corperate guarantee to finance leng term loan taken by subsidiary Spur Technologies Private Limited upto maximum éxposure as on
March 31, 2025 is ¥ 1,590.00 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 1,590.00 lakhs). The outstanding balance of drawdown as on March 31, 2025 Is &
963.56 lakhs (March 31, 2024: 1,103.66 lakhs).

b) Stand by letter of credit to finance long term loan taken by subsidiary Hero Motors Thai Limited upto maximem exposure as on March
31, 2025 Is ¥ 4,709.10 Lekhs (March 31, 2024: Nil). The outstanding balance of drawdown as on March 31, 2025 is & 4,355.98 Lakhs
{March 31, 2024: Nil).

¢} Stand by letter of credit to flnance long terrn loan taken by subsidlary Hewland Engineering Limited upto maximum exposure as on
March 31, 2025 is ¥ 2,878.27 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nii). The outstanding balance of drawdown as on March 31, 2025 s ¥ 2,615.90
Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Nil).

Note

a) *These are the transactions/balances taken from entrles parked in the books of Parent company.,
b) Refer Note 21, for movement of shareholding pattern from erstwhile shareholders to new shareholders.
¢) The status of stock options pending vesting/exercise, grantad to Key Management Personnels are as below:

Name of Key Management Personnel Amit Gupta . Mr. Keshav Misra |
ESOP scheme ESOP Scheme Plan 2022 ESOP Scheme Plan

2022
ESOP Tranche Tranche-1 Tranche-2 Tranche-1
Exercise price (¥ per option) 10.00 69.14 69.14
Share option outstanding as at 31st March 2025 (In No's) 57.09.167 49,43,511 39,54,809

r I

Share options outstanding as at March 31, 2024 (In Nos) 95,15,278 49,43,511 39,54 809
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45  Fair value measurements

I  Financlal ingtruments
a) Financlal ingtruments by category
Except investment in mutual funds which are measurad at fair vaiue through profit or loss and Investment in Debentures and unquoted equity investment (other
than Investment In subsidiary) which are measured through fair value through other comprehensive incoma all ether financial assets and liabilitles viz. trade
raceivables, sacurity deposits, cash and cash equivalents, other bank halanges, interest receivable, other receivables, trade payables, employee related abilities
and kormrowings, are measured at amortised cost.

b} Fair value hisrarchy
This section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the consolidated financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at falr value and {b) measured at amartised cost and for which fair values are disclosed In the consolidated financial statements. To provide an indication
about the rellability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financlal instruments into the three levels prescribed under the

accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows undemeath the table.
The following table shows the canying amounts and falr values of financial assets and financials liabilities, including their levels of In the fair value hlerarchy:

As at As at
Particulars Lavel March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financlal assets measured at fair value through profit and loss -
Investment in mutual funds Level 1 216.02 667.56
Forward contract recelvable Level 1 59.47 32.63
Financial assets measurad at fair vaiue through Other comprehensive Income
Investments in equity shares of others - (Linqueoted) Level 3 34.52 20.12
Investments in debenture of sthers - (Unquoted} Level 3 265.68 136,08
Financial assets measurad at amottized cost
Loan to employees 247.67 191.26
Deposits with bank and others 60.04 155.33
Security deposits -others (Electricity, rent and others) 498.10 491,27
Intarest acerued but not due on margin money 96.43 251.69
Interest acarued and due on security deposits 14.64 3.86
Other receivable 2,974.86 1,821.90
Trade recelvables 20,233.12 19,478.69
Cash and cash equivalents 944,82 4,226.09
Bank balances other than cash & cash eguivalents 3,831.00 4,600,600
Total financial assets _ - - 29,476.37 32,076.48
Financial llabliities valued at amortized cost
Borrowings 40,762.18 30,399.63
Security deposits payable 1.15 215
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 53.67 42.97
Trade payables 13,720.19 13,624.28
Employee benefit payable 354.43 296.41
Payable to related parties 876.31 1,346.70
BIIl dlscounting / factoring 4,181.83 7,568.93
Lease liabilities 2,401.80 2,999.28
Credltors for capitel goods 1,792.040. 1,408.87
Total financlal llabilities o 64,183.57 57.689.22

¢) Capital managemant
Tha group’s capltal management objectives are:
(a) to ensure the group's abillty to continue as a golng cancern
(b} to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk.
For the purpose of Group's capital management, capltal includes equity attributable o the equity shareholders of the group and other equity raserves. The primary
objective of the group capital management is to ensure that It maintalns an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholders value,

Geaaring Ratio
The Group has outstanding long term debt of ¥ 12,336.98 lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 8,175.29 lakhs) at the end of reporting year and short term debt of ¥
2,8425.20 lakhs at the end of reporting year (March 31, 2024: ¥ 22,224.34). Accordingly, the gearing ratio is worked out as follows:

For the year ended For the year an
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 24, 2038
Long term borrowing {Refer note 23) 12,336.98 8,175.29
Short term borrowing (Refer note 24) 28,425.20 22,224.34
Lease llabilitles (Refer note &) 2,401.80 2,999.28
Total Debt - 43,163.98 3339891
Less: Cash and bank balances 4,775.82 9,826.00
Adjusted nat debt 38,383.18 24,572.82
Total Equity - 42,600.90 37,481.60
Adfustad nat debt to equity 90.11% 65.56%
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46

Finandial risk management objectives and policies

The Group‘s principal financial liabilities comprises of trade and other payables, borrowings, current maturity of borrowings, interest accrued and capital creditors.
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Groups' prindipal
financial assets includes Invesbment in mutual funds, loans to related parties, security deposits, trade recelvables, cash and cash equivalants, deposits with bank,
interest accrued in deposits, receivablas from related and other parties and interest accrued therson.

The Group has exposure to the followlng risks arising from financial Instruments:

- credit rigk,

- liquidity rsk and

= market risk.

The Group's senigr level management gversees the management of these risks and is supported by finance department that advises on the appropriate financial
risk governance framework.

Cradit Risk

Credit rigk is the risk that counterparty will dafault on its contractual obligations resulting in finance loss to the Group. Credit risk arise from Cash and cash
equivaients, deposit with banks, trade receivables and other financial assets, The Group continususly monitors defauits of customers and other counterpartles and
incorporate this information into its credit risk control.

The parent company alse uses expacted cradit loss modet to assess the Impalrment (oss In trade receivables and makes an allowance of doubtful trade receivables
using this modal,

Liquidity sk

Liquidity risk is the rigk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptabla losses,

The Group's objective Is to, maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Group closely monitors its liquidity position and
deploys a rebust cash management system, It maintains adequate sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost.

The tabie below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s finandial liabliltles based on contractual undiscounted payments.

at March Less than
As 31, 2025 yaar t 1 to S years > 5 years Total
Bommowlngs 28,425.20 12,336,98 ) - 40,762.18
Trade payables 13,720.19 - - 13,720.19
Lease liabilities 749,20 1,714.72 522,17 2,985.09
Other fAinancial liabllities 6,485.72 813.68 - 7,299,40
Total 49,379.31 14,865.38 522.17 64,766.36
As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1
year 1to 5 years > % years Total
Borrowings - 22,224.34 " 8,175.29 - 30,399.63
Trade payables 13,624.28 - 13,624.28
Lease liabllities 691.76 2,193.05 667,05 3,551.85
Other financial llabliities 10,195.33 470.70 - 10,666.03
Total N 46,735.71 10,839.04 667.05 £8,241.79

Reconciliation of [labliities whosa cash flow movements ara disclosed ag part of financing activities in the Statemant of Cash Flows :

| | Non Cash Changes

Statemant of cash ‘ Az at April Cash A Az at
Balance sheat caption o . s lina ftem | '1,2024 | Flows | Interest Interest | March 31, 2035
Borrowings Proceeds/(repayments)  30,399.63  10,335.68 - 26.87 - - 40,762.18
from borrowings
{including short term)
Lease liability Payment / proceed from  2,999.28 {B876.06) 29.14 122.34 190.23 {63.13) 2,401.80
lease liability
Interest accrued but nterest paid -
e utnoc 1 P 4297 (2,462.27) - 2,472.97 53.67
Cash Ch
Balance sheet caption | Statements of cash | AsatApril|  Cash | Non Cash Changes As st March 31,
Tlows line itam 1, 2023 Flows Forex Interest 2024
] Expenses Other |
Non current borrowings Proceeds/(repayments)  26,960,94  3,395.09 43,60 - - 30,399,863
from borrowings
{Including short term)
Lease liability Payment / proceed from  1,502.54 {364.99) - - 1,861.73 2,999.28
lease lability
Intere but not . - -
ane st accrued bu Intarest paid 486,47 (2,375.34) 1,931.84 42.97
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c. Market risk

Market risk is the tisk that the fair value of future cash Mlows of a financial instrument will Ructuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises

three types of risk;: interest rate risk, currency risk and other prica risk, such as equity price risk and commadity rick.

D. Interast rate risk

Enterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of changas in market interest rates. The Group’s

exposure to the risk of changes In market Interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-tern debt abllgations with floating interest rates. The Group manages

Its net exposure to interest rate risk related to borrowings, by balancing a proportion of fixed rate and floating rate borrowing in its total borrowing portfollo,

Interest Rate Sensltivity: The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 ., The following table
demonstrates the sensitivity to 3 reasonably possible change in intarest rates on the portion of borrowings affected. With all other variables hald constant, the
Group profit before tax is affected through the impact on fioaling rate borrowings, as follows:

| Increase or| Dacraase /|
Particulars decraasa in| (Increasa) in
basis points profit before tax
_ | |
March 31, 2025 T:g (22113301'.: |
March 31, 2024 l_ +;3g (115566::;}

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitlvity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.

Unheadged foraign currency sxposure

The carrying amount of tha group unhedged foreign currency denominated monetary assets and llabilitias at the end of the reporting year are as foliows:

As at As at

Particulars _ March 31, 2028 March 31,2024

cor e w':’r".dngc: ccy €  Forelgn currency
Trade payables

EUR  (144.05) (1.57) EUR (99.48) (1.11)

CHF (2.03) (0.02) CHF ; -

USD  (791.49) (9.26) usp {70.73) {0.85)

TWD - WD (31.25) (11.99)
Trade receivablas

EUR  2,782.73 30.22 EUR 699.07 7.78

USD  4,606.28 53,39 usD 3,204.37 38.42
Othar financial assets

EUR 920,90 10.00 usp - .

Note: External commercdial borrowing is not prone to foreign exchange sensitivity risk as the same has been hedged,
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il) Foreign cxrrency risk
Foreign currency tisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will Auctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is
expased to foreign currency risk on certain transactions that are denominated in a currency other than entity's functional currency, hence exposure to exchange
rate fluctuations arises. The risk is that the functional currency value of cash Aows will vary as a result of movements in exchange rates, The following tables
demonstrate the sensitivity {strengthening or weakening of Indlan Rupee) to a reasonably possible change in exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,

Impact mt:x Impact on total equity
For the For the year
year ended ended As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, 2028 As at
202% 2024 March 31, 2024
USD sanaitivity
Increase by 5 % 201.30 157.26 201.30 157.26
Decrease by 5 % {201.30) _(157.26) (201.30 (157.26)
Impact ont:;oﬂt before Impact on total equity
For the Por the year
yaar anded anded As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2025 2024
EURD sengitivity
Increase by 5 % 178.51 88,50 178.51 83.50
Dacrease by 5 % (178.51) (88.50) . {178.51) {88.50)
Impact ont:;oﬂt before Impact on total squity
Forthe  For the year
year ended ended As at As at
March 31, March31, March 31,2028 March 31, 2024
2028 2024
GBP sensitivity T
Increase by 5 % - 71.92 - 71,92
Decrease by 5 % - (71.92) - (71.92)
Impact nnt:;oﬂt bafore Impact on total squity
For the  For the year
yaar andad anded As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
2025 2024
TWD sensitivity
Increase by 5 % - (1.56) - {1.56)
Decrease by 5% - 1,56 - 1.56
Impact on Profit before tax Impact on total aqu_Itv o
Forthe  For the year
yeaar angded ended As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
2025 2034
CHP sensitivity
Increase by 5 % 0.10 0,08 0.10 .08
Decraase by S % (¢.10) {0.08} {0.10) (D.08)

Note: External commercial borrowing Is not prone to foreign exchange sensitivity risk as the same has been hedged,
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47 Scheme of Arrangement
The Board of Director of Hero Cycie Limited {HCL) (*Transferor Campany™) as its meeting held an August 27, 2021 has approved
a scheme and subsequentiy flied with Nationai Company Law Tribunai (NCLT) for demarger of Auto business of HCL into Parent
Company {Harp Motors Limited) {"resuiting Company"}.

Pursuant to the scheme approved by the National Company Law Tribunai, Chandigarh Bench on November 0%, 2022 for which the
certified copy of the order dated November 09, 2022 was received on November 16, 2022, the Demerged Undertaking {Primarily
reflated to Auto Business consisting, inter-afia, of ail assets inciuding movabie and immovabie propertles and liabifities refated
thereto) was demerged from the Demerged Company and transferred to the Resulting Company, with effect from Aprii 01, 2021,
the appointed date.

Sharehoiders of the Demerged Company will receive 81,174 share of the Resulting Company for every 100 share they hold in the
Demerged Company.

As par the Scheme, all assets and liabiiities of the Auta Business ("Demerged Undertaking™ stand transferred to the Resulting
Company from the appeinted date. The empioyees of the Demerged Undertaking have also moved to the Resulting Company and
consequentiy the employee reiated henefits and ail contracts and agreements In refation to them have been taken over by the
Resulting Company. The approved Scheme has accordingly been glven effect to in these standalone financfai statements as on the
appointad date.

During the year, pursuant to the approved Scheme, the Resuiting Company has given affect to the scheme In the standaione
financlal statements for demerger of Demerged Undertaking. Further, as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103
“Business Combination”, the comparatives for the year ended March 21, 2021 have been restated as if the common control
business combination had occurred from the beginning of the earliest peried presented. The Accounting treatment includes tho
foilowing:

1. Assets, Llabiilties and Reserves of the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company were
recorded at their camying values as appearing in books of the Demerged Compeny at the time of the demerger effective date and
in accerdance with requirements of relevant Ind AS.

2, The Resulting Company will Issue new equity shares pursuant to the approved Scheme to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company

3. The inter-company balances between Demerged Company and Resulting Company refating to Demerged Undertaking, if any, in
the books of accounts of Demerged Company and Resuiting Company got cancelled,

4. The difference between assets, flabillties and reserves transferred and the purchase consideration on Demerger is recorded as
"Demerger Adjustrent Deficit Account” of Resulting Company,

5. As per para 43 of Ind-AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows, trensactions that do not require the use of cash and cash equivalents
{i.e. the above transfer of assets and jiabilities under the scheme of demerger) have been excluded from the standalone cash fiow
statement for the year ended March 31, 2022,

The details of Demerged Undertaking as per the scheme approved by Mationai Company Law Tribunai inte Resulting Company s

as foliows:

Particulars As at April 01, 2021
Assets

Non-current assets 16,627.33
Current assets 31.231.48
Total assats 47.858.81

Equity and liabllitias
Equity

Other equity 3.214.36
Total aquity 3,214.36
Liabllities
Non- current liablilties 13,860.89
Current jiabliites 30,.783.56
Total equity and liabilities 47.858.81
Excess of assets over jlabiilties Nil
Less: Issue of equity share capital of the Company due to demerger {Refer Note 22) 75,279.98
Amount credited to Damerger Adjustment Deficit Account pursuant to the above (75,279.98)

scheme of demerger
Note : Equity shares pending for issuance at the end of previcus year l.e, March 31, 2022 has been issued In financlal year ended
March 31, 2023,
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| Power Train Alloy & Metallics Total
Particudars For tha year ended March 21, | For the year anded March 31, For the year ended March 31, |
_ ] -
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
1. REVENUE ‘
External sales {Gross) 50,943.30 51,429.35 54,111.54 53,268.18 1,05,054.84 1,04,697.53
Other Operating Income 2,481,490 593.72 1,423.06 | 1,147.34 | 3,904.55 1,741.06
Total revenue 53,424.79 52,023.07 55,534.80 54,415.52 [ 1,08,959.39 | 1,06,438.59
1. RESULTS a |
Segment results 6,403.45 6,400.72 590.30 2,852.71 6,993.75 9,253.43
Unailocated expenses (net of income} - - - 226.18 (3,827.60)
| Operating profit - 6,403.45 6,400.72 580.30 2,852.71 7,219.93 5,425.83
Finance costs (Subsidiary) 311.54 163.02 102.81 23478 414.45 427.80
Unallocabie Finance Cost (Parent) _ 2,897.68 2,566.62
Profit befors tax 6,091.81 6,207.70 487.49 2,617.93 3,907.80 2,431.41
Provision for taxation
- Current and deferred tax {Subsidiaries) {135.97) 180.54 (182.21) 28.03 (318.18) 208.67
= Current and deferred tax (Parent) 946.20 519.11
Met profit after tax 6,227.78 | 6,027.07 669.70 2,589.89 2,279.78 1,703.63
AsatMarch31, As at March 31, As at March 31,
2025 ' 2024 2025 2024 2025 | 2024
3. OTHER INFORMATION ) I
A. ASSETS
Sagment assets 66,617.31 46,106.03 25,618.16 28,688.09 92,235.47 74,794,12
Unallocated assets B - - - - 24,225.96 31,190.5¢
Total assets 66,617.31 48,106.03 25,618.16 28,688.00 1,16,481.43 1,05,984.71
B, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity (Share Capital & Other Equity) 42,600.90 37,481.60
Segment liabillties 23,040.72 18,975.91 9,653.10 16,982.79 32,693.82 37,090.09
Secured and unsecured loans 7.170.58 2,944.20 898.27 1,103.66 3,068.85 4,047.86
Unaligcable Secured and unsecured loans - - - 32,603.33 26,351.77
Unallocated liabllities - - = - - 404.53 1,013.39 |
Total liabilities 30,211.30 21,920.11 10,551.37 18,086.45 1,18,461.45 1,05,984.71
C, OTHERS
Capltal expenditure 3,933.54 18,975.91 614,67 221.60 4,548.21 4,753.55
Unatlecated capital expendlture - - - - 9,046.03 8,945.99
Depreciation and amortisaticn expense 1,758.85 18,975.91 142.55 119.56 1,901.40 1,368.73
Unaliocated depreciation and amortisation expense - - 1,893.02 1,486.41
| Unallocated non cash expenses other than depraciation | - I - - 1,481.65 3,946.17

Segmant Reporting

The primary reporting of the Group has been performed on the basis of
Metallics . Segments have been identified and reported based on the na

reporting systems,
The following Is the segment information :

business segment. The Group is organised into key business segments — Power Train & Alloy &
ture of the preducts, the risks and returns, the srganisation structure and the internal Bnandal

Geographical information

Secondary segment reporting is performed on the basis of geographical location of customers. The opel
exports contributing to approximately 41% (Previous year 41%) of its annual sales. The mana

gecgraphical segments,
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)

Revenue from axternal customers {Refer note 31}

Non-current operating agsets: R __ (% in lakhs)

As at | As at |
== ———— __LMZA&LMAQ
India 46,917.25 | 37,157.93
Outside India | 13,732.30 10,705.77
Total - - 60,649.55|  47,863.70

Non-current assets for this Purpose conslst of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Assets, Capital work in progress and Intangible assets.
Segment accounting policias:

as under:;

Sagment revanus and expenses:
segments ere allacated amongst them on a reasonable basis. A)l other segment revenue and expenses ara directly attributable to the

Segment assets and llabilitles:

The expenses that are not directly attributable to the business segments are shown ag unaltocable expenses.
Segmant sssets and liabllities

Segment assets Include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of debtors, inventories, advances and Property Plant ang Equipments. Assets at
the unafigcable levay including cash and bank batances, Loans, other financial asset, investment angd tax assets are not allocable to sagments on a reasonabie basis and

thie tha cama hsva mak haan sitneatad

Segment liabilitles include all operating liabfiitles and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabllities,

The Group largest customers who represents more than 10% of the total revenues are as follows;

Particulars of Customer As at na::hast:.,
Type March 31, 2025 054
Customera ~ Domeste 4243949 430
Custorner B Export 9,483.89

[This space has been left blank Intentionaily]
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49 Transfer Pricing:

L1

2

57

61

62

contemporaneous in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with th
assoclated enterprises during the year and expects such records to be In existence latest by the due date as required under law. The management |

The Code on Sodal Security, 2020 {"Code”} relating to empioyea benefits during employment and post empioyment received Presidential assent i
September 2020 and was published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the code wilf come into effect has not been notifled. The
Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes Into effect and will record any related impact in the year the Code becomes effective.

As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Parent Company. The CSR activities and spend are as per
the CSR Policy recommendad by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board,

All the amounts included in the consolidated financial statements are reported In Lakh of Indian Rupees CINR’ or 'Rs.') and are rounded to the
nearest lakh, uniess stated otherwise,

Relationship with Struck-off Groups

The Group has not incurred any transactlon with struck-off companies Le., investments in securities, recelvablas, payables, shared held by struck off
companles and other balances during the year.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companles
There is no charge creatad on the assets of the Group with the Registrar of Companles ather than those disclosed in note number 23 and 24,

Detalis of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Group has not done any investment or trading In crypto and virtual currenclas.

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceedings has been inltiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami
proparty.

The Group has naot been declared as a wilful defaufter by any lender who has powers to declare a Company as a wilful defaulter at any time during
the year o+ after the end of reporting yaar but bafora the date when financial statements are approved.

The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the bpoks of account but has been surrendered or disclosed as Income during the
year in the. tax assessments under the Income-tax Act 1961 (such as, search or Survey or any cther relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act,

share) during the year,

The company is in the process of faunching lts inftjal public offer (1PQ), accordingly the Parent Company is In the process of filing the DRHP with
Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (SEBI). The Parent Company has Incumred Initial public offer related expenses of ¥ 1189.90 lakhs (March 31,

The cormpany had entered into agreement of lease of land from Hero Cycles Limited for 10 years which was expirng on March 31, 2032; During the
financial year 2023-24, the parent Company had entered into an agraarment to buy this land at a consideration of ¥ 2,282.00 lakhs and continued to
hold the possession of the land and accordingly has terminated the land lease agreement in F.Y. 2023-24, The Company had pald ¥ 2053.00 lakhs
towards purchase consideration of the land and has disclosed the balance amount payable under the head capltal creditors and has capitalized the
land as free hold land and has reclassified the building constructed on this land trom leasehold Improvements to buildings in financial year 2023-24,
Further, net galn on account of cancellation of land lease agreement (accounted as right of uge assets and lease lahiity) has been credited under the
head ‘QOther Income” in Note 32 of signed financials pertaining to financlal year 2023-24.

During the year, the parent company has got land of ¥ 2,053 lakhs (6.65 acres) registered in its name and reglstration charges paid amounting ¥
151.14 lakhs has been capftalized. The Cornpany is in process of registering the land amounting ¥ 228.00 lakhs (0.67 acres) In its name,

The group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

The Minlstry of Corporate Affairs {MCA} vide Its notiflcation No. GSR 206(E} dared March 24, 2021 has Issued the “Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Amendment Rules, 2021 read with sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred as “the Act”) Introducing Rule
11(g). As per this rule, every company which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trall of each and every transaction, creating an edit iog of each change made in the books of account along
with the date when such changes were made and onsuring that the audit trali cannot be disabled.

During the year, the Parent Company and its subsldiary Companies incorporated in Indla, maintalned it's books of unt-in SAP 54 Hana
accounting software where audit trajl feature (edit log facility) was not evaluatad during the year ended March 31, 2025. ThedComy nyjs evaluating
implementation of audit trail featyre in accounting software used for maintaining its books of account to comply with the requ ts of Proviso to
Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Account) Rutes, 2014,
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eneral Instructions for Preparation

of consolldated financial sta ments to Schedute 1T to the Compal

85 Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the G nles Act, 2013:
r __[___—As_a——_—"_ﬁrmr_—m_Fo—ruTe“T-e—_w_]_—_For_th'e_m_———m_
| | March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Not assets, Le. total assets iess | = N =
| Share in other |
| " of the .| tutal Kabilities Share in pro#it f {loss) .| comprehensive income Share in total comprahensive ncom
| As%or | Amountine | u%?"ﬁﬁuiuﬁTAT%aml—lﬁoﬁmt As % of total | Amount in € Lakd
| consolidated Lakh consolidatad | Lakh compunenm| Lakh comprehensive |
J_netuuts |proﬂtoriou| Incoma income |
Parant Company | T | |. T |
Hero Motor Limibed | 84.39% 83797.07 | 6735 %) 2,261.04 | (2.40)%, (22.78)| 52.48 %) 2,338.26
Subsidiary Companies | | | | | | Il |
|.lndlan | ! | | |
|Hero EDU Systems Private Limited | 3.16%|| 1,641.14 | (2.37)%)| (83.12)| 0.07 %| 0.64 (msmll (82.48)
HYM Drive Systems private Linited | 4.07% 211238 | (18.53)% (649.43)| 0.05 % 0.45 (14.56)% {648.98)
| Spur Technatogles Private Limited | 5.80% 3,008.41 | (3.55)%| (124.37)| 0.13 %) 1.26 | (2.76)% (123.11)
|Foreian | | | | ' | |
[Hero Motors Thal Limited ' 3.06%| 1,586.00 | 9.07 %) 318.06 | 12,67 %] 120.49 9.84 %) 433,55
|Hewiand Enginsering Limited | (0-48)% (247,36 48.01 %) 1,682.80 | 89.48 % 850.76 | 56.86 %| 2,533.56 |
[roTaL  100.00% 51,897.64 | 100.00% 350498 | 100.00%) 95082 _200.00%] 443380
| | / | | | |
Adjustments arising gut | | o
of consolidation | *94295-?">| | {225.21) | | (zzs.zn|
Non Controliing Interest | s1.91 | || 750.63 | | a9 J | 1,176.55 |
e R s - S = S e I vy
T ee—————e _Acstm__[  Fortheyearended |  Forthe yoar ended | * For the year ended |
| | March 31,2024 | March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 |
WTM__I.T_W_M__F “Sharain profit / {loss) |  Sharain other — [sm _IWW—___—M_
| Name of the antity _ minus lmi'u-umf_ | comprehensiva income | o o
| A3 % of Amowttin® | As% of | Amowntin€ | As % of totas [Amountin ®| Az % of totai [Amoont in € Lakh
| consokidated | takn consolidated|  Lakh | comprehensive | takh | comgrenensive |
| [ net dsnets | APIWM or loss income income
Parent Company —|_—_ | '| L i _———:’__ T |__ ]
| Hero Motor Limited | 91.37%| 40,538.60 | 92, 1?%| 1,89.58 | [u.m%l 70.23 | 12?.21%| 1,967.21 |
| -
||8'c.|lwullar\|r Companies | | - I | |
Endian | | | | | | |
Hero EDU Systems Private Limited 0.21% 9L7z | (0.28)% (5.77)| 0.00% - (0.37)%| (5.77)
HYM Drive Systems Private Limited | 6.22% | 276135 | (1526)% (314,06) 0.03% (0.15)] (20,32)% {314.21)
Spur Technologles Private Limited | 5.10% 2,264.80 (26.06)% | (536.42)| (0.50)9%| 2.55 (34.52)%| {533.8?}|
|Porsian | | | | | |
Hero Motors Thal Limited | 3.36%| 1,492,049 10.449%/ 214.89 | 0.00% {0.00)/ 11.90% 214.89
Hewland Enqinesring Limited ——a827%  12,78091) 3359w 80246 | 114.19%  (584.3¢) 14.11% 29843
[TOTAL [ " 100.00% 44,368.06 | m%{ —2,058.08  100.00% (811,71 100&9%__ _ 1,546,37
| ' ' |
|Ad.iusm\ems arising out | l {5,784.13)| {716.24)| | (91.on)| | (807.24)
|of consohidation | | | | | | |
[Non Controlling Tnterest | | (1,102.33) | (361.79)| 332,71 } (29.08)
= _ |
TOTAL | 3,886.26 | 170363 | (ovsazy| [ 768.21
88 The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under dause (87) of section 2 of the Ack read with the Companies (Restriction on qumber of Layers) Rules, 2017,

inclufing foreign entities {intermecliar

es) with the understanding (whether

(i} The Parent Company has not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ias),

otherwise) that the Parent Company shan
{a} directly or indirectly tend or Invest in
{b) provide any guaraniee, sacurity or

on behalf of the Parent Company {ultimate beneficiaries)

Forlndonbunanoflurdofnlram:nf
Hero Motors Limited

B

(DIN: 02997032)
Place: Nokda
Date: August 12, 2025

Utimrsh Sanghi Esha Gupta
Company Secretary
pef Fin Cificer
Chief Financial M. No. A23608
Place: Noida Place: Nolda

Date: August 12, 2025 Date: August 12, 2025
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